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2 @0 Py e Market Scale Forecast
Value taBe Offerédby SKY Perfect Pis Type of Development Fiscal 2004 Year-End  Fiscal 2008 Year-End
. ° o0 N (Millions)
G &z .
¢ €S DigitalBroadcasts o CSDigital Broadcasts . CS124/128 47 7.0
¢ FITH 3r9§dcast5 o @ (Penetration forecast) . CS110
.
0 o° Data%ansmission 52 ¢
dPTﬁransmissioéno Broadband for Homes - DS 12.5 15.8
90 V@D o (Penetration forecast) FTTH (IP)
09 fBroadbaond Content Transmission
o 0 £ntent for Mobile Phones 3G+ Mobile Phone .. W-CDMA 245 773
00 9 ¢ (Market scale forecast) _. cdma2000
00 @0 1X&EV-DO
Co - - " o
? Content for Wireless Hot Spots Wireless LAN (Market scale forecast) .. Monthly Fee ¥3 billion ¥43 billion
? (For cafes, restaurants, hotels, stations, airports, etc) _ Temporary Fee

Source {for market scale forecast): Nomura Research Institute, Ltd.
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Requires @ Certain Vision.

QUW P @ﬂ WU Cf@aﬁ@ "er MID-TERM MANAGEMENT TARGETS
Totel Sales ¥2 5@ billion, Subscribers over ' million
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digital multichannel broadcasting company.

As part of this guaegy we established subsidiary company SKY
Perfect Well Think Co., Ltd. ("SPWT®) in July 2004 and started busi-
ness in November 2004 in order to attain business by

. Thi

)
O
S}
=
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&/

investing in and developing superior conten

involved from the plan formulation stage, and aims to create high-
quality programs. Aside from broadcasting rights of the contents it

a o

participates in creating, SPWT aims to diversify revenue sources by

1

sharing DVD-package rights, overseas program-marketing rights and

pects muli-use of

|

other rights. This is @ new content business that ex
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CS 124/128

The Company is actively pursuing the development of new inira-

..Structure. through jts. multi-platform strategy, with CS_124/128-

degree digital broadcasting at its core. By providing digital
multichannel broedcasting services, we have seen @ steady increase
in subscribers. The Company is establishing @ new broadcast culture
in Japan by spreading the appeal of pay TV programming to the
viewing public.

There remain consumer segments that CS 124/128 broadcasting
has yet to caplure, such as people with passive consumption habits,
female consumers, and middle-aged and elderly consumers with an
aversion to the latest media technology. We are introducing @ sef-top
box ("STB") rental system to uncover - = = - latent customers
as part of the reconstruction of our sales strategy, in accordance
with our new Mid-Term Vision. In doing so, we can expect more
profitability to come.

D 7
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The Company is curmrently establishing CS 110-degree digital broad-
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cast Ing @s & second transmission channe! an

d an additional revenue
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source. As of March 2005, the majority of the approximately five mil-

)
D

lion digital TV sefs on the market were equipped with built-in

=

s

terrestriel digital broadcasts, CS 110 broadcasts and BS
digital broadcasts. Together with high-definition TV package s
featuring CS 110, this creates an environment where the difftusion of

s

recelvers for
:

CS 110 can become pervasive. In this e

j

vironment, we
are taking a proactive approach toward passive consumers aﬂd con-

W)

sumer S@gm@ms that lack strong demand for speciglized program-

the enhancement

of our programming content. In addition, due to decreases in sub-
Scrb acquisition costs (“SAC"), perticularly sales incenfives, we can
expect even more profitability.

ming t ?@U@h stronger links with sales outlets and |

]
h
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e have the i %h@gﬁ expectations for the future of the video distribution
business utilizing FTTH. Through our subsidiary OptiCast Inc.
("OptiCast”), we are @X@an@mg this w@m@% to condominiums, whic
nave previously had difficulty setting antennae necessary fo receive
Direct To Home ("DTH") video distribution. Using the fiber-opfic net-
work of communications carriers, we started multichannel broadcast
service to Tokyo's 23 werds from February 200

04, and launched ser-
vices in the Csaka area from February 2005. In fiscal 20

06, we plan
to expand service to cover 13.5 million households
throughout the nation’s seven major m@t@p@%@m areas. In February
2005, we also launched the new HIKARI PerfecTV/ brand with an

effective promotional campaign. In only 13 months through March
2005, 416 properties covering approximately 20,406 households
have approved service provision. Henceforth, we will link with com-

munications carriers to extend semvice to small-scale nousing com-
plexes and single-house units.

SKY Perfect Communications Annual Report 2005
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Is your neighbor watching
HIKARI PerfecTV! too?




fOBILE PHONES, IP, ... |

The digitization of broadcasting and networking of communications
in Japan h@V@ {Furth@[r @V@HV@d an@ﬂ th@ ﬁm@ mwﬂ m@d a ag@ is Up@ﬂ

m©b le phones and the d@V@H@pm@m ©f services Uﬂ zZing 1P t@@hﬂ@ﬂ
ogy, destined to be the next-generation platform. We have worked to
ascertain the needs for video streaming for mobile phones by con-
ducting a streaming frial with NTT DoCoMo and by distributing con-
tent tailored to KDDI's au EZ Channel. We established subsidiary
SKY Perfect Mobile, Inc. (“SPM?) in 2005 fo further these efforts at
creating possibilities. We also ﬂV@S‘t@d nearly ¥10 billion in Index
Corporation in June 2005. In addition, based upon FTTH, we will
develop new s@wﬁ@@S utilizing 1P technology and we aim
to provide multichannel broadcasting, Intemet connection, P tele-
phone and video-on-demand ("VOD") semvices, exceeding so-called
“triple-play” service, |

. r .
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To attain our ambitious goal of reaching eight million subscribers by
2010, the Company has formulated a Mid-Term Vision that empha-
sizes hﬁghmqwa%iw content and & diverse media platiorm appropriste
for a broad spectum of lifestyles. We look forward to contributing to
the adV@nc@mﬂnt of Japan's pay TV market by further expanding
optical fiber infrastructure FTTH, developing IP, VOD, and mabile ser-
vices, and elevating the quality of digital programming and customer

O

semvice.
The more we tum our dreams into reality, the more we will become
part of the fabric of our society, sharing information, enriching our
culture, and enjoying the benefits of an advanced society. We invite
OUF customers, our smzajg@hc@b@fsp and indeed, every member of soci-
ety to join us in our dreams.

-

r !
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Envisioning the Next-Generation Media Environment
The Structure of Japan's Current Broadcasting Market

The primary broadcasting services in Japan can be split into three
categories: terrestrial broadcasts, satellite broadcasts and cable
television broadcasts.

Since the beginning of free analog broadcasting service in
1953, terrestrial television broadcasts have been and continue
to be the most watched media format in Japan. This broadcasting
category consists of fee-based Japan Broadcasting Corporation
("NHK") broadcasts and advertising-revenue-based broadcasts
from the five major networks. As of March 31, 2005, over 90% of
the approximately 47 million households were viewing four chan-
nels or more. However, the Japanese government plans to phase
out analog broadcasts and shift wholly to digital broadcasting by
fiscal 201 1. Terrestrial digital broadcasting got under way in
Japan’s three largest metropolitan areas of Tokyo, Nagoya and
Osaka in 2003, and the broadcasting area continues to expand
sequentially so that other areas may begin broadcasts by 2006.

Satellite broadcasting began with the introduction of broadcast
satellite ("BS") service in 1989 and CS service in 1992. Originally,
BS started as a “broadcast” service targeting the unspecified
"general viewer,” while CS was a communication service providing
data transmission to targeted corporations and other specified
custorners. With reforms to the Broadcast Law in 1892, however,
CS broadcasting services became possible.

BS analog broadcasts consist of fee-based broadcasts by NHK
and WOWOW INC. ("WOWOW"), while BS digital television
broadcasts are provided by the affiliates of five major terrestrial -
broadcasters, NHK, WOWOW and another fee-based company.
Combining analog and digital broadcasts, as of March 31, 2005,
NHK had 12.36 million subscribers and WOWOW had 2.46 million,
and shipments of BS digital receivers stood at 5.33 million.

In 1986, CS broadcasters accomplished Japan's first full-fledged
digital broadcasts. With this innovation, the previously limited
volume that could be transmitted over broadcast frequencies was

increased by several times. Accordingly, the number of broadcast
channels grew dramatically, “multichannel” became the identifying
feature of CS broadcasting, and "paid broadcasting” became a
generally known phrase.

Then in 2002, we started CS 110-degree broadcasts, adding
them to our existing 124/128-degree CS broadcasts. In the early
days of CS digital broadcasting, several platform operators were in
competition; at present we have consolidated almost all of them
into our group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Companies”), with 3.82 million subscribers as of
March 31, 2005.

The business model for CS broadcasting in Japan is based upon
a legal system that differs significantly with those in Europe and
the United States. The Company is classified as a platform opera-
tor, and because we do not have rights to set prices or packages
for the contents that broadcasters possess, conducting strategic
business operations is limited by regulations to some extent.
However, such regulations are gradually being liberalized.

Cable television began in 1955 as a complermnentary broadcast
media to retransmit terrestrial broadcasting programs to viewers
who had trouble receiving those broadcasts. In recent years, how-
ever, cable programming has become more diversified, including
the addition of retransmitted satellite broadcasting programs and
originally produced programs. As of March 31, 2005, households
with cable television connections numbered 17.88 miilion, of which
more than 5 million households enjoy multichannel services.

Cable television services are offering internet connection, P
telephone and other communication services as well as broadcast-
ing services, and cable television is growing as an integrated infor-
mation and communication platform for focal areas. To respond to
the diffusion of broadband, the shift toward the use of optical fiber
for cable television network lines and the increasing of bandwidth
for greater transmission volume is on the way.

Japan’s Regulations Regarding Broadcast and Telecommunications

(Cable and satellite are treated differently under the same law)

The Same Company

Terrestrial

Content Providerl { Content Prgider\UComent Provwde—r!r———

Wired - Satellite; 1 T [ J
S \ Law Concerning Broadcast via A l \BS Analoy "
Cable Televisi Broadcaster ] l Telecommunications Catricrs” Facilities Licensed | %
able Television ¢ i P 1
® Broadcast Law (OptiCast ec) | L Broadcastﬂ Broadcaster Broadcaster : l%
3 1
S 1 J 1 General
& [~~~~°-7°° tSuuiathuladinuty fufintdheiiainiefubeb R | T\ Broadeaster |~ -~ " T 7
8 CATV . ! — :
2 Telecommunications X Telecommunications Licensed )
Senvice for X Senvice for Satellie | Broadcast | | ¥
Broadcaster | Broadcaster Operator | Law E3
(NTT, etc) \ (JSATY | 3
Ll_ ) iy
________________________________ e eSSt --=S-C-T=c--=-=-=-==c-===<= |§
3 — S
E cAY Tel ications | 1 Satell ! g
3 _ Telecommunications| eiecommunications 1 ) atelite  relecommunications| Broadcast System  (The system was originally | &
S o Senice Service 1 | Telecommunications . d built in the €S anals 2
s (ISP, VoIP, etc.) ) Service Business Law  |Based on Government builtin the C5 analog era) | =
g (ISP, VoIP, etc.) ) VO S . License ~
§ i A4
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Basic Business Flow

|

Basic Revenue Structure

—_————

-

The Company Business Model

Multi-Platform Transmission of Aggregated Content

(As of March 31, 2005)

Japan's Largest Content Aggregator

Broadcaster Contents ]

Own Contents

Investment Contents

Sports, movigs, music, dramas,
news, and others: diverse genre, etc.

European soccer, MLB, martial arts, etc.

Korean cinema, movies, animation, etc.

Mu'ti-Platform Transmission Through an Array of Paths

SPSKY PerfecTV!
SKY PerfecTV/!

Television 189 channels
Radio 1071 channels

SP sy pertecrvi JUD)

SKY PerfecTV/ 110
Television & Data 74 channels

HIKARI PerfecTv!
Television170 channels
Radio101channels

P EtPerfecTVi

*

QOther new businesses
(Mobile Phones/IF, etc.)

[ Revenue Stusure (OTX) |

* In addition, simultanecus transmission
of terrestrial, BS and other broadcasts are

canducted on 30 TV and 5 radio channels
in the Tokyo area, and 29 TV and 3 radio
channels in the Osaka area.

| Revenus Studure (FITH) |

Satellite
Operator

L Subscriber J

Transponder Fees

Content of

Own Content Broadcasters

Monthly

Revenues of OTH __

Revenues of FTTH

Subscription Fees (HIKARI PerfecTv/)

( SKY PerfecTv/ )
SKY PerfecTv/110.

Own Content

Monthly Subscription Fees i Broadcasters Commissions
Subscription j : Rental Fee for STB
Fees Commissions —
Basic Fee Basic Fee
Basic Fee Access Line Fee
[ Platform

 SKY PerfecTV!

=> Subscriber-Related Revenues
=5 Transmission-Related Revenues

=> Revenues from Own Content of Other Fees and Revenues

SKY Perfect Communications
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
For the years ended March 31: 2003 2004 2005 2005
REVEIIUBS ..ot er st ss s st saa s s b s s cens R as s e saa e et ¥ 70374 ¥ 72475 ¥ 74,017 $ 690,328
ODETATING EXDENSES .rcecesreresrssssss s sarmssesesmssesssssssssss seasesessssssassssssessssssovessssssseees 86,968 68,086 70,741 659,774
Operating INCOME (10SS) ..vv.vocmrveressereeeressmserssssmissssresssamsrsssessssesesssssassessssasseses (16,594) 4,389 3,276 30,554
NEL INCOME (JOSS) oo esesssrsesesesssestosetes st (16,876) 4,089 3,753 35,003
Net income (loss) per share (¥/%):
BaSIC u1vvevvmrerieeesseee st st s east s erat st (7,542.98) 1,825.39 1,656.50 15.45
DHULEA. .ovovvovecceisire s esmsvesisss s ssssssmsnss s ssassssn s e sssssessssssasnsns (7,542.98) 1,823.59 1,655.22 15.44
As of March 31:
TOUBl BSSEIS...uuvrirrveviermimraeis issesmsmsssseomsmssssrse st ssesbt s ens et 130,016 137,330 131,383 1,225,359
Total shareholders’ EQUILY. ... e s 88,459 95,354 88,844 828,614
2003 2004 2005 2005
ARPU (Average revenue per subscriber per month):
Subscription fees per SUBSCHDEr (¥/3) .vvvvrviocrermisiensesiisnsssssssssssanes ¥ 3886 ¥ 3,715 ¥ 3,544 $ 33,054
Subscriber-related revenues per subscriber (¥/8) ..o 1,469 1,459 1,413 13,179
Number of channels:
SKY PerfecTv!
Lo 1= OO OO OO OO OO PRO O 284 292 290
TRIBVISION 1o sss s s asssss s ssss s s ab st sesees 180 188 189
RAAIO ... oeoeeveecovvrvreassvisssssssssomsssseneessssssss e eesesseseessr st e sssessesssesssssssessress e 104 104 101
SKY PerfecTv/ 110
TOHAL e seescsm st ssns s s e e b 56 98 74
TeleviSion AN data. ... snsessssssssessssssisen 56 78 74
RATIO oovosesriere s sceess st ssssssass e s e ab vt e - 20 -
HIKAR! PerfecTV/ v
L] OSSO - - 306
REATANSITUSSION ovvveveerveeverseesreresesseenrersssesssseressssssesn s rssessesesssessssesersssessasereensassants - - 35
Television .. - - 170
RATIO vvvveresessaseessresesssessessasesesesmssasossssasestesss s sss sssssssssses s ssssasmssssssntssssssnsrens - - 101
Number of subscribers (thousands):
TOUA] SUBSCIDEIS ..ottt s esen s esre 3,425 3,647 3,823
(SKY PerfecTV/ 110).. (42) (123) (203)
(NAIVIAUA! SUDSCHDETS ... erenseaereesssesssmsmesesssssseessseseressessesesssesessesesassees 2,990 3,182 3,310
(SKY PEIfECTV! 110) coomiooeieiiomrveveeesessessssssssessssssssissssssmssissssossesssassssssessssssasnssss (41) (115) (161)
Annualized Chum rate (Y0} e 82 9.0 9.4
(SKY PerECTV! 110) coovsisrerevsriessisisisssssssssssssssassimssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssasassss 8.1 (8.9) 9.7)

1) The number of subscribers and churmn rate includes SKY PerfecTv/, SKY PerfecTV/ 110 and HIKARI PerfecTv/

2) US. dollar amounts have been translated from yen, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥107.22=US$1, the approximate foreign exchange market rate as of March 31, 2005.

3) Our fiscal year ends March 31. We refer to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 throughout this annual report as fiscal 2004. We refer to other fiscal years in
a corresponding manner.

4) ARPU is calculated for SKY PerfecTV/ and SKY PerfecTV/ 110 semvice.

5) As the Company started the FTTH business, the term “DTH Subscriber” used previously was changed to “Individual Subscriber” to refer to individual subscribers who receive
programs directly.

6) As of the March 31, 2005, HIKARI PerfecTV/! had 716 individual subscribers and a total of 834 subscribers.

r 1
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To Our Shareholders
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Having established ourselves as one of the world's leading
companies in digital multichannel satellite broadcasting, we
are implementing our content aggregator and multi-platform
strategies to further our growth.

As articulated in our Mid-Term Vision, we plan to grow through
targeting the next generation of consumers with diversified
and high-quality content and services on a variety of media
platforms, inciuding optical fiber transmission, broadband and
mobile devices, that are appropriate for a broad spectrum of
consumer lifestyles.

In order to reach the ambitious goals set in our new Mid-Term
Vision, we will focus on strategic investment in growing busi-
nesses such as content production and licensing, fiber-optic
video distribution, CATV and mobile, while strengthening
corporate power across the Companies.

In appreciating our cultural role in an information society, we
intend to provide informative and rich content that meets
everyone's needs.

President Hajime Shigemura

AN EPommunications Annual Report 2005



A YEAR OF PROGRESS April 2004 O O Business partnership with Excite Japan May 2004 O O SKY PerfecTV/ and NTT DoCoMo to
Co,, Ltd. for Internet-based content test mobile video-clip streaming and
distribution services program-related information services

00O Review of Fiscal 2004 Business
The world is now in the midst of the so-called Digital Revolution, a time of
huge technological innovations comparable to those of the 18th century
industrial Revolution. In Japan, innovations have first swept the information
and communications fields, spreading now to mobile phones, internet and
broadcasting and transforming the consumer environment into an ever-more
convenient and abundant paradigm. To say that this is the dawn of a new civi-
lization is not an overstatement.

During fiscal 2004, the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005, the media indus-
try made further technological advances and entered a revolutionary era where
previously accepted economic principles no longer apply. This is the age when
the potential of triple play—the integration of broadcasting, broadband Internet
and IP phone—has come more clearly into focus and become a more concrete,
practical business reality.

"Stay half a step ahead of the times.” | have promoted this saying
Companywide as our most important management theme, and we have all
made every effort to not be late to ride the wave of changing times. Seeing
the wave of revolution before our eyes, the value of this saying has been
reconfirmed and we realize the management decisions we have already made
have not been in error.

The Company has made vigorous management efforts to put the satellite
multichannel broadcasting business, which had no precedent in Japan, on the
track into the mainstream. At the same time, while envisioning the
next-generation media environment of integrated broadcasting and communi-
cations, we invested strategically to establish our second and third business
platforms, and conditions in fiscal 2004 further fostered those efforts. We are
the pioneers of Japan's pay broadcasting business, which is the real substance
of the revolution, the unrivalled top corporation. We have strong confidence
that we will lead the next-generation media industry.

However, until that reality is firmly in our grasp, | believe we must further
accelerate the rate of business development beyond the speed that we have
already attained. In order to do so, | have made complete adjustments to strat-
egy and partially overhauled policy. In fiscal 2004 we formulated a new
Mid-Term Vision for fiscal 2005-2010 and began implementing that vision
throughout the Company from fiscal 2005. | want to be certain that our cur-
rent position is fixed after the revolution sweeping the industry. It is my mis-
sion to ensure that we do not fall behind other companies.

1_ Ul
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p4 O O First ever fee-based distribution of an
original drama seies "yokohama 80's"
to mobile phones—starting from
October on au's EZ Channel

Juy2004 OO SKY Perfect announces the establishment September 20
of SPWT as the new planning company
to operate the content development and
investment business

To Our Shareholders

o O Starts HOTV broadcasting of the Star

August 2004 QO OPCAS service provision using UCcoM
Channel via SKY PerfecTv/110

optical fiber networks gets underway

00 Fiscal 2004 Business Results
In reviewing the business cesults for fiscal 2004, a current vital point is the

implementation of our new Mid-Term Vision. The Company began partial
implementation of that vision in the second half of fiscal 2004, and the
associated costs have influenced profits. | have already stated how crucial
our subsequent development is as we enter this era of great change.
Therefore, we have been making management decisions for fiscal 2004

emphasizing the importance of long-term business development rather than

the attainment of short-term profits.
Under these conditions, we maintained the increasing revenue trend that

has continued unbroken since our establishment, and consolidated operat-

ing revenue in fiscal 2004 was ¥74,017 million. Due to the reasons stated

above, consolidated operating income and net income decreased, finishing
at ¥3,276 million and ¥3,753 million, respectively. However, the profit struc-
wre we constructed after moving into the black remained solid.

Primary cost increases include the execution of proactive policies 10
increase the number of new subscribers and reduce subscription cancella-
tions, as well as the recording of additional depreciation costs related t0

enhancing and replacing encoders and other broadcast equipment.



October 2004  © O SPWT starts business December 2004 O O OptiCast participates in the management of
Information Network Korivama Inc., a cable tele-
vision business planning company

Q O Alliance between OptiCast and Energia
Communications, Inc. for video distribution
business utilizing optical fiber networks in the
Fukuyama area

[ Revenues l l Net Income (Loss)
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Note: Our fiscal year ends March 31. We refer to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 as fiscal 2004 or FY04, and so on. The above graphs show the fiscal years.
Estimates for fiscal 2005 are based on Japanese GAAP. - -
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To Qur Shareholders

January 2005 © OSPWT announces first investment February 2005 O O Launch of HIKARI PerfecTV/ service
plan investing in “Hang Ryu” Film in the Osaka area
Festival

O OAnnounces acquisition of Cable
Television Adachi Corporation
shares

0O Performance Indicators
Due to their impact on business results and medium-term growth, the
Company recognizes the number of new subscribers, the churn rate, the aver-
age revenue per subscriber ("ARPU") and SAC as important performance indi-
cators. We would like to report on these indicators for fiscal 2004.

The number of new individual subscribers was 432 thousand (versus 471
thousand for fiscal 2003) and the churn rate was 9.4% (versus 9.0% in fiscal
2003), bringing the accumulated number of individual subscribers to 3.31
million (the number of total subscribers is 3.82 million). Though this repre-
sents an increase of 128 thousand subscribers over the previous year, the
pace of growth slowed somewhat. While our core CS 124/128-degree digital
broadcasting business continues to progress well, the Company did not |
achieve the goals set at the beginning of the period for our CS 110-degree
digital broadcasting business, which we are raising up as our second pillar. An
important related point is the identification of potential customers. The dramatic
pace in new subscribers that ensued from the time of our establishment was
due to the so-called “early adopters,” including younger customer segments
and active customer segments. From here forward, the Company will work to
actively capture the comparatively untapped customer segment that includes
senior and female customers. When this sort of customer grasps the value of
a product, they tend to become long-term users and the churn rate typically
decreases. | will hereafter mention further policies we have formulated to
increase the number of subscribers as part of our new Mid-Term Vision.

Looking at the breakdown of the integrated ARPU revenue for aur core CS
124/128-degree and 110-degree broadcasting businesses, subscription fees
per subscriber were ¥3,544 (versus ¥3,715 in fiscal 2003) and subscription
related revenues per subscriber were ¥1,413 (¥1,459 in fiscal 2003). In
response to the downward trend in ARPU, we aim to provide expanded con-
tent with a greater number of appealing program packages. To achieve those
ends, we have worked to improve the quality and number of operators at our
customer centers, and to develop products that incorporate feedback gained

from customer follow-up efforts.

r o
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March 2005

CO New Mid-Term

O O OptiCast and On Demand TV, Inc. O O The Company establishes new company to
form alliance for VOD Service operate new mobile phone-based business

QO O SPWT invests in new soccer mag- O O Sales partnership between OptiCast, NTT
azine "World Soccer King” Medias Co., Ltd., and Osaka Cas Co., Ltd., in
optical fiber video distribution business

Vision (Fiscal 2005-2010)

We have formulated a new Mid-Term Vision for the fiscal 2005-2010 periods
to guide our management policies, and have started implementing that vision
from fiscal 2005. This vision takes a step beyond the previous mid-term man-
agement plan implemented two years ago, which was formulated for the fis-
cal 2003-2007 period, by responding to the current media environment and
providing more concrete action guidelines. In our new Mid-Term Vision, we
aim to form the largest conglomerate in Japan's pay TV business, and to pro-
vide diversified content services that cater to a broad spectrum of consumer
lifestyles.

The following three points form the pillars of the strategy laid out in our
new vision.

First is the strengthening of our DTH business. Thus far we have developed
our core CS 124/128-degree and 110-degree digital broadcasting business
through a DTH service utilizing satellite. In order to strengthen our profit base
through the further diffusion of our services, we understoed the necessity of a
new marketing method, and we established SKYPerfect Marketing, Co., Ltd.
("SPMC"). We will introduce a new STB rental system to complement the
conventional selling supply method for STBs at home appliance stores, which
act as agent stores. We also have our eyes fixed on the handling of STBs
equipped with HDD recording functions and other high-performance func-
tions in the near future, as we aim to improve our subscriber acquisition struc-
ture.

Second is the expansion of our multi-platform strategy. As we strengthen
our relationships with broadcasters, we will braaden our business areas
through new transmission channels—including optical fiber transmission,
broadband and mobile devices—so that our services are available in all sorts
of lifestyle environments.

Third is the promotion of group management and strategic investment. We
expect to make strategic investments of ¥80 billion, with ¥20 billion going
toward the strengthening of relationships with and capital investment in
licensed broadcasters, ¥20 billion for the construction of our sales structure
and contents investment, and ¥30 billion earmarked for the development of

wired businesses including our fiber-optic video distribution business. In order

r ul
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To Our Shareholders

Mid-Term Vision

- mi ED]DD
Targets and Strategies ru0r = % o 5 milion
FY2010 o ;:gm over 8mi|lion

0O Revenues and Pre-Tax Income Targets

FY2005-2010

00 Qur goal is to become the largest conglomerate in the
Japanese pay TV market. We intend to meet our ambi-
tious targets for increasing subscribers and raising sales
and profits by providing diversified content services that

cater to a broad spectrum of consumer lifestyles.

SKY Perfect Communications

Targets

OO Subscriber Targets

[ Revenues

[ Pre-Tax Income

(Billions of yen)
0

150
74
40
15
=8 1 |
FY2004 FY2007 FY2010
FY2004  Revenues ... ¥ 74 biflion
Pre-Tax Income ... ¥ 38 billion
FY2007  REeVENUES ..o, ¥ ] 50 biflion
Pre-Tax IncOmMe .............. y 1 5 biflion
FY2010  ReVENUES cveverereirn, ¥ 250 billion

Pre-Tax income ...

over ¥ 40 billion
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Strategies Investment

O O
O©C Vertical Expansion Strategy: ©O Strategic Investment in Growing Business Fields

Strengthening Our Core DTH Business

) L . . Shareholder Returns
We will accelerate subscription growth by offering broad content - i ’

, SCrip O. gro yq . 8 C"ﬁ co . Operating Cash Flow Stable Dividends,
that meets everyone’s needs in our ever-diversifying information Total Funds: Treasury Stock Acguisition
culture. The Company intends to activel -pr
| pany . ively develop, co-produce Approx ¥91.8

and acquire a broad array of rich content to enhance our core : (As of December 31, 2964)

business.
Fund for Strategic
Investment

¥8OO billion

Action Plan: - reconstruct sales strategy for SKY PerfecTV/
- strengthen relationships with broadcasters

Growth from
Business Development
- invest in high-quality content production

- promote High Definition broadcasting
- improve overall level of customer service

OO Horizontal Expansion Strategy:

Expanding Our Multi-Platform Business

We will develop appropriate media and various infrastructures For the first two years of our Nid-Term Vision, the Company

such as optical fibers so that consumers can enjoy our services in will focus on investment that strengthens consolidated manage-

diverse settings and lifestyles. ment structure and the Companies as a whole. This means

. . . izing long- h hort- fits, and al
Action Plan: - expand HIKARI PerfecTV/ to seven major metropolitan emphasizing long-term growth over short-term profits, and also

areas
- enter the CATV market

- advance mobile phone content distribution
- develop IP, VOD, and other new businesses

enhancing cooperation with our affiliates along each step of our
Mid-Term Vision.
Strategic investment has been earmarked at ¥80 billion. ¥30
billion will be channeled into OptiCast and our CATV business,
/ and ¥20 billion will be used as investment for strengthening our

Expansion of HIKARI PerfecTV/ 7 relationships with broadcasters. The Company will also invest ¥10

- Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya in 2005 ? b?llfon ?nto the supply and sales strudur§e of STB, anoti'.le.r ¥10
- seven major metropolitan areas’in 2006 . ue Sy billion into contents and related companies, and ¥10 billion more

- total 13.5 million householé in 2006

- develop CATV in core cities around major cities

into new business and M&A. In addition, we wil! direct four to five
billion yen annually into capital investment.

The Company still intends to provide stable dividend distribu-
tions to our shareholders, while expanding growing business

Seven Major Metropalitan Afeas

/

fields through long-term investment strategies.

r U
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To Our Shareholders

April 2005 © O SPMC, our planning company for the May 2005 O O Obtains CS broadcasting rights for

supply of rental SKY PerfecTV/ STBs, 2006 FIFA World Cup Germany™
reorganizes as an operating company
O O Receives Privacy Mark authorization

O © Announces capital alliance with Index
Corporation

to secure the future increase of subscribers and expansion of operating
income, during the first two years we will carry out strategic investment at
optimal times and the Companies will make a cooperative effort to promote
measures to strengthen our collective structure.

By promoting these measures, our goals for fiscal 2010 are to reach over
eight million subscribers, consolidated operating revenue of ¥250 billion
and pre-tax profit of over ¥40 billion.

00 Reflections for Fiscal 2005

As the first year of our new Mid-Term Vision, we would like fiscal 2005 to be
recognized as a solid start. That means achieving results and building for the
future rather than focusing on short-term conditions. We have to keep sprinting
in the midst of these turbulent times when the media environment can be
altered in a day. If we are running the same business three years from now,
the future will look dim. In fiscal 2005, while envisioning the environment a
year or two ahead, we want to make decisions appropriate to the times.

We have identified the long-term and comprehensive expansion of profits
as an important management priority, and made the realization and continua-
tion of a stable dividend a basic policy for the distribution of profits to share-
holders. In accordance with that policy, and as @ measure to strengthen the
return of profits to shareholders, we set our year-end fiscal 2004 regular divi-
dend at ¥750, a ¥250 increase over fiscal 2003.

| thank our shareholders for understanding my way of thinking about man-
agement. As a management executive, my greatest pleasure comes from

securing the steadfast support of our shareholders.

June 24, 2005

President
Hajime Shigemura
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Executive Directors

Board of Directors (4s of lune 24, 2005)
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Non-Executive Directors
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Corporate Governance

OO As a publicly listed company, the Company's fundamental corporate governance goal is to maxi-
mize corporate value in the capital markets.

Although the Company does not have a committees structure, to realize corporate gover-
nance principles laid out in the reformed Commercial Code, we have worked to establish a
management and administrative structure to assure transparency, improve management
efficiency and strengthen management oversight. Specifically, the Company has reduced
the number of executive directors to streamline management decision-making and maneu-
verability, and introduced an executive officer system. In addition, the number of external
directors was increased to strengthen management supervision, while a compensation
advisory committee was established for the Board of Directors to improve transparency
and objectiveness in determining directors’ remuneration. To improve the transparency and
objectiveness of the process for appointing directors and auditors, the Company also estab-
lished a candidate advisory committee.

As of June 24, 2005, the Board of Directors consists of 13 directors, including seven
external directors, and aims to carry out open and fair management. At the same time, five
auditors conduct strict and thorough reviews of business decisions made by directors.
Moreover, in accordance with basic policies of the Board of Directars, the management
committee meets on a weekly basis to assist the President and Representative Director,
who makes individual business decisions.

The Management committee consists of executive directors and executive officers, and
standing auditors also participate as observers. Executive directors have areas of manage-
ment over which they are responsible and concerning which they carry out decisions in
accordance with basic principles set by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Auditors is composed of two standing auditors and three other auditors.
The auditors take part in meetings of the Board of Directors, the management committee
and other important Company meetings, and provide objective and fair opinicns regarding
general and specific business items. In accordance with standards formulated by the
Board of Auditors, business decisions made by directors are investigated to determine their
legality and suitability. An auditors meeting is held every month.

On the occasion of the Company's listing on the MOTHERS market of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange in 2000, an office of internal auditors was established under the direct control of
the President. Through this office, continual oversight of business affairs is carried out with
an emphasis on compliance with laws and regulations and corporate social responsibility.
The legality of business actions and the suitability of decisions from a risk management
perspective is thereby reinforced.

At the same time that the retirement benefit system was repealed, a stock option sys-
tem was introduced. Because the system bases compensation on the increase of the
Company's corporate value represented by the stock price, it promotes long-term incen-
tives for the mutual benefit of both shareholders and executives. The stock option system
was introduced to replace a portion of retirement benefits in the executive rernuneration
system.

Four of the seven external directors and two of the four external auditors are directors,
auditors or advisors at primary shareholders of the Company's stock or at corporations with

r 1
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which the Company does business. These aforementioned external directors and auditors
do not have family ties or other personal relationships with the Company's directors or
auditors, nor do they have any capital or business conflicts of interest relative to their posi-
tions at the Company.

In terms of corporate governance activities over the past year, the Company is making
proactive efforts in the area of handling personal information as an important aspect of our
risk management structure. Due to the nature of the business in which the Companies
are involved, we handle a vast range of personal information. With the aim of assuring
compliance with the Law for the Protection of Personal Information, enacted on April 1,
2005, the Company established a committee for the management of personal information
in August of 2004 and was granted Privacy Mark by Japan Information Processing
Development Corporation in May 2005.

[n addition, the candidate advisory committee met seven times during the fiscal year

-under review, while the compensation advisory committee met six times in fiscal 2004.

Checks and Balances of Corporate Governance

L Shareholders' Meeting J—

‘ Appointment and dismissal &Appointment and dismissal
Board of Directors : Board of Auditors
13 Directors FExternal Directors| y 5 Auditors 4 External Auditors §
e
Operational audit 2
Accounting audit (3[,
=
g
: Candidate Advisory Committee =%
. P : 4 Members &
President and Representative Director J : §
N W
Compensation Advisory Committee 4
4 Members
Y
Management

Committee - -
:4————i Accounting Audit
5 Executive Directors| g k

: Accounting audit

7 Executive Officers

Y \4

Committee for

the Management Office of Internal Auditors
of Personal Information
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Risk Information

00 The following is an overview of the primary itemns that the Company recognizes as potential risks that may affect future busi-
ness decisicns and financial standing, although factors that could influence our business results are not limited to them.

1. Subscriber acquisition and trends 6. Content acquisition related

Should a decrease in subscriber numbers occur
despite marketing activities such as investing in adver-
tising and promotions and own contents, our business
results may be affected.

2. Satellite condition

Should damage to or flaws with satellites occur, there
is no guarantee that existing backup satellites can
replace flawed ones in a timely manner. Moreover, in
cases where satellite operators make changes to
licensing conditions, or when for other reasons the
Company is unable to renew contracts, continuation of
service may be significantly hindered, and our business
results may be affected.

. Broadcaster-related risks
In cases where broadcasters stop services or debase
the quality of programs due to financial trouble or other
reasons, business results may be affected. Moreover,
broadcasters hold rights to determine subscription fees,
and in cases where subscriber numbers do not
increase in response to lower prices, our revenues may
decrease and our business results may be affected.

. STB and STB maker-related risks
In cases where STB production and the number of
people wanting to subscribe do not match, or in cases
where defects are discovered in STBs after their
release on the market, the trend in subscriber num-
bers may be affected.

. Sales outlets
Policies regarding payment of sales incentives are basi-
cally reexamined every three months, and our policy
from herein is to continue to carry out a flexible sys-
tem that takes into consideration the unique features
of sales routes. However, in cases where subscriber
growth remains stagnant despite the promotion of
sales incentives, or when viewers don't continue using
the service for a period long enough to merit sales
incentives, our business results may be affected.

SKY Perfect Communications

In cases where content prices rise, when content loses
value during the period that we hold fights, or when the
Company falls to obtain rights, the expected number
of new subscribers or revenues may not be reached,
and our business results may be affected.

. Competition

With the continued progress of technological innova-
tions and the accompanying use of a variety of infra-
structures, the potential exists that other corporations
may begin the same service as the Company. Currently
the pay broadcasting infrastructure is not limited to only
CS and BS digital broadcasting, but is expanding to
include cable television and FTTH services. Areas that
currently do not receive satellite broadcasts may be
geined by Japan as a result of future regulations. In
such cases, new services of the same variety as the
the Companies offer may appear on the market as
competitors. While the diversification of media brings
increased competition in its wake, this also may repre-
sent a new revenue chance for the Company, and our
business results may be affected.

. Security of IC cards and other security concerns

In cases when security of IC cards is breached, and
inability to prevent viewing of charges and account infor-
mation occurs, our business results may be affected.

. Security of customer information

The Companies give the highest attention to protect
client information including subscriber information.
However, in cases where customer information leaks
from the Companies or business partners after illegal
access by third parties or other factors, the loss of con-
fidence and/or the burden of unexpected costs may
affect our business results.

10. Heavy damage to heavy equipment due to large-

scale natural disasters
In cases where unanticipated large-scale natural disas-
ters cause destruction of broadcasting facilities or uplink
equipment, the Company does not possess full backup
equipment, and our business results may be affected.

Annual Report 2005



Glossary of Terms

O C ADSL (Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line)

ADSL is the paramount transmission technology among
xDSL high-speed digital transmission protocols using exist-
ing copper cables for telephone communications. It is main-
Iy used for high-speed access to the Internet.

O O ARPU~Gross ARPU (Average Subscription Fee per
Subscriber)

Gross ARPU is the monthly average revenue from subscrip-
tion fees per subscriber, calculated by dividing the total sum
of monthly fees for flat-rate channels, pay-per-view fees,
basic fees and revenues from own content for which we
have obtained broadcasting rights by the number of sub-
scribers billed.

0 O Churn Rate

The chum rate is obtained by converting the number of
chums for a certain period (annual, monthly, etc) to a
yearly basis. The calculation method differs depending on
whether it is for an annual, semiannual, quarterly or
monthly basis.

Annual Churn Rate = Churns during the period / (sub-
scribers at the beginning of the period + subscribers at the
end of the period) / 2 x 12 months / the period (number
of months)

Annualized Monthly Churn Rate = Chums during the cur-
rent month / total subscribers at the end of the previous
month x 12 months

O O Content Aggregator Strategy
As one of our strategies for our Mid-Term Vision, our con-
tent aggregator strategy aims at strengthening the power of

O O ARPU—Net ARPU (Average Subscriber-Related Revenues
per Subscriber)

Net ARPU is the portion of ARPU that corresponds to the
revenues of our Company, calculated by dividing the total
sum of commissions for monthly fees for flat-rate channels,
commissions for pay-per-view fees, basic fees and revenues
from own content by the number of subscribers billed.

O O Broadcast Law

The Broadcast Law aims at regulating broadcasting for the
public welfare and striving to achieve sound development. It
has been successively revised to keep pace with the trend
towards multimedia, including the introduction of a system
of “licensed broadcasters and licensed satellite operators”
that separated broadcasting facility operators from content
providers in 1989. It prescribes the duties of licensed
broadcasters and licensed satellite operators, and sets con-
tent regulations.

O © Broadcasters

Broadcasters engage in the procurement of content, pro-
gramming, and so forth. Broadcast Law distinguishes two
categories of broadcasters: "Licensed Broadcasters” licensed
by the Ministry of Public Management, Home Affairs, Posts
and Telecommunications; and “Broadcasters” which utilize
telecommunications carriers’ facilities. An approximate total
of 100 broadcasters provide their services on our plat-
forms. Transmissicn of programs to subscribers is undertak-
en by the Satellite Operator. The Company is under contract
with each Broadcaster to perform the platform service.

O © BS Digital

BS Digital is a broadcasting service technology using geosta-
tionary satellites, which are exclusively for broadcasting.
Regular services of DTH reception via digital CATV services
were launched in December 2000 to far fewer viewers
than expected.

SKY Perfect Communications

content aggregation through the acquisition of attractive con-
tent and the building of relationships with popular channels.

O O FTTH (Fiber To The Home)

The Company established OptiCast in June 2003 to engage
in the content distribution business using optical fiber net-
work. OptiCast provides HIKARI PerfecTV! with broadcast
channels and other television channels from terrestrial
(including digital) broadcasts and BS digital broadcasts over
FTTH. These services are designed for condominiums
where the installation of antennas is restricted, antennas
cannot be installed at the right direction for satellite recep-
tion, or the community antenna system does not enable
viewing of all SKY PerfecTV/ Channels. OptiCast began ser-
vices from February 2004 as a (cable) broadcaster under
the Law Concerning Broadcast via Telecommunications
Carriers’ Facilities.

O O €S (Communications Satellite)

CS is an artificial satellite equipped with transponders
designed for communications services. Communications
satellites have also been used for broadcasting purposes as
broadcasting satellites since 1992. Our Company’s services
currently use three communications satellites: N-SAT-110
(110 degrees longitude east), JCSAT-4A (124 degrees lon-
gitude east) and JCSAT-3 (128 degrees longitude east)..

O O Digital Terrestrial Broadcasting

Digital terrestrial television broadcasting is currently run by
NHK and terrestrial broadcasters in analog format. It was
first launched in Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya in December
2003, and will be expanded to nationwide coverage in fis-
cal 2006. Analog broadcasting is scheduled to continue
concurrently with digital broadcasting until fiscal 2011, after
which it will be abolished.
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Glossary of Terms

O C DTH (Direct To Home)
DTH is the direct distribution of content to households via
satellite or other madia.

© O Encoder System
As equipment for encoding and compressing audio and
visual signals, the encoder system is the core system that
supports digital broadcasting.

O O EPG (Electronic Program Guide)
EPG is a function providing electronic channel fistings. As a
system for offering electronic program guides, it is one of
the major additional services of digital broadcasts.

O O HDTV (High Definition Television)
HDTV is a broadcasting format providing substantially
improved audio and visual quality with more horizontal lines
of resolution than the conventional analog television stan-
dard, along with a widescreen image and digitized audio.

O © Law Concerning Broadcast via Telecommunications
Carriers’ Facilities

Enacted in January 2002, this law permits telecommunica-
tions facilities and services to be used for broadcasting ser-
vices. Under this law, broadcasters of telecommunications
services can occasionally be registered as such if they meet
certain requirements, and can use telecommunications ser-
vices provided by telecommunications carriers to provide
their services.

O O Multi-Platform Strategy
As one of our strategies for our Mid-Term Vision, the multi-
platform strategy aims at expanding the use of diverse infra-
structure and transmission channels on the strength of our
content aggregation ability.

© O Own Content
The Company independently acquires broadcasting rights
for top-quality content that highlights the advantages of digi-
tal multichannel broadcasting services, such as Serie A
ltalian Professional Soccer League and English Premier
League matches. We broadcast own content through Pay
Per View Japan, Inc, our subsidiary, as well as sub-licensing
it to other broadcasters.

O O PPV (Pay Per View)
PPV is a viewing system that charges viewers for individual
content purchased. It allows them to purchase a single
movie, sporting event, concert or other content via remote
control operation.

SKY Perfect Communications

0 O SAC (Subscriber Acquisition Cost)
SAC is the average cost for acquiring a new subscriber, cal-
culated by dividing the total sum of costs, including sales
incentives, advertising expenses and promotional expenses,
by the number of new subscribers.

O C Sales Incentives
Sales Incentives are paid to STB manufacturers and dealers
basically in proportion to the number of new subscribers
they have acquired. The level of incentives is different for
sales of SKY PerfecTV! service utilizing exclusive STBs and
SKY PerfecTV/110 senvice utilizing common STBs.

O O Satellite Operator
JSAT is the principal Satellite Operator for the SKY PerfecTv/
broadcasting service. The Satellite Operator owns communi-
cation satellites and transmits programs received from
Broadcasters to subscribers. Part of its operations, concern-
ing the uplink center (uplink to satellites), is contracted out
to our Company.

O © STB (Set-Top Box) and IC Card
STBs are equipped with internal decoders and IC cards
inserted into their tuner slots manage and store viewer data
and contract information. STBs can also connect to tele-
phone lines, thereby enabling the collection of viewing
records and the provision of interactive service through the
public network of lines.

O O SKY Perfect BB
SKY Perfect BB is our broadband content distribution ser-
vice by using Interet Protocol ("IP"), which has been
offered on a full scale since August 2002. It is available
nationwide and provides on-demand streaming distribution
of free and pay- content supplied from content providers to
registered members.

O C SKY PerfecTV! 110
SKY PerfecTV/110 is our digital broadcasting service using a
communications satellite located 110 degrees longitude
east. It offers movies, music, entertainment, news and other
content on 74 television and data broadcast channels in
* total as of March 31, 2005. It can be received with a BS
digital/CS 110 common STB.

O © Transponder
A transponder is a radio relay installed on a satellite that
receives weak radio signals sent from ground parabelic
antennae, amplifies them and sends them back to the earth.

O C Uplinlk

An uplink is a transmission from ground transmission facili-
ties to communications satellites.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Forward-locking statements including plans, strategies
or beliefs contained in this material are not historical
facts, but are forecasts based on the assumptions or
beliefs of our management, judging from information
available currently. Final decisions related to investment
rely solely upon the judgment of users themselves.
Such forward-locking statements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve risks and uncertainties,
and actual results may differ from those in the forward-
looking statements as a result of various factors,
including (1) the economic environment surrounding
our areas of business, in particular consumer trends,
(2) changes in legislation such as broadcasting laws
and communications laws, particularly in the case of
restrictions on our business or proposals to this effect,
or in case of, for example, new business entry by rival
companies, and (3) our ability to develop and
continue to provide programs and services acceptable
to custorners in a fiercely competitive market
characterized by features such as remarkably rapid
technological innovation in the digital techrnology field
in particular and remarkably subjective and
changeable customer preferences in the broadcasting
business. However, factors that could influence our
business resuits are not limited to the above.
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Selected Financial Data

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
For the years ended March 31: 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2005
Statements of Operations Data:

REVENUES....c.cotv s ettt ¥ 48681 ¥ 59433 ¥ 70374 ¥ 72475 ¥ 74,017 $ 690,328
Subscriber-related revenUES.........umicoinecccvnsis oo 36,551 42,469 46,6659 47,349 48,608 453,348
Transmission-related reVeNUES........ooecerecerseeseercrenens 5,277 5,524 7,954 8,929 9,768 91,102
Other fEES aNd FEVENUES .......eececrereceeeseeeeerereesseseenereeseesrenees 6,853 11,440 15,751 16,197 15,641 145,878

OPErating EXPENSES..cvvvcewvcrrrrrernccerereenssesersressssesssssessssssisessces crmvsseess 66,806 68,657 86,968 68,086 70,741 659,774
Cost of services 25,222 32,648 39,345 43,092 44,008 410,446
Sales promotion and marketing eXpenses. ... 29,022 24,803 35,109 14,420 16,015 149,366
General and administrative EXPeNSES. ... mmcssssrnnns 5,150 5413 6,290 4,012 4,995 46,586
Depreciation and amortization ... 7,412 5,793 6,224 6,562 5,723 53,376

Operating iNCOME (J0SS). ucuurviermenreiessmeenssssesmersesssesssresesesniss (18,125) (9,224)  (16,594) 4,389 3,276 30,554

Other income (EXPENSES)~NEL . e rrereen (514) (444) (282) (300) 477 4,449

Income (loss) before income taxes. (18,639) (9,668) (16,876) 4,089 3,753 35,003

NEL INCOME (0SS - eeresecsessscr sttt (18,639) (9668)  (16,876) 4,089 3,753 35,003

Net income (loss) per share (¥/%):

BASIC ooerreoscresesemes ettt (9.246.71) (432161) (7,542.98) 1,82539  1,656.50 15.45
D] TETCSe D (9246.71) (432161) (7,542.98) 1,82359  1,655.22 15.44
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ... sesninerens ¥ 116,792 ¥ 57803 ¥ 38,103 ¥ 45841 ¥ 32,239 $ 300,681

ShOTt-tEIMN INVESIMENTS. .ot - 16,137 25,132 21,018 20,007 186,598

INVESIMIENTS 1ottt et st esbss et s 516 5,035 26,315 31,955 29,978 279,593

Property and eqUIPMENt—NEL.....coowecemimmmessms e 18,904 22,956 22,995 20,810 25,742 240,086

TOMAl BSSEES wvvvvrerrreeesviri et 152,583 154,519 130,016 137,330 131,383 1,225,359

Subscription fees receiVed ... 10,447 11,432 12,427 12,650 12,364 115,315

TOtA! EDIlES ...t 35,404 46,830 39,324 39,790 39,724 370,491

COMMON STOCK vttt e ssssssrs s sssessssesas essssesson 139,456 139,460 139,462 50,014 50,037 466,676

Total shareholders’ €QUILY ... sssesaesennenns 114,428 105,100 88,459 95,354 88,844 828,614

Other Data:

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities............... ¥ (10,082) ¥ (6,168) ¥ (3,324) ¥ 11907 ¥ 7262 $ 67,730

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities................ (7,383)  (48,002) (11,828) 1,600 (7,089) (66,116)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities.............. 89,145 (4,860) (4,441) (5668)  (13,875) (129,407)

EBITDA oot ssrrsetesetes ettt sssetesestesr s (10,713) (3431)  (10370) 10,951 8,999 83,930

Thousands of

1) We define EBITDA as operating income (loss) plus depreciation and amortization. EBITDA should not be construed as an alterative to operating income or loss or any
measure of performance determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity or cash flows generated by operating, investing
or financing activities. We have included the information concerning EBITDA because our management believes it is a useful supplement to cash flow data as a measure of

our performance.

2) Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

* Prospective investors should read the following discussion
of the financial condition and results of operations together
with the financial statements and the notes to such state-
ments included elsewhere in this annual report. The presenta-

tion in this segment contains forward-looking statements.

Overview

Business Climate and Industry Trends

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005 (“fiscal 2004"),
the Japanese economy was hit by a series of typhoons, the
Chuetsu Earthquake in Niigata Prefecture and other factors that
slowed growth. In addition, daily reports of IT companies com-
peting to acquire baseball teams and broadcasting companies
signaled that the Japanese economic environment had
entered a time of dramatic changes. ‘

In the broadcasting industry, the opening of the Athens
Olympics in August 2004 accelerated the growth of the digital
home appliance market and the so-called Digital Revolution
continued to bring sweeping innovations to the industry. The
year was characterized by rapid transition in the media envi-
ronment in which SKY Perfect Communications inc. (the
"Company”) operates, with the appearance of a number of
mobile devices capable of receiving digital contents expanding
the number of platforms for broadcasting. The increasing per-
vasiveness of Fiber To The Home ("FTTH") service has created
the potential for a triple play integration of multichannel broad-
casting, broadband Internet and IP telecommunications into a
concrete business reality. Against the backdrap of the continued
development of digital technology, the integration of broad-
casting and communications is compelling companies to
expand the scale of their operations and igniting more fierce
competition in the industry, foreshadowing a time of great

transition and restructuring.

Business Performance

During the year under review, the Company continued to
advance its content aggregator and multi-platform key strategies
in efforts to strengthen its competitive position in the market.
In order to promote the continued growth of its core business
platform SKY PerfecTV/ (CS 124/128-degree digital broadcasting)
and SKY PerfecTV/110 (CS 110-degree digital broadcasting),
the Company made efforts to increase the number of subscribers,
to control subscriber acquisition costs (“SAC") and to improve
the average revenue per subscriber ("ARPU") by increasing
custorner satisfaction. The number of new individual sub-
scribers for our core SKY PerfecTV! service was chiefly in line
with our expectations, and overall the number of new individual
subscribers finished at 432 thousand.

To make it possible to supply SKY PerfecTv/ set-top boxes
("STBs") through a rental system, in February 2005 we estab-
lished SKYPerfect Marketing, Co., Ltd. (“SPMC") as a joint
venture with JSAT Corporation ("JSAT"). Adding a rental system to
our existing practice of selling STBs at sales agencies will reduce
the initial financial burden on the customer and make it easier
to become a subscriber. In June, 2005 we started this system.

In terms of content provision, we offered strong sports pro-
gramming content, including the UEFA Champions League,
ltaly's Serie A, and England's Premiere League svoccer broadcasts,
Major League Baseball ("MLB"), where Ichiro, Hideki Matsui
and a number of Japanese players are in action, and major
events of popular martial arts sports. All of these are talked about
contents. In addition, we presented simultaneous broadcasts in
Japan and Korea of the Korean drama series "Meet You in
Paradise” (18 episodes), as well as broadcasts of approxi-
mately 30 other popular Korean dramas per month.

In addition, to enter the business of investment in program
content, we established SKY Perfect Well Think Co., Ltd.
("SPWT") as a wholly owned subsidiary in July 2004. As its first
investment, SPWT obtained rights to 21 Korean movies not

previously released in Japan. These movies will be shown in
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theaters, broadcasted for cable television, and released as DVDs.
This company also invested in the establishment of “World
Soccer King" magazine, which was launched in March 2005.

Through these efforts of offering programs in a variety of
genres, we strove to improve the level of customer satisfaction.

Based on an agreement with STAR CHANNEL, INC., we
began HDTV broadcasts of Star Channel Hi-Vision via SKY
PerfecTV!/ 110 from September 2004. In November 2004, we
began sales of the new "SKY PerfecTV/110 Pack” basic
package. In March 2005, we established “SKY PerfecTV/
Channel 110" and began broadcasting on our own channels
(801-802) popular content such as soccer and MLB that had
previously been broadcast on our “Perfect Choice” channel
(180-186).

As a new platform service, we inaugurated HIKARI
PerfecTV!/, a content distribution business utilizing the optical
fiber infrastructure of OptiCast tnc. (“OptiCast”), and which
targets primarily Tokyo's 23 wards and condominium blocks in
the Osaka area. This led to the expansion of our content distri-
bution business in fiscal 2004. Then, in December 2004, we
established an alliance with Energia Communications, Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Chugoku Electric Power Co.,
Ltd. In January 2005 we acquired stock in the planning
company, Information Network Koriyama Inc., for the purpose
of studying the establishment of an urban CATV business in
the city of Koriyama, Fukushima Prefecture. We purchased
stock in Cable Television Adachi Corporation in March 2005,
as a result of which we are now participating in their manage-
ment and have expanded our area of operations. At the end of
fiscal 2004, the number of HIKARI Perfect TV! households
currently receiving service provision had grown to 9,455 units in
116 buildings. In addition, contracts had been signed to provide
services to a further 20,406 units in 416 buildings. Of this
number, 834 total registrations and 716 individual subscriptions

were signed up for multichannel broadcast services.

In January 2005, we announced our Mid-Term Vision for the
fiscal years 2005-2010, the pillar supporting our longstanding
strategy to become the largest conglomerate in Japan's pay TV
market. We aim to offer an array of attractive content that will
appeal to a broad range of consumer lifestyles. in order to quickly
move toward our goals, we began implementing marketing
strategy policies during fiscal 2004 that contributed to
increased revenues.

An annua! dividend of ¥500 per share was planned to com-
memorate the Company's listing on the First Section of the
Tokyo Stock Exchange. However, considering that profits and
our Mid-Term Vision have been steadily progressing according
to plan, and in accordance with our commitment to provide
stable dividends and to strengthen returns to stakeholders, the
Company has decided to offer an ordinary dividend of ¥750
for fiscal 2004.

Factors Affecting Financial Results

Revenues

The Company is engaged in a single business segment provid-
ing platform services relating to satellite digital multichannel
broadcasting. Revenues are divided into three categories:
subscriber-related, transmission-related and other fees and

revenues. The following is an analysis of these revenues.
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Subscriber-Related Revenues
Subscriberrelated commissions and other fees are the Company's
largest sources of revenue, and together represented 65.7% of
total revenues for fiscal 2004. Fee revenues are primarily a
function of ARPU, the number of individual subscribers and the
commission percentage we receive with respect to subscription
fees. Our monthly ARPU is calculated as monthly subscription
fees billed to individual subscribers plus monthly basic fees,
divided by the total number of paying individual subscribers
during the monthly billing cycle. The largest component of ARPU
is subscription fees, the level of which is determined mainly by
the mix of channels and packages selected by subscribers and
the subscription prices of channels charged by broadcasters.
ARPU generally determines the commission we receive on
subscriber fees. Average subscription fees per subscriber for
SKY PerfecTV! and SKY PerfecTV/110 services were ¥3,886,
¥3,715 and ¥3,544 in fiscal 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
Subscription fees per subscriber have been declining over the
past several fiscal years as a decrease in average channel
prices charged by broadcasters has been partially offset by an
increase in revenues from programs that are directly procured.
The decline in average channel prices charged by broadcasters
is likely due to more economically minded channel selection

by subscribers.

‘ Number of Subscribers \
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There are three categories of subscribers: individual subscribers,
institutional subscribers and provisional subscribers registered
for two-week trial viewing periods. As of March 31, 2005, there
were 3,310 thousand individual subscribers and 513 thousand
institutional and provisional subscribers, including 161 thousand
individual and 42 thousand institutional and provisional subscribers
to SKY PerfecTV/110. Although institutional and provisional
subscribers accounted for 13% of total subscribers as of March
31, 2005, they contributed only nominally to total revenues
because of the fee structure for institutional contracts and the
absence of revenue fram provisional subscribers. For each
individual subscriber, we collect subscription fees on behalf of
broadcasters related to the pay programs chosen by the sub-
scriber. As a platform provider, the Company serves as a link
between broadcasters and subscribers, and therefore enters
into contracts with subscribers only as an agent on behalf of
broadcasters. Before remitting subscription fees we receive
from subscribers on the behalf of broadcasters, we deduct a
commission as payment for our platform services. Only the
commission portion of these payments is recognized as
revenue. As a result, ARPU does not represent revenue
recorded and retained by the Company per subscriber. In the
case of programming owned by the Company and broadcast
through the Company's broadcast subsidiary, Pay Per View
Japan, Inc. ("PPV)"), which became a subsidiary of ours in
March 2005, 100% of these fees are recorded as subscriber
fees and are included in other fees and revenues.

Excluding fees received for pay per view programming,
subscription fees are ¥2,990 for a basic type package and
range from ¥100 to ¥1,500 per month for certain news,
weather and variety channels, and from ¥1,000 to ¥4,000 for
premium channels such as various sports channels, movie
channels and selected foreign language programming. Both
SKY PerfecTV/ and SKY PerfecTV/ 110 offer packages of programs
that allow subscribers to view preselected assortments of

channels at a price that is less than the cost if such channels

r u
SKY Perfect Communications @ Annual Report 2005
[ .|



were ordered individually. Although subscribers are not required
to purchase any packages, packages offer a variety of programs
at a lower price and subscribers are free to add additional
channels on top of these packages. The Company broadcasts
8 free television channels on SKY PerfecTV/110 (including
data broadcasting channels and excluding 6 free promotional
channels and the electronic program guide channel), for which
we receive a fee from the broadcasters based on the total
number of subscribers to our service. The Company does not
include revenues from these free channels in ARPU.
individual subscribers of both SKY PerfecTV/ and SKY
PerfecTV/110 are aiso charged a monthly basic fee of ¥390,
and a one-time registration fee of ¥2,800 We recognize the
entire amount of these fees as revenue when the subscriber signs.

The Company's subscriber growth is influenced by the
market penetration of STBs, which is supported by our promo-
tional and advertising campaigns conducted together with STB
manufacturers and retailers. Because new subscribers must
purchase our STB, the pricing of STBs has been an important
factor in attracting new subscribers. The commissions and
incentives we pay to STB manufacturers and retailers affect the
average price of these STBs. The level of incentives paid is
reviewed on a quarterly basis in consideration of the special
characteristics of each sales channel. As a result of the subsidies,
commissions and incentives we pay to STB manufacturers and
retailers, the price of STB is kept as low as ¥10,000 to
¥20,000. In addition, we started rental STB system in coopera-
tion with our subsidiary SPMC from June 1, 2005 for which a
subscriber pays ¥300 monthly to use a STB.

The initiation of terrestrial digital broadcasting in December
of 2003 resulted in accelerated sales of digital television sets
that contain receiver equipment for terrestrial, BS and CS 110-
degree digital broadcasts. As a result, we believe this trend will
work to accelerate growth in the number of subscribers to SKY

PerfecTV/110.

This growth is sustained by offering attractive programming
including content acquired by the Company itself, such as
soccer, professional baseball, martial arts and live concerts,
Cumulative individual subscribers have increased from 3,182
thousand as of March 31, 2004 to 3,310 thousand as of
March 31, 2005.

Subscriber-related revenue per subscriber is calculated as a
weighted average of monthly commissions from broadcasters
for our platform services, including basic monthly fees, plus
subscription fees based on directly-procured programs, divided
by the total number of paying individual subscribers during the
monthly billing period. The Subscriber-related revenue per sub-
scriber was ¥1,469, ¥1,459 and ¥1,413 in fiscal 2002, 2003
and 2004, respectively. The lower decline for Subscriber-related
revenue per subscriber is attributable to the contribution made to

revenues from major content procured directly by the Company.
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Subscriber-related revenues are affected by customer churmn
as subscribers cancel their subscriptions. We measure chum on
an annualized basis as the number of cancellations during a given
period, divided by the average number of subscribers during
the period. Our churn rate deteriorated 0.8 percentage points
to 9.0% in fiscal 2003 from 8.2% in fiscal 2002. Though the
churn rate deteriorated to 9.4% for fiscal 2004, there was

some improvement in the fourth quarter owing to start of
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billing through a satellite e-mail and the renewal of the Club

SKY PerfecTV/ program guide for subscribers.

Transmission-Related Revenues

The Company provides digitization services on behalf of broad-
casters and operates uplink facilities for use by JSAT. Revenues
in connection with these digitization and uplink services were
¥9,768 million, or approximately 13.2% of total revenues, in
fiscal 2004.

Fixed monthly fees are received for each channel broadcast
under the digitization agreements with broadcasters. Under our
uplink agreements with ISAT, we receive a fee based on a
percentage of the transponder service payments made by

broadeasters to JSAT.

Other Fees and Revenues

Other fees and revenues include revenues from programs the
Company procures directly and broadcasts through PPVJ, and
sub-licensing fees received in connection with broadcasts by
other terrestrial and pay television broadcasters, which haVe
been directly procured. Such revenues have been related
mainly to sports programs such as the Serie A, Premiere
League and UEFA Champions League matches. Since August
2002, proceeds from a new service, SKY Perfect BB, have been
included in other fees and revenues. SKY Perfect BB distributes
content using broadband formats such as ADSL. Other fees and
revenues also include the following sources of revenues:
agency commissions generated by the inclusion of promotional
inserts in monthly subscriber bills; advertising on our electronic
program guide channel; leasing studio production space to
broadcasters; and revenues from businesses such as our SKY

PerfecTV! Communications Services.

Expenses
Operating expenses consist of cost of services, sales promotion
and marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,

and depreciation and amortization expenses.

rOperating Expenses j
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Cost of Services
Cost of services consists mainly of costs associated with the
operation of subscriber management services, digitization,
uplink and related transmission expenses; in addition to program-
ming costs, including outsourcing fees related to the provision
of these senvices.

Subscriber management expenses include the operating
costs of our customer services, which are operated by a con-
solidated subsidiary, Data Network Center Corporation {("DNCC"),
and the cost of IC cards, which are installed in SKY PerfecTV/
STBs. Customer service costs are outsourcing expenses primarily
related to the operation of our subscriber management
system, invoicing expenses, etc. These costs generally vary with
the number of subscribers, the number of channels on our
platform, the frequency with which subscribers change their
program selections and the rate of churn.

Transmission-related expenses, including costs related to the
operation and maintenance of facilities for digitization, uplink
and related services, correlate closely with transmission-related
revenues and are primarily a factor of the number of channels
on the platform. Also included in transmission-related

expenses are communication expenses, including payments to
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ISAT in connection with the use of transponders to broadcast
our promotional channel and electronic program guide.
Programming costs primarily relate to the direct acquisition
of content for distribution to subscribers, such as Serie A,
Premiere League and UEFA Champions League broadcasts. As
we expand the scale of our content acquisition, these costs will
increase. Programming costs also include costs associated with
broadcasts of free programs on our promotional channel and

its electronic program guide.

Sales Promotion and Marketing Expenses

The largest component of sales promotion and marketing
expenses are usually subscriber acquisition costs. Subscriber
acquisition costs are comprised of subsidies paid to STB manu-
facturers, commissions and incentives paid to STB retailers,
and costs associated with advertising, in-store displays, direct
mailings and other promotional campaigns to encourage
potential customers to become SKY PerfecTV! subscribers. In
fiscal 2002, 2003 and 2004, our SAC per subscriber was
approximately ¥30,677, ¥30,505 and ¥34,680, 48.5% of
which was production and sales incentives paid to STB manu-

facturers and retailers.
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The amount of sales incentives paid to STB manufacturers
or retailers is determined by the number of new subscriptians.
SAC is recovered over time as we generate monthly commis-
sion revenue based on subscription fees from subscribers.
However, all such costs are expensed in the year incurred, with
no portion being deferred. We are currently seeking to improve
the efficiency of our investment in subscriber acquisition by
flexibly responding to the competitive environment, STB price
trends and brand recognition. We advertise through terrestrial
television, radio and other media. In fiscal 2004, advertising
costs included in sales promotion and marketing expenses
were ¥5,559 million, representing 34.7% of sales promation
and marketing expenses. Sales promotion and marketing
expenses also include compensation expenses for personnel
engaged in sales and promotion activities. (From fiscal 2002,
we began to manage expenditures by setting an internal
ceiling for total marketing costs, including sales incentives, pro-
motional expenses, advertising expenses and the difference

between income and the cost of our own content.)

General and Administrative Expenses

The major components of general and administrative expenses
are personnel expenses (including wages, bonuses and benefits,
and employee retirement benefits), provision for doubtful

accounts and rent expense.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
related assets. Property acquired under capital leases is amortized
using the straight-line method over the lease term. A large
portion of our depreciation and amortization expenses are
related to property and eqguipment acquired under capital

leases, mainly broadcasting systems and related equipment.
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Comparison of Fiscal 2004 with Fiscal 2003

Revenues

Revenues in fiscal 2004 increased by ¥1,542 million, or 2.1%,
to ¥74,017 million from ¥72,475 million in fiscal 2003,
reflecting the 4.0% increase in individual subscribers from
3,182 thousand to 3,310 thousand during the same period,
including both SKY PerfecTV/ and SKY PerfecTv/110.

The increase in subscribers and revenue was supported by
aggressive advertising campaigns and other efforts to expand
the number of new subscribers, and measures to improve the
level of customer satisfaction, such as investment in popular con-
tents and strengthening program lineup. Advertising campaigns
included television commercials featuring Japan’s most popular
professional baseball players to promote our Camp Channel,
which offers information on events at Japanese professional
baseball spring training camps for a limited period at no charge
to subscribers. The Camp Channel was established to attract
new subscribers, and to prevent baseball fans from canceling
during the off-season. Other sales promotion activities included
the SKY PerfecTV! and Set campaign, which offered a ¥5,000
cash rebate to customers who purchased a television or DVD
recorder together with their STBs at the time of subscribing,
and the SKY PerfecTV/ installation support campaign, which
offered free antenna installation to customers who purchased
a STB at the time of subscribing.

Although the number of new subscribers was virtually
unchanged from the previous fiscal year, the number of total
subscribers increased as a result of the efforts described
above. As a result, subscriber-related revenues increased by
¥1,259 million, or 2.7%, to ¥48,608 million.

Transmission-related revenues were up ¥839 million, or
9.4%, to ¥9,768 million. This was primarily due to our March 1,
2004 merger with Plat One Corp, Ltd. ("Plat One") and to the
increased number of channels available to SKY PerfecTv/110.

Other fees and revenues were ¥15,641 million, representing

a decline from fiscal 2003 of ¥556 million, or 3.4%. This was

chiefly the result of the decrease of revenues from our own
programming due to the slowdown of soccer set subscribers in

the off-year between two world cups.

Expenses

Operating expenses climbed ¥2,655 million, or 3.9%, compared
with fiscal 2003 to ¥70,741 million, reflecting a rise in expenses
related to service expansion at OptiCast and other cost increases.
Cost of services rose ¥916 million, or 2.1% year on year due
primarily to the increase of channels and subscriber management
cost after the merger with Plat One.

Sales promotion and marketing expenses increased by
¥1,595 million. In the fiscal year under review, the Company
actively implemented varicus marketing strategies and cam-
paigns in an effort to increase subscribers, resulting in a rise in
marketing costs.

Consistent mainly with efforts to expand services at
OptiCast, general and administrative expenses increased ¥983
million, or 24.5%, compared with fiscal 2003, to ¥4,995 million.

Depreciation and amortization expenses were ¥5,723
million, a decrease of ¥839 million, or 12.8% compared with
fiscal 2003. This was attributed to the decrease of depreciation
expenses for broadcasting facilities.

Accounting for these factors, operating income in fiscal
2004 was ¥3,276 million, a decline of ¥1,113 million, or
25.4%, compared with the previous consolidated fiscal year.

Other income (expenses)—net in fiscal 2004 were 477
million. The Company benefited from efficient management of
surplus funds and investing activities. Interest income totaled
¥971 million while interest expenses were ¥358 million and
realized losses on derivatives-net were ¥221 million.

Net income before income taxes in fiscal 2004 was ¥3,753
million, a decrease of ¥336 million from the previous year.
Increased costs relating to the expansion of FTTH services and the
increase of sales promotion and marketing costs, particularly those

toward the fiscal year end, were major factors for the decrease,
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For fiscal 2004, net income fell ¥336 million, or 8.2% year

on vear to ¥3,753 million.

| Net Income (loss)
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Comparison of Fiscal 2003 with Fiscal 2002

Revenues

Revenues in fiscal 2003 increased by ¥2,101 million, or 3.0%,
to ¥72,475 million from ¥70,374 million in fiscal 2002,
reflecting the 6.4% increase in individual subscribers from
2,990 thousand to 3,182 thousand during the same period, ‘
including both SKY PerfecTV! and SKY PerfecTV/110, and the
increase in revenues from our own soccer-related content. The
net addition of individual subscribers declined slightly by 188
thousand in fiscal 2003.

Subscriber-related revenues, our largest source of revenue,
increased by ¥680 million, or 1.5%, to ¥47,349 million in
fiscal 2003, from ¥46,669 million in fiscal 2002.

Transmission-related rsvenues increased by ¥975 million,
or 12.3%, to ¥8,929 million in fiscal 2003, from ¥7,954
million in fiscal 2002. This mainly reflects the addition of channels
through the introduction of SKY PerfecTV/110 in July 2002.

Other fees and revenues increased by ¥446 million, or
2.8%, t0 ¥16,197 million in fiscal 2003, from ¥15,751 million in

fiscal 2002, reflecting growth in major content-related revenues.

SKY Perfect Communications

Expenses

The cost of senvices increased by ¥3,747 million, or 8.5%, to
¥43,092 million in fiscal 2003, from ¥39,345 million in fiscal
2002. This reflected an increased acquisitions of own contents
including UEFA Champions League, and increased other operating
costs such as program production costs.

Sales promotion and marketing expenses decreased by
¥20,689 million, or 58.9%, to ¥14,420 million in fiscal 2003,
from ¥35,109 million in fiscal 2002. This decrease was caused
by the absence of significant World Cup-related costs including
amortization of broadcasting rights in the previous year.

General and administrative expenses decreased by ¥2,278
million, or 36.2%, to ¥4,012 millicn in fiscal 2003, from ¥6,290
miflion in fiscal 2002. The decline was attributable to the
absence of a ¥612 million impairment loss recognized on goodwil
of Samurai TV Inc. (“SAMURAI") in the previous fiscal year, platform
operating fees paid in the previous fiscal year, and sundry
expenses related to the World Cup the previous fiscal year.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by ¥338
million, or 5.4%, to ¥6,562 million in fiscal 2003, from ¥6,224
million in fiscal 2002. The operating income in fiscal 2003 was
¥4,389 million, versus an operating loss of ¥16,594 million in
fiscal 2002, and represented the first time we have recorded
a profit since our establishment.

Other expenses—net in fiscal 2003 increased by ¥18 million,
or 6.4%, to ¥300 million from ¥282 million in fiscal 2002.
Interest income increased by ¥295 million, or 116.6%, to ¥548
million, from ¥253 million in fiscal 2002. Other factors include
dedlined interest expenses, increased foreign currency transac-
tion gains, increased realized losses on derivatives, decreased
expenses in minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries and
decreased equity in net income of an affiliated company.

Income before income taxes in fiscal 2003 improved by
¥20,965 million, as we recorded our first profit of ¥4,089 million,

compared to a pre-tax loss of ¥16,876 million in the previous
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fiscal year. Growth in revenues, particularly transmission-related
revenues, and significantly lower costs, particularly sales promotion
and marketing expenses, were the major factors behind the
sharp earnings recovery.

Net income was ¥4,089 million, again representing a sub-
stantial improvement of ¥20,965 million from the previous

fiscal year, and the first profit recorded since our establishment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principle needs for cash are associated with the financing
of working capital requirements, particularly costs associated with
subscriber acquisition, the operation and management of our
subscriber management system and its broadcasting system.
We will also need to finance the purchase of broadcasting
rights as we expand the acquisition of content.

We enter into contracts to purchase broadcasting rights to
certain programs, which obligate us to make future payments.
As of March 31, 2005, commitments on these contracts, of
which some are subject to reductions depending on certain
conditions, amounted to ¥9,409 million through 2008. Our
principle current commitments relate to UEFA Champions
League and MLB.

Our primary source of funds for capital requirements has
been financing activities. As of March 31, 2005, we had
approximately ¥32,239 million of cash and cash equivalents.

In fiscal 2004, there was a net inflow of cash from operating
activities of ¥7,262 million, down from ¥11,907 million the
previous fiscal year. This was due primarily to the fall in profit
before income taxes of ¥3,753 million, a drop of 336 million
from the previous fiscal year.

In fiscal 2004, cash flow used in investing activities was
¥7,089 million versus a cash inflow of ¥1,600 million in the
previous fiscal year. The net cash outflow was caused primarily by
expenditures of ¥7,783 million for upgrading encoders and other

transmission equipment and for FTTH business-related investment.

In fiscal 2004, net cash used in financing activities was
¥13,875 million, a decrease of ¥8,207 million in the previous
fiscal year. This was mainly due to the purchase of ¥9,318 worth
of treasury stock and the dividend payouts of ¥1,134 million.

Owing primarily to the negative figures for cash flow from
investing and financing activities, the balance of cash and cash
equivalents outstanding at the end of fiscal 2004 decreased by
¥13,702 million to ¥32,239 million, compared to ¥45,941

million in fiscal 2003.
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Shareholders’ Equity
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31, 2004 and 2005

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen : (Note 1)
2004 2005 2005
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIVAIENTS (NOTE 4) ... rmrirrirreerrinsereesssssssmssisssmess sttt ssssisesssese s ¥ 45941 ¥ 32,239 $ 300,681
THNIE ABPOSIES ....oovvvvcesseesiesesstssses e 888848 8RR RS 5 5 47
Shortterm iNVESIMENTS (INOTE 4) c.vcvuvvrcvecrivrrerecreresmiesseressmasmssismmssntassnimsssisosssssmonsssssasersesssmsessereenss 21,018 20,007 186,598
Accounts receivable (Notes 5 and 17):
TUAA ..ot ceevir s s s aasi s et R SRRt 6,994 7,610 70,975
BT seeeeesasssses st st 2,239 1,947 18,159
Allowance for doubtful r2ceivables (NOTE 3) v eeccrirrreemisimsesnrersrsisssmasssssssssmmresses (312) (256) (2,388)
Broadcasting fights (NOTE 1) ...cccoieceerrmecenmnsssimsssrerscsonneessesssssissesessisssessssseossasessssere e 3,242 3,529 32,914
Other current assets (Notes 8, 10 and 17) 3,229 3,619 33,753
TOUAI CUIMTEME BSSEES...evre et e o85S 82,356 68,700 640,739
Investments:
Investments in affiliated coMPanies (NOLE 5) .oooeveeecvvvrriiereressmreces s sssessesssssessesssecvcsese 417 12 112
Oher INVESIMENS (NOTE ) co.rvrrercecrrrrrereerrrererereereseascee s e sessesesessess esssesssseesesess eessaess ersssssosssosssrmsssessseesssees 31,538 29,966 279,481
TOTAl INVESIMIENIS ..ottt ecttteeeeestteess et ssss s ssts e s s teons e emts sttt s teees st 31,955 29,978 279,593
Property and equipment, net (NOtes 6, 7 aNd 17) e ecranmsesesssesesssssseicsenes 20,810 25,742 240,086
Other assets (NOtES 8, 10 aNA 11w eeoeseee e e 2,209 6,963 64,941
TOTAI ovvvvraivveeeseeesrissee s eeas sttt 1Bt ¥137,330 ¥131,383 $1,225,359

See notes to consolidated financial staternents.
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Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2004 2005 2005
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt (Note 9) cooveverremnseririreerennns - ¥ 225 $ 2,098
Lease obligations—current Portion (NOLE 7). ... ..o sserssssaseeresssmressesseesesss s ¥ 3,828 2,461 22,953
Accounts payable (NOE 17) . nsssssessns et 1,749 1,066 9,942
Accrued expenses (Notes 5 and 17): :
COMMIMTUSSIONS . vvvvvee v sesri b st b s ettt a8 saa b0 1,351 1,436 13,393
@1 1T OO OO OOV 8,196 8,376 78,120
SUDSCTIPHON fEES TECEIVEU. 1vver s rerveeies st rmiss s osress st sess s sessssss e 12,650 12,364 115,315
Other current NabIES (INGLE 17) oottt 1,779 2,284 21,302
TOA) CUITENT HADIIIES ettt eeees ittt ss st e 29,553 28,212 263,123
Long-term liabilities:
LONGEIM DY (INOE D) ovvvileversimineceresesesmsins e snesssssssmess s st st nsesscns 5 1,129 10,530
LEase OBNGAtIONS (NOE 7) wuovvvvvreosurssvs e ssssssse s sscssessssssstoss s sssisesesssss e 7,247 6,092 56,818
LONBEIM PAYBDIES ..o et et tsse bt 1,201 786 7,331
Liability for severance payments (NOTE 1 1) e sssssesmassrssscsssessssssessss 443 586 5,465
Other iabilities (INOE TO) oo s s sssssa s esesss st 1,341 2,919 27,224
Total IONGAEIM TADIHIES wovvvevriorererereees st st sssessesss s esresnsere o 10,237 11,512 107,368
VIINOTItY INEEIESES ... st 2,186 2,815 26,254
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 19)
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 12, 13 and 14):
COMIMION STOCK wvotrevevverese e erereseses e ees st e e se s a8t e ser s e s st bsme e eee st sttt 50,014 50,037 466,676
authorized—3,200,000 shares
issued,
2004—2,267,608 shares
2005-2,268,509 shares
CAPHBI SUIPIUS. .. vvvvvooevee s rverrevesree e st 038R 43,976 43,999 410,362
Retained earmings sinCe APl 1, 2003 .......omwrreceeiiseseis s ssses oo ssesessesssss 2,038 4,657 43,434
UNrealized 10SSES 0N SECUMIES .o e ssssssssms st sssssss s sss s (526) (546) (5,093)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives (148) 15 140
Total accumulated other COMPIENENSIVE 10SS .u.uvvvivrurmimrisrersirsiserersmssesssessessssssmsseessessessas (674) (531) (4,953)
Treasury stock, at cost, 105,372 shares at March 31, 2005 ..o - (9,318) (86,905)
Total Shareholdrs” EQUILY ...t escose s issces s 95,354 88,844 828,614
TOMAL. et s s b b ¥137,330 ¥131,383 $1,225,359
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2003 2004 2005 2005
Revenues (Notes 5 and 17) .................................................... ¥ 70374 ¥ 72475 ¥ 74,017 $690,328
Operating expenses:
Cost of services (NOteS 5 @NA 17) oo eesssesssernnr s 39,345 43,092 44,008 410,446
Sales promotion and marketing expenses
(NOES 17 @NA 18) et s sissrmssssssssessssssaranes 35,109 14,420 16,015 149,366
General and administrative expenses (NOte 18) ... mmimmmnininn 6,290 4,012 4,995 46,586
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Notes 6 and 7). 6,224 6,562 5,723 53,376
Total operating expenses 68,086 70,741 659,774
Operating iNCOME (I0SS) .-...ccuvrrierevcrrrnseeereccessmrmseeressssesssereessssssesssssssesssseson 4,389 3,276 30,554
Other income (expenses):
[MEETEST IMTOMIE v rvverveereerrasseessesesessesissssssssssesessssesssssssassssmsssssssssss s 253 548 971 9,056
INEEIEST EXPENSES .....oovoeeeovcvvssrsssens sssssssssssssmssssssasssmssssssssstasssss s s (583) (463) (358) (3,339)
Other—net (NOE 15) . coceeereresisminsseressmissssssssissssssssscssssssinsseossssiases 48 (385) (136) (1,268)
Other income (expenses)—net.. (282) (300) 477 4,449
Net iNCOME (10SS) .........oocoocoecivrvienrscccisiirins s s ¥ (16,876) ¥ 4,089 ¥ 3,753 $ 35,003
Yen U.S. Dollars
2003 2004 2005 2005
Per share of common stock (Note 16):
Net income (105S) Per Share —basiC........ccmeerermemmesceeeemmmmseeessssssrnse ¥ (7,542.98) ¥ 1,825.39 ¥ 1,656.50 $ 15.45
[T c=Ta B (7,542.98) 1,823.59 1,655.22 15.44
2003 2004 2005
2,237,312 2,240,073 2,265,614
2,237,312 2,242 283 2,267,371

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

Millions of Yen

Accumulated
Other
Common Capital Retained Earnings  Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Surplus (Accumulated Income (Loss) Stock
(Note 12) (Notes 12 and 13) Deficit) (Note 12) (Note 12) Total
Balance at April 1, 2002 meeenerercsisissssssseeressisssnnnn ¥139,460 ¥ 73,846 ¥(108,206) - —  ¥105,100
Exercise of warrants............ 2 2 — — - 4
Stock-based compensation - 109 — - - 109
Comprehensive income:
INET TOSS ..o rrerersrmeesessssresse s eesssssseseesnsssseeesressens — — (16,876) - - (16,876)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gains on SECUMLIES ..ocvvrvecenrnecrnssersrvernenn - - - ¥ 140 - 140
Unrealized losses on derivatives ... — - - (18) - (18)
Total comprehensive loss.............. - — — — - (16,754)
Balance at March 371, 2003 ......cocomoieeeereesvesssismeereseennes 139,462 73,957 (125,082) 122 - 88,459
EXercise of Warrants ..o iececcviviec s eesssssssssasss s 14 14 - - - 28
Stock-based COMPEeNSation .....ooecoeeiceccoseeeceicc s — 20 - — - 20
Transfer to capital SUMDIUS .oovvvoocccoeveeececeeeeecsssssseeese s (27,209) 27,209 - — - -
Reclassification of deficit (62,253) (60,778) 123,031 - — -
Issuance of common stock for acquisition of
Plat ONne (NOIE 2) oo e - 3,554 - - - 3,554
Comprehensive income:
NEE INCOME oot et eees s e — — 4,083 — - 4,083
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized [0SS€S ON SECUMHES ..vvvvvveveeevvvvrecneeeeeesirennonns - — - (666) - (666)
Unrealized losses on derivatives... - - - (130) - (130)
Total comprehensive INCOME ... cssnninesonn - — — — — 3,293
Balance at March 31, 2004 .........cvveveeeeoeeesreeeeeeeeereesseveeeeeee 50,014 43976 2,038 (674) - 95,354
EXercise Of WarrantS ... s 23 23 - - - 46
Comprehensive income:
NEE TNCOME et eeeesmese et seeesserssseeeeesmsseseeeees — — 3753 — - 3,753
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized losses on SECUMIES ..ovmureceerrmnsssrersisinns - - - (20) - (20)
Unrealized gains on derivatives.........occmccceconne - - - 163 - 163
Total comprehensive INCOME ........ccvecernececrssnissirnns - - - - - 3,896
Payment of cash dividends, ¥500 per share ... — - (1,1349) - — (1,134)
Purchase of treasury stock — - - ¥(9,318) (8,318)
Balance at March 31, 2005 ¥ 43,999 ¥ 4,657 ¥(531) ¥(9,318) ¥ 88,844
Thousands of U.S.Dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated
Other
Common Capital Retained Eamings ~ Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Surplus (Accumulated income (Loss) Stock
(Note 12) (Notes 12 and 13) Deficit) (Note 12) (Note 12) Total
Balance at March 31, 2004 ... . e $466,461 $410,147 $ 19,008 $(6,286) — $889,330
EXErCISE OF WAIMANTS ......oovveeeooerevsirismeessessssessssomsssssseene e seemssesnssonns 215 215 - — — 430
Comprehensive income:
NELINCOMIE et tses e st sesssssse - - 35,003 - - 35,003
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized losses on securities — - — (187) - (187)
Unrealized gains on derivatives - — - 1,520 — 1,520
Total comprehensive INCOME .ouuvv.vcemrreeessimssrnrressssssenes - - — - 36,336
Cash dividends, $4.66 per share..........onmeccenssience - - (10,577) - — (10,577)
Purchase of treasury StOCK w.....cooeevvreererisrvsvssseessessesstmnnsennn - — — — $(86,905)  (86,905)
Balance at March 31, 2005 ..o oo $466,676  $410,362 $ 43,434 $(4,953) $(86,905) $828,614

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2003 2004 2005 2005

Operating activities:
NEEINCOME (0S5) sorveveersomerscmsmsssesessssosesesessetesssmeesresssissssieseseses ¥(16,876) ¥ 4089 ¥ 3,753 $ 35,003
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to ‘

net cash provided by (usec in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amOriZalion ... .. remmmmmcesermnsssnssesecers 6,224 6,562 5,723 53,376

IMPAIMMENT 0SS coovvvvve v crrserererressrseesrereserssnrees 612 - - -

Provision for doubtful acCounts ... eevernnrenes 287 229 17 1,595

Loss on property and equipment—net... 136 103 65 606

OHNET ..ottt s s s 10 625 359 3,348

Changes in assets and liabilities:

ACCOUNTS TECRIVADIE. ..cooresc v crereraee s s st s oreesssssssess s esnnsins (1,148) 1,144 592 5,521
Broadeasting MGhS ..o (337) (1,089) (209) (1,949)
OET CUMEML SSETS.....vcvvrrresssssssssasscssssressssssissssiasssss sesssssssesessssssimsscsissrasecesse 10,237 (554) (1,053) (9,821)
Long-term advance payment for broadcasting rights ... (349) ~ - -~
ORET BSSELS oottt (103) (714) (1,124) (10,483)
Accounts payable ... 226 (249) (1,339) (12,487)
ACCIUET EXPENSES ..o ccssissssisssss s sosssss st ssesese s (3,849) 725 175 1,632
SUDSCHPLION fEES rECEIVEd oo rerrsseversrers s enesssenseesss 995 223 (286) (2,667)
Other cUMENt HADIIES ...cvvevvrereisormrmernrenmrecsssisssssmassesiresessessssesssesesmmmesesess 454 642 (285) (2,658)
Other HADIHIES . .ovvvvoevceeeveveves s sssssssmsssss s sasssssss s 157 171 720 6,715

Net cash provided by (used in) operating aCtivities............ccmmerne (3,324) 11,907 7,262 67,730

Investing activities:

Purchases of property and QUIPMENT ... vmmmemmiemrsrennssrssssseres (8,126) (3,105) (8,152) (76,031)

Proceeds from sales of property and equipment ..o ennmenneen 5615 322 152 1,418

Investment in affiliated COMPANIES ... v s ssemreesesees -~ (92) (858)

Purchases of short-term investments (14,886) (14,462) {134,882)

Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments.............ceereen 12,136 23,036 29,324 273,494

Purchases of Other INVESIMENS oo (27,356) (13,528) (17,659) (164,699)

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash and cash equivalent of ¥796 . - — (2,712) (25,294)

Proceeds from sales and redemption of other investments. 1,085 3,199 6,404 59,728

Refund of iMe dePOSHS ...covcvvrrer e sescsssssenene 48354 5,020 3,000 27,980

Payments fOr tiMe dePOSIES ...cvcvvmmmimrenrerenscrssensmeimissessss s sesmmsesesess {20,000) - (4,000) (37,306)

Purchase of @ CUITENCY SWAP ASSEL couuumrruviirrerereesmsmsssssosissessssssssissssssmsscseees (2212) - - -

010 (247) 1,542 1,108 10,334

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .......wmmrmiene. (11,828) 1,600 (7,089) (66,116)
Financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock,

Net Of StOCK ISSUANCE COSturvrvrererrerervremerverersmessrsessresssessssmessssmsessesssssmssesiresenns 3 29 46 430
DIVIAENAS PAIT ... ocercreeeeecsesmeeevecessesereeeesesiseessess s cresessmsess s secnsscnsssineres — - (1,134) (10,577)
PUIChase Of treaSUMY SLOCK ... i resssenermesssmesmsesersenssesmsessisessseens - - (9.318) (86,905)
Payments of Iong-term payables........... s eesecnssineees (665) 2,111) (515) . (4.803)
Payments of lease obligations under capital l€ase ... (3,779) (3,586) (2,959) (27,598)
0 10T OSSOSO — - 5 46

Net cash used in fiNaNCNg aCHIVIHES .v.vvveuieeerirmrerereessssmsssessssesesessens (4,447) (5,668) (13,875) (129,407)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents................. (107) Q) - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ... (19,700) 7,838 (13,702) (127,793)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ... 57,803 38,103 45,941 428,474
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ... ¥ 38,103 ¥ 45,941 ¥ 32,239 $ 300,681
Supplemental information:
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest ¥ 583 ¥ 463 ¥ 358 $ 3,339
Acquisitions of assets by entering into capital leases 7,493 289 495 4,617
Acquisition of a business by exchange of shares (Note 2)

Fair value of assets aCqUIred.....o e - 7,354 - -

Fair value of iabillies assUMEd . ... sssssrsseon - 3,800 - -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

, Basis of financial statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which
O SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (the “Company”) is incorporated and operates. The U.S. dollar amounts included herein
] ) represent a translation using the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2005 of ¥107.22= US$1 solely for convenience.
Basis of Presentation The translation should not be construed as a representation that the yen amounts have been, could have been, or could
and Summary of in the future be converted into U.S. dollars.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("generally accepted accounting principles”). Effect has been given in the consolidated
Policies financial statements to adjustments which have not been entered in the general books of account of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the "Companies”) maintained in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan. The principal adjustments include thase relating to (1) accounting for leases, (2) accounting for derivative instruments
and hedging activities, and (3) business combinations, including valuation of goodwill. -

Significant Accounting

Nature of operations

The Company was founded in November 13894 (originally as DMC Planning Inc.) and started its operation in 1996. The
Company provides platform service to broadcasters and subscribers in Japan as SKY PerfecTV/ with regard to satellite
digital multichannel broadcasting service using satellites mainly operated by JSAT Corporation ("JSAT").

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated finandial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Significant accounting palicies applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements are
summarized below.

Consolidation and investments in affiliated companies
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries.
Investments in affiliated companies (companies owned 20% to 50% and corporate joint ventures) are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting. The excess of the cost of the investment in subsidiaries and affiliated companies over
the equity in the net assets at the date of acquisition is tested at least annually for impairment in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No.142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue recognition
The Companies’ platform service for subscriber management operations relates to the Companies’ service for invoicing
and collecting fees, such as subscription fees and registration fees, from the subscribers on behalf of broadcasters. The
Companies' commission revenue from this service is recorded during the period in which the monthly invoicing and collection
service are performed.

The Companies’ service also includes transmission of programs to the satellites operated by JSAT. Revenue from
such service is recognized as service is rendered.

The Companies’ revenue includes fees from programs procured directly by the Companies and broadcast through
affiliates, sub-license fees and royalty payments. Revenue is recorded when the programs are broadcasted.

Sales promotion and marketing expenses
Sales promotion and marketing expenses, including subsidies 1o STB manufacturers, commissions and incentives to ST8
retailers, promotion costs and advertising costs, are charged to expense as incurred.

Segment information

The management measures the Companies’ business as a single segment which provides platform senvice relating to satellite
digital multichannel broadcasting. The Companies operate their business only in Japan and their long-lived assets are located
in Japan. The information about major customers for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 is described in Note 5.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, deposits in banks including short-term time deposits, and short-term
investments, generally with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible into cash and have no
significant risk of change in value.

Short-term investments and other investments
Short-term investments are debt securities with maturities within one year. Other investments are investments in non-traded
and unaffiliated companies and debt securities with maturities of over one year.

The Company classifies its debt securities as held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost. Available-for-sales securities are carried at fair value with a corresponding
recognition of unrealized holding gains or losses (net of tax) in other comprehensive income. Investments in nontraded
and unaffiliated companies are stated at cost. If an other-than-temporary impairment of these investments is considered
to have occurred, the cost basis of the individual security is written down to equity in net assets of the investee.

The cost of securities sold is determined based on the moving average-cost method.
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Allowance for doubtful receivables
An allowance for doubtful receivables is estimated based on the Companies' past credit loss experience and an evaluation
of potential losses in receivables outstanding. ¢

Broadcasting rights
The Companies purchase rights relating to broadcasting of programs which are capitalized and amortized based on the
number of showings.

Depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation of property

and equipment is computed principally using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of related assets.

Property under capital leases is amortized using the straight-line method over the lease terms. Computer software is

recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and is amortized on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives.
Estimated useful lives for property, equipment and computer software are as follows:

Leasehold improvements . i 3to 18 Years
Machinery and equUiPMENt ..cwerrmmcrerisnen 210 9 Years
Furniture, fixtures and others e, 3 10 20 Years

Computer software 2to 5 Years

The cost and accumulated depreciation for property and equipment sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of are
relieved from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are reflected in income.

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used are reviewed for impairment based on undiscounted
future cash flow whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. If the sum of the expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment
loss is recognized based on discounted value of cash flows,

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of business over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired.
Goodwill with indefinite lives are not amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with
SFAS No.142. .

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No.142, on April1, 2002 in its entirety with the exception of the
immediate adoption of the provision related to goodwill acquired after June 30, 2001, In accordance with the statement,
goodwill acquired in a business combination for which the acquisition date was after June 30, 2001 has not been amortized
since the acquisition.

Income taxes

The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under
this method, deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of (1) temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes, and (2)
operating loss and tax credit caryforwards. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized
in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recognized for any portion of the
deferred tax assets where it is considered more likely than not that it will not be realized.

Severance indemnities plans

The Companies have unfunded severance indemnities plan covering substantially all employees, other than employees
seconded from the shareholders and directors. The costs of the severance indemnities plan are accrued based on
amounts determined using actuarial methods.

Stock-based compensation

As allowed under the provisions of SFAS No.123, “Accounting for Stock- Based Compensation”, the Company has
elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No.25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and
related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation plans. Under the intrinsic value-based method,
compensation cost is measured as the amount by which the quoted market price of the Compary's stock at the date of
grant exceeds the stock option exercise price and is expensed over the vesting period.

Derivative Financial Instruments
All derivatives, including certain derivative financial instruments embedded in other contracts, are recognized as either
assets or liabilities in the balance sheet at fair value.

In accordance with SFAS No.133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended by
SFAS No.138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities - an Amendment of FASB
statement No.133" and SFAS No.149,"Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities’,
the derivative financial instruments held by the Company are classified and accounted as below.

Cash flow hedges—

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and effective as cash flow hedges for forecasted transactions and firm
commitments are initially recorded in other comprehensive income and reclassified into eamings when the hedged
transactions affect eamings. Changes in the fair value of the ineffective portion, if any are recognized in current period eamings.
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Derivatives not designated as hedges—
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges under SFAS No.133 are recognized in curent
period earnings.

The Company formally documents all hedging relationships between the derivatives designated as hedges and
hedged itemns, as well as its risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking hedging activities. The Company
also assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and periodically on an on-going basis, whether the derivatives that are
designated as cash flow hedges are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items. When it is determined
that derivatives are not highly effective as hedges, the Company discontinues hedge accounting.

Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are stated at the amount as computed by using year-end exchange rates and the
resulting transaction gain or loss is recognized in earnings.

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share
Basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares

" of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted net income (loss) per share assumes the dilution that could occur

if securities or other contracts to issue common stock resulted in the issuance of such common stock.

In calculating diluted net loss per share, common equivalent shares, composed of incremental common shares
issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants, are not included in diluted net loss per share for the year
ended March 31, 2003 because such shares would be antidilutive.

(3) NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached another consensus on Issue 03-01 which presents the guidance
for the assessment of other-than-temporary impairment. The guidance should be used to determine whether the impairment
of an investment is other-than-temporary and provides 3 steps for assessment. The guidance is applicable for invest-
ments in debt and equity securities that are within the scope of SFAS No.115, and cost method equity investments. The
investor should make an evidenced-based judgment about a market price recovery of an investment by considering the
severity (extent to which fair value is below cost) and the duration (period of time that a security has been impaired) of
the impairment in refation to the forecasted market price recovery. An other-than-temporary impairment should be recognized
in earnings in an amount equal to the difference between the investments's adjusted cost basis and its fair value at the
balance sheet date of the reporting period for which the assessment is made. The guidance is requited to be applied for
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2004. The adoption of the guidance will not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.153, “Exchange of Nonmonetary Assets—an amendment of APB
Opinion No.29". SFAS No.153 eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of similar
productive assets in paragraph 2 1(b) of APB Opinion No. 29, "Accounting for Nonmontary Transactions,” and replaced it
with an exception for exchanges that do not have commercial substance. SFAS No.153 specifies that a nonmonetary
exchange has commerdial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result
of the exchange. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company is in the
process of determining the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No.153 will have on the consolidated financial position
or results of operations.

in December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No.123R. SFAS123R is a revision of SFAS No.123, and supersedes APB
No. 25 and its related implementation guidance. SFAS No.123R focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in
which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS No. 123R requires a public entity
to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date
fair value of the award with limited exceptions. That cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is
required to provide services in exchange for the award. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June
15, 2005. The Company is in the process of determining the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS No.123R will have on
the consolidated financial position or results of operations.

(4) RECLASSIFICATION
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

.
Business Acquisition

On January 9, 2004, the Company signed the merger agreement with Plat One Corp., Ltd. ("Plat One"), which was a CS
110 digital platform service provider, Under the agreement, Plat One shareholders received 0.165 shares of the
Company’s common stock for each share of Plat One stock. The Company and Plat One obtained third party valuations
of the respective share prices which were used as a basis in negotiating the share exchange ratio.

On March 1, 2004, the Company merged with Plat One, and issued 29,700 shares of common stock, in the
amount of ¥3,554 million based on the quoted market price over a reasonable period of time before and after the terms
of the acquisition were agreed and announced.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date

of acquisition:

Current assets OO OO ¥4,089
Investments 68
Property and equipment 1,397

Qther assets.......
Total assets acquired .......

Current liabilities ............
Long-term liabilities ......

Total liabilities assumed
INEE SSEE ACGUITEA .. oovev v sess et et et ke e R e i

The merger was accounted for using the purchase method.

On a pro forma basis, revenue, net income and the per share information of the Companies with the assumed date
of acquisition of April 1, 2002 and 2003, would not differ materially from the amounts reported in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2003 and 2004.

Please see Note 5 in accordance with acquisition of the new affiliated companies.

)

Do

Allowance for Doubtful
Receivables

Changes in the allowance for doubtful receivables for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

2004 2005 2005
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 382 ¥ 312 $2,910
Provision for doubtful accounts 287 229 185 1,726
increase in allowance related to purchase of subsidiaries.......... - — 6 56
Charge offs . (319) (299) (247) (2,304)
Balance at end of year . ¥382 ¥312 ¥ 256 $2,388

Al
O
Investments in
Securities

The cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and fair value of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities,
which include cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and other investments at March 31, 2004 and 2005
were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Cross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value
2004
Available-for-sale:

DIEDL SELUMIES ...vvvevvvvvrreveesssesiercrmsemsses st sessssissssssssssssesecssssssesasios ¥56,493 ¥293 ¥ 817 ¥55,969
TOMAL oottt seees bbb ess st et s ¥56,493 ¥293 ¥ 817 ¥55,969
2005
Available-for-sale:

DIEDE SECUMES .ot ttsevs et srs oo ess s seeeass s sssnesoe ¥46,541 ¥ 27 ¥1,261 ¥45,307

200 688 - 888
46,741 715 1,261 46,195
Held-to-maturity:

Debt securities 12,602 17 55 12,564

¥59,343 ¥732 ¥1,316 ¥58,759

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Lass Value
2005
Available-for-sale:
Debt securities .. . $434,070 $ 252 $11,761 $422,561
Equity securities 1,865 6,417 - 8,282
Total v, 435,935 6,669 11,761 430,843
Held-to-maturity:
DIEDE SECUMIES 1ovvvvvevvveresmssssssesises s ssissstsmnsmsisassssssssoesssste s nssnes 117,534 159 513 117,180
e = LU OO $553,469 $6,828 $12,274 $548,023
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The carrying amounts of available-for-sale securities (commercial paper and other debt securities), with original
maturities of three months or less, and included in cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were
¥5,011 million and ¥11,010 million ($102,686 thousand) at March 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

The gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments in securities, and the length of time that individual investments
in securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Uarealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

2004 ‘
Available-for-sale:

Debt securities ¥11,856 ¥817 — - ¥11856 ¥ 817

Total....... ¥11,956 ¥817 — — ¥11956 ¥ 817
2005
Available-for-sale:

Debt SECUMTES. ..oocosrve e - - ¥9,512 ¥1,261 ¥ 9,512 ¥1,261
Held-to-maturity:

Debt securities ¥ 6,023 ¥ 55 - - 6,023 55

¥ 6,023 ¥ 55 ¥9,512 ¥1,261 ¥15,535 ¥1,316
Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized ) Unrealized Unreslized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
2005
Available-for-sale:
DEDL SECUMMIES. .vvvvvvvvvrereeerssssrensscsssessssn - - $88,715 511,761 $ 88,715 811,761
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities.... $56,174 $513 - - 56,174 513

$56,174 $513 $88,715 $11,761 $144,889 $17,774

The Company's portfolio of debt securities which are in unrealized loss positions consist of 8 and 14 debt instruments
at March 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The unrealized losses were mainly the result of interest rate increases. Since
the Company has the ability to hold these investments until a recovery of fair value, the Company does not consider
these investments to be cther-than-temporarily impaired.

The aggregate cost of the Company's cost methad investments totaled ¥1,079 million ($10,063 thousand) at March
31, 2005. The Company has not identified any events or changes in circumstances that would suggest an impairment in
value of its cost method investments.

Contractual maturities of debt securities as of March 31, 2005 were as follows:’

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
Available-for-sale:
Within one year ¥29,009 $270,556
After one year through five years 4,000 37,306
After five years 12,298 114,699
TOAN ovevvverreseesaessssas st e e b RS e e 0 ¥45,307 $422,561
Held-to-maturity:
WVIERIN O VBT 1ot e ¥ 2,008 $ 18,728

After one year through five years 3,574 33,333
After five years 65,473

o)1 PSS $117,534

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities and gross realized gains and losses that have been included in
eamings as a result of those sales for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of

Mitlions of Yen US. Dollars

2004 2005 2005
Proceeds from sales ¥2,199 ¥17,237 $160,763
Gross realized gains........ 79 199 355 3,31
GrosS rAlIZEA I0SSES....oovevvvvrieseeeeeseccsssisssassveresssesstsenssessnsseseren - - 183 1,707
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]
Investments in and
Transactions with
Affiliated Companies

In March 2005, the Company's ownership interest in Pay Per View Japan, Inc. (“PPVJ"), a broadcaster operating under
the pay per view billing system for programs purchased for viewing, was increased from 20% to 65% by additional purchase.
As a result, PPVJ become a majority-owned subsidiary of the Company and is included in the Company'’s consalidation.

Prior to the acquisition, the Company had revenue transactions with PPVJ for the years ended March 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005 amounting to ¥10,077 million, ¥11,753 million and ¥11,773 ($109,802 thousand), respectively. Such
revenue includes subscription fees for the programs the Company directly procured and broadcasted through PPVJ as an
agent amounting to ¥7,030 million, ¥8,852 million and ¥7,000 million ($65,286 thousand) for the years ended March
31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Cost of services amounted to ¥320 million, ¥782 million and ¥91 1million (§8,497 thousand) for the years ended
March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The balances as a result of these transactions at March 31, 2004 were
¥1,369 million of accounts receivable and ¥99 million of accrued expenses, respectively. Revenues from PPVJ for fiscal
2002, 2003 and 2004 accounted for 10% or more of the Companies’ revenues.

Summarized financial information of PPVJ as of and for the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2005 are presented
below. As to 2005, the balance sheet information was at the date of acquisition and the operations information was
prior to the acquisition.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2004 2005 2005
CUITENT @SSELS ..ot ereseseeeceseeess e reeesesees st st sese st s88 1o et seeseasas o st senene ¥1.028 ¥1,030 $ 9,606
Non-current assets... 703 676 6,305

Total assets ¥1,706 $15,911
Current liabilities ¥ 960 $ 8,954
Long-term liabilities 30 3 289
Shareholders’ equity 613 715 6,668
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ¥1,706 $15,911
Revenues ¥3,669 $34,219
Net income ¥ 104 $ 970

The Company has a 32.26% of interest in System Create Inc. (“SystemCreate”), which operates CD-ROM distribution
and system development.

On October 17, 2001, the Company acquired an 80.25% interest in Samurai TV Inc. ("SAMURAI"), a broadcaster
operating FIGHTING TV SAMURAI! the special TV channel for wrestling and martial arts, for ¥700 million in order to boost
the Company's services in the field of sports media. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method and
the results of SAMURAI have been included in the Company's consolidated results from the date of acquisition. On
March 31, 2003, the excess of cost over net assets acquired of ¥612 million was recognized as an impairment loss in
accordance with SFAS No.142 since SAMURAI recorded higher operating losses than expected in fiscal 2002. The fair
value was estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows.

On June 2, 2003, the Company established OptiCast Inc. ("OptiCast”), a 100% owned subsidiary, to provide services
as a broadcaster over Fiber To The Home. On January 31, 2005, OptiCast acquired a 66.67% interest in Information
Network Koriyarma Inc., (“INK"), a development for CATV business in Koriyama City in Fukushima, on January 31, 2005.

To extend the Company’'s service areas, the Company acquired a 77.29% interest in Cable Television Adachi
Corporation ("CTA"), which provides CATV services to the Adachi area in Tokyo, for ¥3,508 million ($32,718 thousand)
on March 22, 2005. This acquisition was accounted for under purchase method and the results have been included in
the Company's consolidated results since acquisitions.

The purchase price of CTA was determined based on estimated future cash flows that CTA is expected to generate.
The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired was recorded goodwill. In connection with this
acquisition, ¥2,106 million (319,642 thousand) was assigned to goodwill.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
CUTTENE @SSELS caovevveeecrrerer s esssss s sssssssens v ¥1,152 $10,744
Non-current assets... 4,509 42,054
Goodwill 2,106 19,642
Total assets acquired 7,767 72,440
Current liabilities........ 1,164 10,856
Long-term liabilities.. 2,682 25,024
Total liabilities assumed.. 3,847 35,880
Minority interest 412 3,842
NEE GSSEE BTGUITE 1rrvrveeveerreaesvesecvessssmee st oot sms e s sss s s st s s ¥3,508 $32,718

The Company established SKY Perfect Well Think Co,, Ltd. ("SPWT"), a2 100% owned subsidiary in July, 2004, and
SKYPerfect Marketing, Co., Ltd. ("SPMC"), 50% owned joint venture with JSAT in February, 2005, respectively. Both are
included in the Company’s consolidation.
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Property and equipment at March 31, 2004 and 2005 consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
Q O 2004 2005 2005
Leasehold improvements ¥ 2,668 ¥ 3,066 $ 28,595
Pr0|-)erty and Machinery and equipment. 26,041 20,133 187,773
Equipment Furniture, fixtures and others.. 4,430 12,769 119,092
Computer software .. 8374 6,356 59,280
41,513 42,324 394,740
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 20,703 16,582 154,654
Property and eqUIPMENT—NEL......cc.ccormecemrimencries s s ¥20,810 ¥25,742 $240,086
Property and equipment include capitalized leases as described in Note 7.
Capital leases—The Companies lease certain assets, principally subscriber management systems, broadcasting systems
and related equipment, which are classified as capital leases. Included in property and equipment were the following
assets held under capital leases:
0 Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Leases 2004 2005 2005
Machinery and equipment ¥19,674 ¥11,252 $104,943
Furniture, fixtures and others.. 3,404 3,390 31,617
..................................................... - 23,078 14,642 136,560
12,862 7,015 65,426
Capital 188SE ASSEISTNEL ..uvvvsocrccomireersirerrssimesnsissesissssrsssssesssessessasssssssssssssssssseses ¥10,116 ¥ 7,627 $ 71,134

Amortization of capitalized assets for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were ¥3,752 million,
¥3,451 million and ¥2,740 million ($25,555 thousand), respectively.

Operating leases—The Companies lease certain office space and office equipment under cancelable and non-cancelzble
lease agreements.
At March 31, 2005, future lease payments under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
Capital Operating Capital Operating
Leases Leases Leases Leases

Year ending March 31:

¥27 $25,322 $252

10 22,169 93

4 22,757 37

2 13,095 19

1 1,212 9

- 9 —

Total minimum lease payments.... ¥44 $84,564 $410
Less amounts representing interest 514 4,793
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments .. 8,553 79,771
Less current portion 22,953
Non-current $56,818

Rental expenses under cancelable operating leases for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were
¥1,542 million, ¥1,403 million and ¥1,437 million ($13,402 thousand), respectively.
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S

O
Other Current Assets
and Other Assets

Other current assets and other assets at March 31, 2004 and 2005 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of ven U.S. Dollars

2004 2005 2005

Other current assets;

Prepaid expenses ¥2,081 $19,409
Currency swap agreements. 319 2,975
1,219 11,369
¥3,619 $33,753

Other assets:
Rental deposits ¥1,380 $12,871
Broadcasting right—non current.. . 500 200 1,865
GOOAWHl oo - 2,363 22,039
Prepaid expense—non current 220 2,545 23,736
. 472 475 4,430
. ¥2209 ¥6,963 $64,941

J c
Short-term Borrowings
and Long-term Debt

Short-term borrowings, excluding the current portion of long-term debt, at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millioris of Yen USs. Dollars
2004 2005 2005
- ¥70 $653

— ¥70 $653

The weighted average annual interest rates on short-term bank loans at March 31, 2005 was 1.86%.
The Company has bank overdraft (borrowings) agreements with certain Japanese banks for which the unused
balance at March 31, 2005 was ¥5,000 million ($46,633 thousand).
Long-term debt at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2004 2005 2005

Covernment-owned bank,maturing serially through 2016
annual interest of 0% - ¥ 571 $ 5325
Adachi-ku, maturing serially through 2015 annual interest of 0%...... - - 708 6,603
Bond, due July 2005.. ¥5 5 47
o] 5 1,284 11,975
Less current portion 155 1,445
Long-term debt, 1SS CUMTENEt POTHION ......c.cccccrriiveeeecr et sesseeesssssesnsecnses ¥5 ¥1,129 $10,530

The annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Year ending March 31:

2006 ¥ 155 $ 1,445
2007 .. 150 1,399
150 1,399
150 1,399
150 1,399
529 4,934
TOUBL ettt e s e e ¥1,284 $11,975

J.

Income Taxes

The Companies are subject to a number of different income taxes, which, in the aggregate, indicate a normal effective
statutory tax rate of approximately 42% for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004, and 40.7% for the year ended
March 31, 2005.

A reconciliation of the combined normal effective statutory tax rates to the effective income tax rates reflected in the
accompanying statements of operations for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, was as follows:

2003 2004 2005
Combined normal effective Statutory taX rate ...........rsimivsssssoesinnns (42.0)% 42.0% 40.7%
Changes in valuation allowance,
net of effects of loss carryforwards expiration 33.0 (40.1) (43.7)

Tax 1ate ChaNGE... e cererrerrreesesessisscssssecseeosessens . 6.7 @27 -

Expenses, not deductible for taxation. 0.5 (OR] 3.4
Other—net 1.8 0.0 {0.4)
0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Effective income tax rate........

r u
SKY Perfect Communications Annual Report 2005
L J



The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards giving rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities at March
31, 2004 and 2005 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2004 2005 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Operating loss camyforwards............... ¥31,151 ¥23,068 $215,146
ACCrUEd EXDENSES ...ovoveecee e 638 631 5,885
OhEF e 1319 2,089 19,484
Total gross deferred tax assets 33,108 25,788 240,515
Less valuation allowance.............. R 33,096 25,145 234,518
Deferred tax assets, net 12 643 5,997
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities. 2 - -
OO vt s cssssseeseares s ossassesssses et s st esssssesses s st esss s . 12 133 1,240
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 14 133 1,240
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ @ ¥ 510 $ 4,757

At March 31, 2004 and 2005, the valuation allowance for defemed tax assets has been provided for in the accompanying
financial statements to reflect uncertainty associated with the realization of such assets. The net change in the valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets during the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, was a decrease of ¥775
million, a decrease of ¥8,837 million and a decrease of ¥7,951 million ($74,156 thousand), respectively.

On March 31, 2004, a tax reform law was enacted which changed the expiration periods of loss caryforwards from
5 years to 7 years, effective for loss carryforwards recognized after April 1, 2001.

The Companies have tax operating loss carryforwards which are available to reduce future taxable income amounting
to ¥56,678 million ($528,614 thousand) at March 31, 2005.

The tax operating loss carryforwards will expire as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2006 et OO ORISR 9.2 3110 ) | $227,653
2009 ettt et 12,091 112,768
2010....... 19,113 178,260
2011 197 1,837
20T 2 e et et e e bR s e R4 84 8 et e e bt 868 8,096
Total N ¥56,678 $528,614

I 1.

Employees’ Benefit
Plans and Directors’
Severance Indemnities

The Companies have unfunded severance indemnity plans under which substantially all of its employees, other than
employees seconded from the shareholders and directors, are entitled, under most drcumstances, to lump-sum severance
indemnities based on the level of compensation at retirement or earier termination of employment, the length of service
and other factors, upon mandatory retirement at normal retirement age or earlier termination of employment.
The Companies use a measurement date of March 31 for their defined benefit pension plans.
Net periodic pension costs for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 consisted of the following components:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

2003 2004 2005 2005

Service cost—benefits earned during the period....... ¥88 ¥117 ¥103 $ 961
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation..... 5 6 7 65
Amortization of unrecognized obligation at transition. 6 ‘ 6 6 56
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial loss - 3 1 9
Net periodic pension COStS .......mwcermnccecenn ¥99 ¥132 ¥117 $1,091

The following table sets forth the changes in benefit obligation and composition of amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2004 and 2005 for the plan.

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2004 2005 2005
Changes in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of YEar ... ¥445 ¥543 $5,064
Service cost e 117 103 961
Interest cost 6 7 65
Actuarial gain (16) (28) (261)
Direct benefit payments €)) (16) (149)
Acquisition Of SUDSIAIANES ......w.vuereeceeerereerssssssmeesnsnneeesssssssssssescnsssnsrmeenes - 64 597
Benefit obligation at end of year 543 673 6,277
Unrecognized net obligation at transition being recognized over 20 years........... (93) (87) (811)
Unrecognized actuarial foss e (68) (39) (364)
Unrecognized prior service cost 1 1 9
Net amount recognized ¥383 ¥548 85,111

r B
SKY Perfect Communications Annual Report 2005
L |



Amaunts recognized in the consalidated balance sheets at March 31, 2004 and 2005 consisted of:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2004 2005 2005
Accumulated benefit obligation ¥426 ¥568 $5,298
Other assets. ... (43) (20) (187)
Net amount recognized ...... ¥383 ¥548 $5,111

Assumptions used as of and for the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2005 in determining benefit obligations and
costs for the plan shown abave were as follows:

Benefit obligations Costs
2004 2005 2004 2005
Weighted average discount rate 1.3% 1.3% 1.3% 1.3%
Average rate of increase in future compensation levels.. 7.3 7.3 7.3 7.3

In addition, employees of CTA participate in multi-employer defined benefit plan.

Directors of the Company are not covered by the above plan. Certain directors who were appointed prior to June
28, 2000, are covered by an unfunded severance indemnities plan. Benefits under the plan were based on the fevel of
compensation, the length of service and other factors as of June 28, 2000. No charge to operations was made for the
years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, since the plan was fixed as of June 28, 2000. The liability for severance
indemnities under the directors’ plan at March 31, 2004 and 2005, amounting to ¥17 million ($158 thousand) is stated
on the vested benefit abligation basis, which is the amount required to be paid ff all directors covered by the plan terminated
their appointments at the balance sheet dates.

In addition, certain subsidiaries have accrued retirement benefits for directors’ amounted to ¥1 million ($9 thousand)
as of March 31, 2005.

Lo

Shareholders’ Equity

The changes in the number of shares of common stock issued during the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and
2005 were as follows:
Number of Shares

2003 2004 2005
Balance at beginning of YEar. ... mcmeeessmessnsesinen 2,237,282 2,237,351 2,267,608
Issuance of common stock.... 69 30,257 901
Balance at end of year. 2,237,351 2,267,608 2,268,509

During the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2005, 557 shares and 901 shares of common stock were issued
upon the exercise of warrants, respectively. In March 2004, the Company issued 28,700 shares of common stock for
the acquisition of Plat One.

As a result of the acquisition of subscribers and investment in the system, the Company accumulated a deficit of
¥125,082 million as of March 31, 2003. The initial investment and development stage has been completed; therefore,

on June 27, 2003, the Company's shareholders approved a proposal to eliminate the accumulated deficit as of March

31, 2003 and effected a quasi-reorganization without revaluing its assets and liabilities. In accordance with the Japanese
Commiercial Code (the “Code”), capital surplus was reduced by ¥60,778 million effective June 27, 2003 and, effective
August 1, 2003, common stock was reduced by ¥89,462 million, of which ¥62,253 million was utilized to eliminate the
accumulated deficit and ¥27,209 million was transferred directly to capital surplus,

The Company is subject to the Code. The Code requires that at least 50% of the issue price of new shares is recorded
as common stock and the remaining net proceeds as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus. The
Code permits, upon approval of the Board of Directors, to issue shares to existing shareholders without consideration as
a stock split. Such issuance of shares generally does not give rise to changes within the shareholders' accounts.

The Code also provides that an amount at least equal to 10% of the aggregate amount of cash dividends and
certain other cash payments which are made as an appropriation of retained earnings applicable to each fiscal period
shall be appropriated and set aside as a legal reserve until such reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of
common stock. The amount of total additional paid-in capital and legal reserve that exceeds 25% of the common stock
may be available for dividends by resolution of the shareholders. In addition, the Code permits the transfer of a portion
of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve to the common stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.

The Code affows to purchase treasury stock by a resolution of the shareholders at the general shareholders meeting
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The Code also allows for the purchase of treasury
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors under the authorization of the Company's article of incorporation. The purchase
amount of treasury stack cannot exceed the amount available for future dividends plus the amount of common stock,
additional paid-in capital or legal reserve to be reduced in the case where such reduction was resolved at the general
shareholders meeting.

On February 23, 2005, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to repurchase up to 120,000 shares of the
Company's common stack, or ¥10,560 million in the open market during the period from February 24, 2005 to March 16,
2005. Under the above resolution, the Company repurchased 105,372 shares for ¥9,318 million (§86,905 thousand)
during that period.

The amount available for dividends under the Code is based on the amount recorded in the Company's general
baooks of account maintained in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan. The adjustments
included in the accompanying financial statements but not recorded in the books have no effect on the determination of
retained earnings available for dividends under the Code. The amount of statutory retained earnings of the Company
available for the payments of dividends to shareholders as of March 31, 2005 was ¥24,617 million (229,593 thousand).
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Other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2003 2004 2005 2005
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities:

Amount arising during the period.... . ¥243 ¥(603) ¥ 150 $1,399
Reclassification adjustment - (164) (172) (1,604)

Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments:
Amount arising during the period (130) 110 1,026
Reclassification adjustment - 53 494
(897) 141 1,315
101 2 19
¥(796) ¥ 143 $1,334

13.

Stock-based
Compensation Plan

In July 2000, the Company established a stock-based compensation plan for certain directors and employees to increase
their benefit in proportion to an increase of the Company's operating result and to unify interests of participants in the
plan to shareholders.

In June 2001, the Company adopted a stock option plan that provides for the granting of stock options to certain
directors and employees. The options vested on August 1, 2003, and are exercisable from August 1, 2003 through July
31, 2007.

In December 2002, the Company adopted a stock option plan that provides for the granting of stock options to
certain directors and employees. The options vest on December 1, 2004, and are exercisable from December 1, 2004
through November 30, 2008.

In April 2004, the Company adopted a stock option plan that provides for the granting of stock options to certain
directors and employees. The options vest on April 1, 2006, and are exercisable from April 1, 20086 through March 31, 2010.

In December 2004, the Company adopted a stock option plan that provides for the granting of stock options to
certain directors and employees. The options vest on December 1, 2006, and are exercisable from December 1, 2006
through November 30, 2010.

Following is a summary of option activity for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005.

Outstanding Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Yen
Qutstanding at March 31, 2002 ¥ 67511
(@112 =T F . 105,436
Exercised... 50,000
Forfeited 50,000
Outstanding at March 31, 2003 ... 6,588 77254
Exercised 51,758
Forfeited 50,000 US. Dollars
Qutstanding at March 31, 2004 79,727 % 744
Cranted 144,627 1,349
Exercised 51,087 476
Forfeited — —
QOutstanding at March 31, 2005 9,173 ¥111,315 $1,038
Options vested at March 31, 2005 ...ummiammsmsissssssssisssisssssssssssseseenen 3,810 ¥ 77,032 $ 718
The following table summarizes information about stock option outstanding at March 31, 2005
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Weighted Remaining Average Average
Average Number Life Exercise Number Exercise
Exerdise Price Outstanding (years) Price Vested Price
¥ 50,000 ' 2,049 03 ¥ 50,000 2,049 ¥ 50,000
105,436 1,644 37 105,436 827 105,436
111,185 1,413 2.3 111,185 934 111,185
144,627 4,067 7.2 144,627 — 144,627
8,173 4.3 111,315 3,810 77,032

The Company accounts for the stock incentive plan in accordance with APB No.25 and related interpretations and
complies with the disclosure requirements of SFAS No.123.

In connection with the stock option granted during the year ended March 31, 2001, the Company recognized
deferred compensation which is being amortized over the vesting periods of the options. For the years ended March 31,
2003 and 2004, the Company recognized amortization expenses of ¥109 million and ¥20 million, respectively.

In connection with the stock options granted during the years ended March 31, 2002 and 2003 and 2005, the
Company did not recognize deferred compensation or compensation costs because the quoted market price of the
Company's stock at the grant date of the award was less than the exercise price.
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In accordance with SFAS No.123, the fair value of the stock option granted was estimated on the date of grant using
the minimum value model and the fair value per share at the date of grant for the options granted during the years
ended March 31, 2003 and 2005 were ¥47,791 and 65,205 respectively.

The following weighted-average assumption was used in determining the fair value of the option granted.

2003 2005
Risk-free interest rate......... 0.25% 0.46%
Expected lives........ 4.0 vears 4.0 years
Expected volatility 67% 59.35%
Expected dividend 0.00% 0.35%

Had compensation cost for the stock incentive plan been determined based on fair value at the grant date consistent
with the method prescribed by SFAS No.123, the Companies’ net income (loss), net income (loss) per share and stock
compensation cost for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 would have been impacted as shown in the
following table:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2003 2004 2005 2005
Net income (105S) s repOrted...........meererimmeceeenssnsinecenss ¥(16,876) ¥4,089 ¥3,753 $35,003

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expenses

included in reported net income (loss),

net of related tax effects .. 109 20 - -
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation

expenses determined under fair value based method

for all awards, net of related tax effects (144) (81) {128) (1,194)
Pro forma net income (loss) ¥(16911) ¥4,028 ¥3,625 $33,809
Yen U S. Dollars
2003 2004 2005 2005
Net income (loss) per share
—basic:
As reparted ¥(7542.98) ¥1,82539  ¥1,656.50 $15.45
Pro forma (7,558.62) 1,798.16 1,600.01 14.92
—diluted:
As reported (7,542.98) 1,823.59 1,655.22 15.44
Pro forma (7,558.62) 1,796.38 1,598.77 14.91

]
Financial Instruments

(1) DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company is exposed to changes in foreign exchange rates that are associated with certain payments for overseas
broadcasting rights. In applying a consistent risk management policy for the purpose of reducing such risks, the Company
uses derivative financial instruments, which include foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts,
and foreign currency swap agreements in which foreign currency option contracts are embedded.

The Company alsa has securities with embedded derivative instruments, which are purchased to invest the
Company's excess funds.

The Company is also exposed to credit-related losses in the event of non-perfarmance by counterparties to derivative
instruments, but it is not expected that any counterparties will fail to meet their obligations, because counterparties are
internationally recognized financial institutions.

Derivative instruments held by the Company are classified and accounted for as described below pursuant to SFAS
No.133.

Cash flow hedges

The derivatives designated as cash flow hedges include foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts,
and foreign currency swap agreements, which are used for reducing the risk arising from the chariges in anticipated cash
flows of forecasted transactions and firm commitments.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are initially recorded in other comprehensive
income and reclassified into earnings when the hedged transactions affect eamings.

For the year ended March 31, 2005, these cash flow hedges were fully effective. In addition, there were no
amounts excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness of cash flow hedges. As of March 31, 2005, ¥5 million
($47 thousand) of deferred losses for derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are expected to be reclassified into
earnings within the next twelve months. The maximum length of time over which the Company is hedging its exposure
to variability in expected future cash flows for forecasted transactions and firm commitments is 42 months. There were
no forecasted transactions that failed to occur for the year ended March 31, 2005.

Derivatives not designated as hedges
The derivatives not designated as hedges under SFAS No.133 include foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency
option contracts, foreign currency swap agreements, and derivative financial instruments embedded in other securities.
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The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency swap agreements to limit the
exposure affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates on certain recognized liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. These contracts are marked-to-market with changes in value recognized in other income or expenses.

The securities in which derivative instruments are embedded are purchased to invest the Company's excess funds.
These derivatives are comprised of options and swaps that affect coupon rates and credit derivatives. But all the derivatives
affecting coupon rates provide floors to minimize potential loss and all the credit derivatives refer to only creditworthy
entities. These derivatives are marked-to-market with changes in value recognized in other income or expenses pursuant to
SFAS No.133.

(2) CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISKS

The Companies’ financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash
equivalents, investments and trade receivables. The Companies’ cash and cash equivalents are placed in deposits,
money management funds with major Japanese banks and finandal institutions, and commercial paper with major
Japanese entities. Investments are maintained with several major institutions, and the compositions of investments are
regularly reported to management. The Companies’ trade receivables are from a number of customers, and do not have
any significant concentration,

{(3) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each category of financial instruments
for which it is practicable to estimate. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop
the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that
could be realized in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies
may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents, time depaosits, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable,
subscription fees received and other current liabilities—
The carrying amounts approximate fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Short-term investments and other investments—
Short-term investments and other investments include debt securities and investments in non- traded and unaffiliated
companies. Debt securities in short-term investments and other investments which are disclosed in Note 4 are excluded
from the following table.

There are no quoted market prices for investments in non-traded and unaffiliated companies, as a result, a reasonable
estimate of fair value could not be made without incurring excessive costs.

Other assets, long-term debt, long-term payables and other liabilities—
The fair values are primarily based on dealer quotes for the similar instruments or estimated by discounted future cash
flows using currently available market rates.

Foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency option contracts—
The fair values are estimated based on values quoted by brokers.

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2004 2005 2005
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Notional  Carrying Fair Notional  Carrying Fair Notional Carrying Fair
Amount  Amount Value Amount  Amount Value Amount Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..... — ¥45941 ¥450941 — ¥32,239 ¥32,239 — $300,681 $300,681

Time depositS......oweevecriensnn - 5 5 - 5 5 - 47 47
Accounts receivable :
(less allowance for

doubtful receivables)........... - 8,921 8,921 - 9,301 9,301 — 86,747 86,747
Other current assets... - 1,075 1,075 - 309 309 - 2,882 2,882
Other investments.. - 1,598 1,598 - 1,187 1,187 - 11,071 11,071
Other @S5ets.....c..ccuumwrmeninersroen - 1,366 1,366 - 1,020 1,020 - 9,513 9,513

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable........on. - 1,749 1,749 - 1,066 1,066 - 9,942 9,942
Subscription fees received ...... - 12,650 12,650 — 12,364 12,364 — 115314 115314
Other current liabilities .......... - 645 645 - 581 581 - 5,419 5419
Long-term debt - 5 5 - 1,129 1,128 - 10530 10,530
Long-term payables ... - 1,201 1,227 - 786 803 - 7,331 7,489
Other liabilities — 1,241 1,241 - 1,657 1,657 - 15,454 15,454
Derivatives:
Foreign exchange forward

CONMTACES v 681 (6) (6) 2.867 (32) (32) 26,739 (298) {298)
Foreign currency aption

CONTACES covevrcrer s 924 (50) (50) - - - - - -
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Other Income
(Expenses)

Others—net as shown in other income (expenses) in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 consisted of the following:
Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2003 2004 2005 2005
Foreign currency transaction gains (losses)—net ... ¥(373) ¥ 3] ¥ (11) $ (103)
Realized losses on derivatives—net (64) (450) (221) (2,061)
Minority interests in consolidated subsidianes ... 355 46 73 681
Equity in net income of affiliated companies 44 9 15 140
OtNEI—NEL oeerrecvrermrerrrrersec e ssaasessssiseen 86 @ 8 75
L ¥ 48 ¥(385) ¥(136) $(1,268)

6.

Net Income (loss)

The following table reflects the calculation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share for the years ended March

31, 2003, 2004 and 2005:

(Net incomes are stated in millions of Yen and thousands of U.S. Dollars and average shares and EPS are stated in single unit.)
Yen US. Dollars

2003 2004 2005 2005

Net income (loss) per share—basic:

Per Share Net income (loss) available to common shareholders...... ¥ (16876) ¥ 4089 ¥ 3,753  § 35,003
Weighted average shares outstanding-basiC ... 2237312 2,240,073 2,265,614 2,265,614
Net income (loss) per share—basiC ... ¥(7,542.98) ¥ 182539 ¥ 1,656.50 $ 15.45
Net income (loss) per share—diluted:
Net income (loss) available to common shareholders....... ¥ (16876) ¥ 4089 ¥ 3,753 $ 35,003
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic...c..c.cwn. 2,237,312 2,240,073 2,265,614 2,265,614
Dilutive impact of options and
warrants outstanding-diluted.........oceeeenrsnmnrers - 2,210 1,757 1,757
Weighted average shares outstanding—difuted . - — 2,242,283 2,267,371 2,267,371
Net income (loss) per share—diluted.....oormiccccrnns ¥(7,542.98) ¥ 1,82359 ¥ 1,655.22 $ 15.44
At March 31, 2005, 13.12% of the Company's voting shares were held by Sony Broadcast Media Co,, Ltd.,, a 100% owned
subsidiary of Sony Corporation. The Company provides the platform service for Sony Corporation and its subsidiaries
("Sony Group"). Revenues concerning this service for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were ¥808
L /0 million, ¥1,051 miflion and ¥1,090 milflion ($10,166 thousand). The balances at March 31, 2004 and 2005 as a result
of these transactions were accounts receivable of ¥150 million and ¥99 million ($923 thousand), respectively.
Related Party The Company also has transactions with Sony Group for the procurement of properties and supplies and performance
Transactions of certain services. Such transactions for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively, consisted of

purchases of broadcasting equipment amounting to ¥453 million, ¥799 million and ¥2,416 million ($22,533 thousand),
purchases of promotional supplies and electronic parts amounting to ¥502 million, ¥313 million and ¥392 million
(83,656 thousand), and payments of expenses, principally sales promotion and marketing expenses, amounting to
¥2,944 million, ¥1,443 million and ¥2,060 million (19,213 thousand). The balances with Sony Group at March 31,
2004 and 2005 as a result of these transactions consisted of accounts payable of ¥525 million and ¥16 million (8149
thousand), and accrued expenses of ¥411 million and ¥363 million (83,386 thousand), respectively.

At March 31, 2005, 13.12% of the Company's voting shares were held by htochu Corporation (“ltochu”). The
Company provides the platform service for ltochu’s subsidiaries. Revenues concerning this service for the years ended
March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were ¥2,137 million, ¥2,100 million and ¥2,034 million (318,570 thousand), respectively.
The balances as a result of these transactions at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were accounts receivable of ¥186 million
and ¥181 million (31,688 thousand), respectively. Also, other current liabilities, as a result of these transactions, at March

31, 2005 was of ¥7 million ($65 thousand).

The Company also has transactions with Itochu and its subsidiaries for the performance of certain services. Cost of
services for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were ¥568 million, ¥566 million and ¥580 million
(85,409 thousand), respectively. The balances as a result of these transactions at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were
accrued expenses of ¥54 million and ¥ 56 million ($522 thousand), respectively. Also, accounts payable and other
current assets, as a result of these transactions, at March 31, 2005 were ¥41 million (382 thousand) and ¥21 million
(%196 thousand). The Company purchased the shares of CTA from Itachu Corporation (see note 5).

The Company provides the platform service and sublicense for Fuji Television Network, Inc. (*Fuji Television"), terrestrial
broadcaster, (& 13.12% voting shareholder of the Company at March 31, 2005). Revenues for the years ended March
31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were ¥2,538 million, ¥2,672 million and ¥2,679 million (24,986 thousand), respectively.
The balances at March 31, 2004 and 2005 as a result of these transactions, were accounts receivable of ¥529 million
and ¥ 487 million ($4,542 thousand), respectively. Also, other current liabilities, as a result of these transactions, at
March 31, 2005 were of ¥102 million (3951 thousand).

Fuji Television also has transactions with the Company for the performance of certain services. Cost of services
included ¥701 million, ¥991 million and ¥1,209 million (311,276 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005, respectively. The balances at March 31, 2004 and 2005 as a result of these transactions were accrued
expenses of ¥39 million and ¥130 million ($1,212 thousand), respectively.
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The Company has entered into service agreements with JSAT (a 7.27% voting shareholder of the Company at
March 31, 2005) related to uplink operations. Revenues with JSAT including these agreements were ¥3,115 million,
¥3,302 million and ¥3,411 million ($31,813 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
The balances as a result of these transactions at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were accounts receivable of ¥181 million
and ¥162 million (81,511 thousand), and other current liabilities of ¥658 million and ¥330 million ($3,078 thousand)
respectively. Also, other non-current liabilities, as a result of these transactions, at March 31, 2005 were of ¥30 million
(8280 thousand).

JSAT also provides satellite broadcasting services to the Company. Cost of services included ¥4,098 million, ¥2,664
million and ¥2,521 million ($23,512 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively,
related to these sewvices. The balances as a result of these transactions at March 31, 2004 and 2005 were accrued
expenses of ¥7 million and ¥3 million ($28 thousand), and other current assets of ¥1,048 million and ¥1,115 million
(10,399 thousand).

T O
L ©s
Advertising Costs and

" Research and
Development Costs

(1) Advertising Costs ‘
Advertising costs included in sales promotion and marketing expenses were ¥5,133 million, ¥4,602 million and 5,559
million (851,847 thousand) for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

(2) Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs charged to general and administrative expenses for the year ended March 31, 2005
were ¥111 million ($1,035 thousand).

19,

Commitments and
Contingent Liabilities

At March 31, 2005, the Companies had no material contingent liabilities including litigation or claims outstanding,
pending or threatened against it, which would have a material adverse effect on the Companies’ financial position results
of operations.

The Company enters into contracts to purchase broadcasting rights of certain programs which are capitalized and
amortized based on the number of showings. Commitments for future payments on these contracts, some which are
subject to reductions depending on certain conditions, at March 31, 2005 amounted to ¥9,409 million (387,754 thousand)
in the aggregate. These commitments are due at various dates through 2008.

In November 2004, the Company entered into a 4-year consulting agreement relating to the purchase of broadcasting
rights. The agreement requires the Company to pay monthly fees through November 2008, which, at March 31, 2005,
amounted to ¥98 million ($914 thousand) in the aggregate.

The amount of obligations for each of the four succeeding years as of March 31, 2005 is as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
$37,922
26271
7,284
7,200
$88,677

20U,

Subsequent Events

Dividends
On May 9, 2005, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to pay a cash dividend to shareholders of record at March
31, 2005 of ¥750 ($6.99) per share totaling ¥1,622 million (315,128 thousand). The resolution was approved by the
general shareholders’ meeting to be held on June 24, 2005.
Stock-based compensation plan
On May 9, 2005, the Company's Board of Directors resolved a stack option plan that provides for the granting of stock
options to certain directors and employees of the Company. Under the plan, the Company is authorized to grant options
for not more than 3,300 common shares at an exercise price, which is determined to be the higher of the average of the
daily closing prices of the Company’s common stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange one month prior to the date of the grant
multiplied by 1.05, or the closing price on the date of the option grant, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances at
any time on or after the date of the option grant. The options are exercisable within 10 years from the vesting date, and
the period will be decided at a meeting of the Board of Directors. The resolution was approved by the general shareholders’
meeting to be held on June 24, 2005,
Purchase of treasury stock
Based on the authorization of the Board of Directors on May 3, 2005, the Company repurchased 12,068 shares of
common stock, or ¥1,009 million (3,411 thousand), in the open market at Tokyo Stock Exchange during the period
from May 11, 2005 to May 24, 2005.
Capital and business alliance with Index Corporation
On May 30, 2005, the Company entered into a capital and business alliance with Index Corporation (“index”). Index
operates a contents, commerce and publishing business which provides contents and services to various media, especially
to mobile phones. Index also has close relationships with broadcasters and toy manufactures. Though this alliance, the
Company has accelerated its multi-platform strategies and strengthened its competitive position as a contents-provider
by sharing Index's customers, know-how and business network.

The Company purchased 44,052 shares, or 4.69% of outstanding shares of Index, at ¥10,000 million ($33,266
thousand) on June 15, 2005.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

2 MS Shibaura Building
e o‘ e o 13-23, Shibaura 4-chome
Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-8530
Japan

Tel: +81-3-3457-7321
Fax: +81-3-3457-1694
www.tohmatsu.co.jp

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(Kabushiki Kaisha SKY Perfect Communications):

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Kabushiki Kaisha SKY
Perfect Communications) (the “Company”) and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2005 (all expressed
in Japanese yen). These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended March 31, 2005, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such
translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1. Such U.S. dollar amaounts are presented solely for the

convenience of readers outside Japan.

Coble 7t il

May 27, 2005 (June 15 and June 24, 2005 as to Note 20)

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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’ SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Head Office Address: Shibuya Cross Tower 15-1, Shibuya 2-chome, Shibuya-ku Tokyo 150-8326, Japan
Telephone Number: +81-3-5468-7800

Fax Number: +81-3-5468-7925 :

Homepage URL: http://www.skyperfectv.co.jp/skycom/e/ :
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FILE No.
825113

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF EXTRAORDINARY REPORT

An Extraordinary Report has been submitted to Director of Kanto Local Finance Bureau on
July 27, 2005, pursuant to Paragraph 4 of Article 24-5 of the Securities and Exchange Law and

Subparagraph 2-2 of Paragraph 2 of Article 19 of the Ordinance of the Cabinet Office relating
to Corporate Disclosure.
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J April 27, 2005

Hajime Shigemura

President and Representative Director

OE oF . -9 SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

i ERst b Fima, . :

O RPOR A TF&}%‘»}O?“L (TSE 1st Sect_lon VC_ode No. 4795)
CE For any mqurnies please call

Hiroyasu Oyama
General Manager
Public Relations Dept.
Tomonari Niimoto
General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Notice of Revision of Results and Dividend Forecast for Fiscal Year Ending
March 2005 and Forecast of Results for Fiscal Year Ending March 2006

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) announces that a resolution was passed at a meeting of the
Board of Directors held on April 27, 2005 to revise the results and dividend per share forecast for the
fiscal year ending March 2005 and to announce the forecast results for the fiscal year ending March

2006. The details of the announcement follow.

1. Revision of Results and Dividend Forecast for Fiscal Year Ending March 2005 (from April 1,

2004 to March 31. 2005)

1) Details of revision of business forecast

(Unit: million yen)

% 72,475

AT00 A15.9% 4, 853

AT00 A15.9% 4,384

2100 N0. 1% 70, 028

2900 N16. 1% 5,073

5, 400 A900 AN16. 7% 4, 495

500 yen/share 250 yen/share 50.0% | 500 yen/share

* Previous Forecast denotes the forecast in “Revision of Results Forecast for the Period Ending March 31, 2005”

issued January 26, 2005.




2) Reasons for Revision

In terms of profit and loss, while our performance was almost in line with our previous forecast up to the
middie of the fourth quarter of the March 2005 term, as we were proactive in taking steps to acquire new
subscribers and measures to prevent cancellations towards the end of the fiscal year and into the next period,
and as we recorded additional depreciation accompanying the upgrade/replacement of broadcasting facilities,
including encoders, to respond quickly to the changing media environment, operating expenses in March
were increased from the previous forecast. Hence, we have revised our forecast non-consolidated profit
before income taxes of 5,600 million yen and non-consolidated net profit of 5,400 million yen, to 4,700
million yen and 4,500 million yen, and our forecast consolidated profit before income taxes of 4,400 million
yen and consolidated net profit of 4,400 million yen, to 3,700 million yen and 3,700 million yen,

respectively.

Under our mid-term vision released on January 26, 2005, expanding long-term and comprehensive profits for
shareholders is a critical management target, and we adopted as a basic policy for the appropriation of
earnings the realization/continuance of stable dividends through the establishment of a stable operating base.
We previously set the dividend forecast for the March 2005 term at 500 yen, in recognition of a special
dividend of 500 yen per share paid in the preceding term to commemorate the change of our listing to the
First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange. But as the mid-term vision has adhered closely to the outloek,
given the dividend policy just described and to improve the return of profits to shareholders, we are revising

the ordinary dividend forecast at the end of the term to 750 yen.



2. Results Forecast for Fiscal Year Ending March 2006 (from April 1, 2005 to March 31.
2006

(Unit: Millions of ven)

432
128 232 104 81.3%
3,310 3,542 232 7.0%
3, 823 4, 055 232 6.1%
9. 4% 9.0% A0. 4 -
74, 000 85, 000 11, 000 14.9%
3, 700 500 A3, 200 A86. 5%
3, 700 1, 000 L2, 700 AT73.0%
71, 900 75, 500 3, 600 5. 0%
4, 700 3, 500 A1, 200 N25.5%
4, 500 3, 500 A1, 000 £22.2%
750 yen/share | 750 yen/share - -

* The number of subscribers and the churn rate are actual results. Revenues, profit before income taxes and net

profit are revised forecasts mentioned in this release.

@  With respect to the number of new DTH subscribers, given the charge-free campaign for installation of
“dishes and the start of a rental service for set-top boxes for SKY PerfecTV!, expansion of the number of
delivery of built-in receivers compatible with three waves and fulfillment of contents, including the launch
of High-Definition Television and our self-managed channels, at SKY Perfect! 110, and full-scale
development of HIKARI PerfecTV! by OptiCast Inc., etc., we forecast that the total number of new DTH
subscribers for the fiscal year ending March 2006 would be 540 thousand, up by 108 thousand from the
result in the fiscal year ending March 2005.

@ In terms of the DTH churn rate, given the result in the term ending March 2005 (9.4%) and the improving
trend in February and March thanks to the renewal of the program information magazine for subscribers,
“Club SKY Perfect,” etc., we now forecast at 9.0%. Accordingly, we expect that the total number of DTH

subscribers at period end will be 3,542 thousand.



With respect to revenues, given the increase in non-consolidated revenues associated with the forecast
subscriber numbers mentioned above and increases in the number of consolidated subsidiaries, we now
expect consolidated revenues to come in at 85,000 million ven, a rise of 11,000 million yen from the revised

forecast for the March 2005 term of 74,000 million yen.

As for profit and loss, given increases in outlays to acquire new subscribers incurred by efforts to step up the
acquisition of new subscribers described above, as well as increases in relay lines resulting from an
extension in the service area of HIKARI PerfecTV! Services provided by the subsidiary, OptiCast, we
expect that consolidated profit before income taxes will be 500 million yen and the consolidated net profit
will be 1,000 million yen, down from our revised forecasts for the fiscal year ending March 2005 of 3,700

million yen and 3,700 million yen respectively.

With respect to the dividend, despite the forecast profit decline noted above, because performance will be in
line with our mid-term vision, we expect that the dividend will be 750 yen/share, the same as our revised

dividend forecast for the March 2005 term. This reflects SKY Perfect’s policy of a stable dividend.

We plan to announce a detailed forecast for the term ending March 2006, including a forecast for the interim

term, in the summary financial statements for the March 2005 term.

(Note)

Forward-looking statements including plans, forecasts and strategies contained in this document are forecast based on
assumptions or beliefs of management using information currently available. Readers should rely on independent judgment
in making final investment decisions. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve
risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ from those in the forward-looking statements for various reasons,
including (1) the economic environment surrounding our business, and particularly consumer trends, (2) changes in
legislation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws, particularly in the case of restrictions impacting our
business or proposals to this effect, or in case of, for example, entries into the market by new competitors, and (3) our
ability to develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in a fiercely competitive market
characterized by features such as remarkably rapid technological innovation in the digital technology field in particular and
remarkably subjective and changeable customer preferences in the broadcasting business. Note, however, that this is not an
exhaustive list of factors with the potential to impact our results.

End

* For any inquirtes on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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SKY Perfect Marketing, Co., Ltd. Reorganizes as an Operating Company

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKYY Perfect’””) have today made the attached announcement with respect to the
transformation of a planning company jointly set up with JSAT Corporation (Head Office: Chiyoda-ku,
Tokyo; President and CEO: Kiyoshi Isozaki; “JSAT) on February 1, 2005 for the rental sales of SKY
PerfecTV/! set-top boxes, SKY Perfect Marketing, Co., Ltd., into an operating company.

This move 1s part of the specific implementation of SKY Perfect’s mid-term vision announced on January 26,
2005. Published today, the notice of revision of the results forecast and dividend forecast for the period
ending March 31, 2005 and the full-year business result forecast for the period ending March 31, 2006
explains the forecast including the impact of this reorganization on SKY Perfect’s consolidated business
results for the period ending March 31, 2006 within the outlook of the full-year consolidated business results
for the term ending March 31, 2006.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

JSAT Corporation

SKY Perfect Marketing, Co., Ltd. Transformed as
an Operating Company:
Receiving Applications for the SKY PerfecTV/ Set-Top Box Rental Service
to Commence on June 1

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo;, President and Representative Director:
Hajime Shigemura, “SKY Perfect”) and JSAT Corporation (Head Office: Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo; President and CEO:
Kiyoshi Isozaki; “JSAT™) announce that their boards of directors have today approved the following resolution to
transform SKY Perfect Marketing, Co., Ltd., a planning company they jointly established on February 1, 2005 for
the rental sales of SKY PerfecTV/ set-top boxes, into an operating company. In light of this change, SKY Perfect
Marketing, Co., Ltd. is set to increase its capital in the middle of May to accept investments from SKY Perfect and
JSAT. As a result, the company’s paid-up capital will be rising to 480 million yen.

1. Company Profile

(1) Company name: SKYPerfect Marketing, Co_,Ltd.

(2) Representative: Takahito Okunaga

(3) Location: 2-15-1 Shibuya, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo

(4) Date of establishment: February 1, 2005

(5) Expected date of transformation into a business company: Mid-May 2005

(6) Line of business: Leasing and distribution of broadcasting set-top boxes and brokerage for
subscriptions

{(7) Account closure: The end of March

(8) Number of employees: 10 (as of April 27)

(9) Capital: 10 million yen / 480 million yen after the capital increase (expected in nid-May)

(10) Outstanding stocks: 200 / 9,600 after the capital increase

(11) Major shareholders:
Present After the capital increase
SKY Perfect Communications Inc. 50% 51%
JSAT Corporation 50% 49%

2/3



2. Background to the Reorganization

The number of subscribers to the SKY PerfecTV/ service using JSAT’s communication satellites at
124°E and at 128°E 1s steadily increasing, but many people remain unfamiliar with the basics of the service,
including the subscription procedures, the initial cost and the subscription fees. In addition, some people
have difficulty in installing the antenna. SK'Y Perfect and JSAT launched a planning company for the rental
sales of set-top boxes in February this year and, since then, have continued with a plan to expand the
multi-channel pay television market, including the introduction of a device rental system to lower the
imtial costs incurred by subscribers and for easier subscription procedures, in addition to the conventional
sale of reception devices performed by sales agents separately from subscription. In the meantime, the
specifications of the SKY PerfecTV! set-top boxes exclusively for rent were finalized. The companies
became convinced that they could procure the hardware. A logistical control system was also established.
Given these circumstances, the two companies decided to turn the planning company into an operating
company. SKY Perfect will operate its rental scheme on its own to raise market awareness of the SKY
PerfecTV! brand by stressing the lowered initial cost in its advertising efforts and to attract new potential
customers, mainly among senior-age customers and family customers who have been interested in the

service but who have hesitated to sign the subscription.

3. Future Timetable
The acceptance of applications for the rental service is set to commence on Wednesday, June 1. The
details of the service are as follows:
. (1) Application
There are a number of different types of applications for the rental service: postcards available from
sales agents, toll-free phone calls and online access (from PCs and mobile phénes). SKY Perfect will be
constructing a system that allows new subscribers to sign up for subscription easily and at any time.

(2) Monthly rental fee (for an antenna and a set-top box): 315 yen inclusive of consumption tax

The antenna and the set-top box are designed exclusively for this rental service and are supplied on an
OEM basis. They have an unprecedented design featuring the SKY PerfecTV/ symbol.

(3) The standard installation work (such as for lattice verandas, concrete verandas and wall surfaces) is
performed free of charge. Subscribers who perform the installation work on their own enjoy free
rental fees for six months.

* At the time of canceling the rental service, subscribers are required to return their antennas and
set-top boxes and to pay an equipment collection charge of 4,200 yen, inclusive of consumption tax.
The minimal rental period is one year in principle. Any subscriber who cancels the rental service

during the first year of subscription is separately charged 10,000 yen.

* For press inquiries, please contact:
Public Relations Department, SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400, FAX: 03-5468-9399
Corporate Communications Division, JSAT Corporation
TEL: 03-5219-7778, FAX: 03-5219-7878
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Total Registrations and DTH Subscribers as of the end of April 2005

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and
Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura) announced the number of Total Registrations and
DTH Subscribers as of the end of April 2005.

Churn Rate*3 8.1% 8.6%
April Net Increase 31,072 22,766
Cumulative Total 3,854,425 3,332,909

* The total column shows the summed-up figure of “SKY PerfecTV/”, “SKY PerfecTV/! 110” and “Multi-channe]
broadcasting service through HIKARI PerfecTV/”

New Subscribers 44267 38,933
Churn 22.580 22,556
Churn Rate*3 7.5% §.6%
April Net Increase 21,687 16,379
Cumulative Total 3,641,509 3,165,119

New Subscribers 12,093 7,105
v Churn 3,221 1,231

Churn Rate*3 19.1% 9.2%
April Net Increase 8,872 5,874
Cumulative Total 211,569 166,561

New Subscribers 520 519
Churmn 7 6
Churn Rate*3 10.1% 10.1%
April Net Increase 513 513
Cumulative Total 1, 347 1, 229




*1  Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay-
subscription agreement (provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), instituttonal
subscribers inciuding retailers exhibition and registrations for technical development in
addition to DTH subscribers.

*2  DTH (Direct To Home) Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement
and have been actually paying subscription fee.

*3  Monthly Churn Rate : The churn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number

of churns into yearly basis.
Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month
/Total Subscribers at the end of the previous month
x 12 months

The breakdown of properties that have approved HIKARI PerfecTV/ and properties currently
receiving the service. (as of the end of April 2005)

Number of prperties 438 134
Number of households*6 23,235 10,100

*4  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each
month, have concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multi-channel broadcasting
service) provision agreement. This figure also includes some properties for which service
provision will commence in the following month or later, depending on when construction
will be completed.

*5  Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month,
broadcasting services (retransmission or multi-channel broadcasting service) are being
provided and which are being charged for such.

*6  The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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(URL http://www.skyperfectv.co.jp)
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Hajime Shigemura
President and Representative Director
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Finance & Accounting Dept.
Board Meeting Date: May 9, 2005
Adoption of U.S. GAAP: Not applicable

1. Consolidated Business Results (April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2005)
(1) Consolidated Results of Operations
(Note) The figures are rounded down to the nearest one million yen.

Operating Revenues Operating Income QOrdinary Income
(millions of yen) (%) (millions of yen) (%) {millions of yen) (%)
Year ended
March 31, 2005 74,016 2.1 2,826 -31.9 3,681 -24.1
Year ended
March 31, 2004 72,475 3.0 4,152 - 4,853 -
Net , Ratio of Ratio of
Net Income Rﬁfég;giet Ordinary Ordinary
Net Income Income | per Share , | Income to | Income to
Shareholders .
per Share (fully Baui Total Operating
diluted) quity Assets | Revenues
mmo";: ) (vem) ven) %) ) )
Year ended
March 31, | 3,709 | -154 | 1,630.78 | 1,629.52 4.0 ' 3.0 5.0
2005
Year ended
March 31, | 4,384 - 1,957.23 | 1,955.30 4.7 4.0 6.7
2004 B
(Notes)
I Investment profit and loss in equity method:

Year ended March 31, 2005: -75 million yen
Year ended March 31, 2004: -91 million yen
2. Average number of outstanding shares during each fiscal year (consolidated basis):
Year ended March 31, 2005: 2,265,614 shares
Year ended March 31, 2004: 2,240,073 shares
3. Changes in accounting treatment:  Not applicable



Percentages appearing under operating revenue, operating income, ordinary income

and net income represent the ratio of increase/decrease compared to the prior year.

(2)  Consolidated Financial Condition

' Ratio Of ,
Total Assets Shagel:loilders Shareholders' ESS?rEh(e)rldSekrl:re
quity Equity to Assets quity p
(millions of yen) (millions of yen) (%) (ven)
Year ended .
March 31, 2005 121,132 89,408 73.8 41,332.86
Year ended
March 31, 2004 126,536 96,258 76.1 42,449.21

(Note) Number of outstanding shares as of the end of each fiscal year (consolidated basis).

Year ended March 31, 2005:

2,268,509 shares

Year ended March 31, 2004: 2,267,608 shares

(3) Consolidated Cash Flow
Cash Flow by Cash Flow by Cash Flow by Balzﬁzegafsﬁash
Operating Investing Financing Equivalents at
Activities Activities Activities Ign d of Year
(millions of yen) (millions of yen) (millions of yen) {millions of yen)
Year ended
March 31, 2005 4,302 7,087 -10,916 32,239
Year ended
March 31, 2004 8,322 1,296 -2,081 45,941

4)

)

Consolidated (new):

(excluded):

9

5
0

Object of Consolidation and Application of Equity Method
Number of consolidated subsidiaries:
Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries to which equity method is applicable:
Number of affiliated companies to which equity method is applicable:

(new):
(excluded):

0
1

Changes in Object of Consolidation and Application of Equity Method
Equity method

1
0

Forecast of Consolidated Business Results (April 1, 2005 through March 31, 2006)

Operating Revenues

Ordinary Income

Net Income

(millions of yen)

(millions of yen)

(mullions of yen)

Six months ending
September 30, 2005

42,000

500

500

Year ending
March 31, 2006

85,000

500

1,000

(Reference)
(Note)

Estimated net income per share (annual):
The forecast stated above has been prepared based on information available as

462.29¢en

of the date of this release. Actual results may vary from the forecasted figures
due to various reasons.
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Business Results Summary of Fiscal Year 2004 (Supplement)

1. Subscriber Addition and Churn (Thousands of people)
Total Sub. 221 177 N4 AN20. 1% 78 56
Net Addition
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (81) (719) (AH2) (2. 3%) (52) (28)
Total Sub. at Period 3, 647 3,823 177 4.8% 3, 647 3,823
End
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (123) (203) (79) (64. 4%) (123) (203)
New DTH 471 432 A39 A8 3% 145 118
Subscribers
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (81) (59) (A22) | (A27.4%) (49) (18)
Number of DTH 279 304 25 9. 0% 76 72
Chum
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (7) (13) (6) (92. 1%) (4) (3)
DTH Sub. Net 192 128 AN64 33, 4% 70 46
Addition
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (74) (46) (A29) (A38. 6%) (45) (15)
DTH Sub. at Period 3, 182 3,310 128 4. 0% 3,182 3,310
End
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (115) (161) (46) (39. 6%) (115) (161)
DTH Churn Rate 9. 0% 9. 4% 0.4 - 9. 6% 8. 8%
(%)

(SKY PerfecTV/110) (8. 9%) (9. 7%) 0.8 =) (15. 7%) (8. 8%)




@ While the number of new DTH subscribers for our core SKY PerfecTV! service was more or less in
line with what we had anticipated, overall the total number of DTH subscribers came in at 432,000,
having been affected by a delay in the start of subscription promotions including the release of new
packs and the launch of High-Definition Television. This represents a 8.3% fall in the total number of
new DTH subscribers as compared with Q4 last year, when towards the end of the period, factors such
as the launch of the Platform Business for Star Channel BS and the integration of subscribers as a
result of the merger with Plat-One Corp, Ltd., etc. came into play.

@ While the chumn rate this period moved up to 0.6% from last year’s figure of 0.5% due to factors such
as the peak in the expiration of subscriptions made through the former Digital Club from early on in
the period, Q4 also saw an improvement towards the end of the period thanks to the renewal of the
Club SKY Perfect program guide for subscribers, and so the full-year DTH chum rate for the fiscal
year ending March 2005 came in at 9.4%, 0.4 points up from the same period last year.

@ As a result, cumulative DTH subscriptions at the end of the fiscal year ending March 2005 increased
128 thousand from the same term the previous year to stand at 3,310 thousand.



2 . Business Results

Financial Summary

(April 1, 2004 — March 31, 2005)

{Millions of Yen)
Revenues 72, 475 74,016 1,541 2.1% 18, 486 18, 427
Operating Profit 4,152 2,826 Al 325 A31.9% 733 L1861
,1;;2: before Income 4,853 3, 68] Al 171 A24.1% 896 46
Net Profit 4, 384 3, 709 NBT5 A15.4% 752 34
Total Assets 126,536 | 121,132 A5, 403 A4.3% 126, 536 121, 132
Egt“;’iltyShaIehc’lder § 96, 258 89, 408 /A6, 849 AT 1% 96, 258 89, 408
Net Cash from 8, 322 4,302 A4, 019 _ 3,203 2,727
Operating Activities
Net Cash from 1,206 | A7,087 A8, 383 - 4,477 A6, 038
Investing Activities
Net Cash from A2,081 | A10,916 A8, 834 - A1, 597 A9, 448
Financing Activities
Net Cash and Cash
Equivalents at the 45, 941 32,239 | A13,701 A29.8% 45, 941 32, 239
End of Period

2.6%

Revenues 70, 028 71, 881 1,853 17, 847 17, 828
Operating Profit 4, 251 3,751 500 All.8% 683 175
5::3: before Income 5,073 4,677 2396 AT.8% 887 362
Net Profit 4, 495 4,532 36 0.8% 735 349
Total Assets 121, 522 113,573 AT, 948 06, 5% 121, 522 113, 573
EzﬁltySharehOIderas 97,419 | 91,393 |  A6,026 |  £6.2% 97, 419 91, 393
Annual Dividends 500yen/ 750yen/ 250yen/ 50. 0% ~ _
share share share

@ Despite a somewhat slowdown of increase in subscriber numbers as compared to the same time last
year, the continued increase in subscriber numbers has meant that revenues increased 2.1% on a
consolidated basis compared to the same period last year and 2.6% on a non-consolidated basis.

@ In terms of profit and loss, in addition to the increase in non-consolidated operating expenses through
the implementation of aggressive subscription promotions and measures to prevent chum in the lead
up to the end-of-year period in Q3 and Q4, and the additional depreciation that resulted from the early
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upgrade and replacement of broadcasting equipment such as encoders, etc. to keep pace with the
changing media environment, there was also an increase in start-up costs with the SKY Perfect
subsidiary OptiCast’s expansion of the Hikan PerfecTV! service area. This resulted in a consolidated
profit before income taxes of 3,681 million yen, down 1,171 million yen from the same period last
year, and a consolidated net profit of 3,709 million yen, again down 675 million yen on the same
period last year.

@ In relation to annual dividends, while a dividend of 500 yen per share was paid to commemorate the
Company’s listing on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, given that our move into positive
figures and our Mid-Term Vision, announced in January 2005, have been largely progressing as
anticipated, and in light of our commitment to provide stable dividends and to strengthen returns to
stakeholders, the Company has decided to offer an ordinary dividend at the end of the period of 750
ven. This proposed dividend is due to be put forward for approval at the 11™ Ordinary General Meeting
of Stockholders in June.

@ With regard to consolidated cash flows, the fall in consolidated net profit generated a cash flow from
operating activities of 4,302 mullion yen; the upgrades to encoders and other transmission equipment
and FTTH business-related mvestment led to a cash flow from mvesting activities of minus 7,087
million yen; while the acquisition of treasury stock and the payment of dividends also resulted in a
cash from financing activities of minus 10,916 million yen. As a result, the balance of cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the term amounted to 32,239 million yen. However, the balance when
deposits of more than three months and marketable securities are factored in comes to 52,251 million
yen.




3. Forecast of Fiscal Year Ending March 2006 (from April 1. 2005 to March 31, 2006)

(Thousands of People, Millions of Yen)

4, 853

74, 016 85, 000 10, 983 14. 8%
3, 599 500 A3, 099 A86. 1%
3, 681 500 A3, 181 86, 4%
3,411 500 12,911 A85. 3%

A2, 709

37,500

1,431

71,881 75, 500 3,618 5.0%

3,959 1, 200 N2, 759 69, 7%

4,677 3, 500 A1, 177 A25.2%

3,632 1, 200 N2, 432 A66. 9%

4,532 3, 500 N1, 032 A22. 8%

750yen, share 750yen, share — -




@ Thanks to measures including the free antenna installation promotion run for SKY PerfecTV! and the
launch of a rental service for set-top boxes, the increase in the number of 3-way set-top box shipments
by SKY Perfect, the enhanced range‘ of contents now available through High-Definition Television
and our self-managed channels, and in light of the fact that SKY Perfect subsidiary OptiCast Inc. has
expanded the service area for its Hikari PerfecTV! service, the number of new DTH subscribers is
forecast to come in at 540,000, which represents an increase of 108,000 over figures for the period
ending March 2003,

@ In terms of the DTH chum rate, given the result in the term ending March 2005 (9.4%) and the
improvement seen since February thanks to the renewal of the program information magazine Club
SKY Perfect, we now forecast a DTH churn rate of 9.0%. Accordingly, we expect that the total
number of DTH subscribers at period end will be 3,542 000. '

@ With respect to revenues, given the increase in non-consolidated revenues associated with the forecast
subscriber numbers mentioned above and increases in the number of consolidated subsidianes, we
now expect consolidated revenues to come in at 85,000 million yen, which represents a very

significant increase over the current results for the period ending March 2005.

@ As for profit and loss, given increases in outlays to acquire new subscribers through stepped up
promotional efforts as outhined above and the increase in relay circuit costs associated with the
expansion of the SKY Perfect subsidiary OptiCast Inc.’s Hikari PerfecTV! service area, we expect that
consolidated profit before taxes and consolidated net profit will come in at 500 million yen and 1,000

million yen respectively.

® In terms of dividends, despite the forecast drop off in profits indicated above, the Company’s
Mid-Term Vision is progressing as expected, and therefore we expect a dividend of 750 yen per share,
the same as our revised dividend forecast for the March 2005 term. This reflects SKY Perfect’s policy
to provide stable dividends.

(Note) Forward looking statements including plan, strategy or belief contained in this materjal are not past facts but are
forecasts based on the assumption or belief of our management judging from Information available currently. Final decisions
related to investment are on the judgment of users themselves. Such forward-looking statements are not guaranteed of future
performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ from those in the looking-forward statements as a
result of various factors, including, (1) the economic environment surrounding our areas of business, in particular consumer
trends, (2) changes in legislation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws, particularly in the case of restriction of
our business or proposals to this effect or incase of, for example, new business entry by rival companies, and (3) our ability to

develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in a fiercely competitive market characterized




by features such as remarkably rapid technical innovation in the digital technology field in particular and remarkably subjective
and changeable customer preferences in broadcasting business, However, factors that could influence our business results are
not limited to the above.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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To whom it may concern:

Hajime Shigemura
President and Representative Director
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
(TSE 1* Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries please call
Hiroyasu Oyama
General Manager
Public Relations Dept.
Tomonari Niimoto
General Manager -
Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

SKY Perfect Communications Acquires Treasury Shares

(Treasury shares acquired based on the provisions of
Item 2, Paragraph 1 of Article 211-3 of the Commercial Code)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) resolved at a meeting of the Board of Directors held today to acquire
treasury shares based on the provisions of Item 2, Paragraph 1 of Article 211-3 of the Commercial Code.
The details of the acquisition are as follows:

Details

1. Reasons for acquisition
The number of treasury shares that we will acquire through transactions in the market will be almost
equivalent to the number of treasury shares that were not acquired in the bid to acquire treasury shares
announced on February 23, 2005, and will be part of the implementation of improvement of capital
efficiency and a flexible capital policy to aggressively promote our medium-term vision (announced on
January 26, 2005). This medium-term vision is namely to respond to changes in the business
environment,.

2. Details of Acquisition

(1) Type of shares to be acquired: ordinary shares of common stock of the Company
(2) Total number of shares to be acquired; 15,000 shares (maximum)
(percentage of total shares outstanding: 0.66%)
(3) Total value of shares to be acquired: 1,200 million yen (maximum)
(4) Schedule of acquisition of treasury shares: From May 11, 2005 to May 24, 2005

[Reference] Current treasury shares holding as of May 9, 2005
Total number of issued shares (except for treasury shares): 2,163,147 shares
Number of treasury shares: 105,372 shares
End

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Notice of Stock Options (Common Stock Acquisition Right)

We hereby notify you that, at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 9, 2005, SKY Perfect
Communications Inc. ( the “Company”) decided to submit a proposal that requests the approval of issuing
of common stock acquisition rights (the “Rights™) as stock options, at the Company’s 11** ordinary general
shareholders” meeting, which is scheduled to be held on June 24, 2005.

Note

Issue the Rights as stock option to directors and the employees of the Company (including employees who
will join the Company in the future; the same shall apply hereafter) pursuant to Article 280-20 and Article
280-21 of the Commercial Code of Japan as follows:

1. Reason for issuing the Rights with especially advantageous conditions
To further enhance motivation and willingness to improve the Company’s performance
2. Persons who will receive the Rights
The Company’s directors as well as employees
3. Terms of issuing the Rights
(1) Class and number of shares to be issued or transferred for the Rights
Not more than 3,300 shares of common stock of the company.
Provided, that if the company splits or consolidates its common stock, the number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of the Rights shall be adjusted according to the following formula. However, such
adjustment shall be made only to those Rights that remain unexercised at the relevant time. Any
fractions less than one share arising as a result of such adjustment shall be rounded down to the nearest
whole number.

Number of shares =  Number of shares X Ratio of split or
after adjustment before adjustment consolidation

Furthermore, upon merger, consohdation or split with other corporations, the Company will make the



necessary adjustment of the number of shares to be issued but remain unexercised with the Rights.

{2) Total number of the Rights to be issued
Not more than 3,300 in total.
(The number of shares to be 1ssued upon exercise of each right shall be one; provided, however, that any
adjustments to the number of shares as set forth in (1) above shall be carried out as set forth in that
section.)

(3) Price of the Rights
No consideration shall be paid.

(4) Amount fo be paid in for exercise of the Rights
Amount to be paid per Right will be the amount calculated by multiplying the payment amount per
share, which is decided as set out below, by the number of shares per Right set out in (2) above.
The exercise price shall be 1.05 times of the average of closing prices of the common stock of the
company in regular trading on the Tokyo Stock Exchange for each day (excluding days on which there
1s no such closing price) of the full calendar month prior to the issuance of the Rights. Any fraction less
than one ven ansing as a result of such calculation shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.
However, if such calculated price is lower than the closing price on the day of issuance of the Rights (if
there is no closing price on such date, then the closing price on the immediately preceding trading day),
the exercise price shall be the closing price on the day of issuance of the Rights.
If, after the issuance of the Rights, the company disposes of treasury stock or the issues new shares at a
less than the market price (excluding the exercise of subscription rights or common stock acquisition
rights), the exercise price shall be adjusted according to the following formula, and any fraction less
than one yen arising as a result of such calculation shall be rounded up the nearest whole number.

Number of newly issued shares
or Number of disposed shares

Number of + X

1ssued shares Exercise price per share or transfer price
Exercise Exercise Market price per share before new issuance
price after = price before X or disposal
adjustment  adjustment Number of issued  + Number of newly issued shares

shares or Number of disposed shares

Upon stock split or consolidation after the date of issuance of the right, the exercise price shall be
adjusted according to the following formula, and any fraction less than one yen arising as a result of
such calculation shall be rounded up the nearest whole number.

Payment amount after adjustment= Payment amount before adjustment x 1

Ratio of split or consolidation

Furthermore, upon merger, consolidation or split with other corporations after the date of issuance of the
Rights, or if it is necessary to adjust the payment amount per share in accordance with that case, the
Company will make the necessary adjustment of the payment amount per share,

(5) Period for exercising the Rights
Within ten years from the date of issuing the Rights, the period will be decided at a meeting of the
Board of Directors of the Company.




(6) Conditions for exercising the Rights
@ A person who was allocated the Rights will be able to exercise such Rights even after losing
his/her position as the Company’s director or employee. Provided however, if either of the
following applies to a person who was allocated the Rights, that person will not be able to
exercise the Rights subsequently.
(1) If a director is removed from the position or an employee is requested to resign or is
dismissed in disgrace
(u) If a director or an employee commits an act that 1s against the Company or that harms the
Company’s interests, such as assuming the post of the director, auditor, employee, advisor,
contract employee, or consultant, etc. of a competitor of the Company. However, this 1s
" limited to a case in which such person commits the act with the intention of going against
the Company or with the intention of harming the Company’s interests
@ If a person who was allocated the Rights dies, that person’s successor will be able to exercise the
Rights. The conditions regarding the exercise of the Rights by the successor follow the contract
mentioned in 3 below.
@ Other conditions regarding exercise of the right follow the contract concluded between the
Company and the person allocated the Rights.

(7) Reason and conditions for cancellation of the Rights
(DWhere a merger agreement in which the Company becomes a defunct company is approved at
the general shareholders’ meeting, if a stock exchange agreement or a proposal regarding transfer
of the shares in which the Company becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary 1s approved at the
general shareholders® meeting, or if it is necessary, the Company may cancel all of the common
stock acquisition rights without charge.
@ Where a person who was allocated the Rights becomes unable to exercise the Rights for the
reason set out in (6) above, the Company may cancel such Rights without charge.
@ The Company may cancel non-exercised Rights acquired and held by the Company at its own
discretion.

(8) Limit on transfer of the Rights
The transfer of the Rights requires the approval of a meeting of the Board of Directors.

(9) Others
Other details will be fixed in the meetings of the Board of Directors.

(Note) The conditions for the content above is that the proposal to issue the Rights as stock options is
adopted at the Company’s 11™ ordinary general shareholders’ meeting, scheduled to be held on June 24,
2005.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc,

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399




May 10, 2005

To whom 1t may concern:

Hajime Shigemura

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(TSE 1* Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries please call

Hiroyasu Oyama

General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonar Numoto

General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Unveiling of Multi-Channel IP Video Distribution Technology
Based on Grid Computing

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect™) has embarked on a joint research project with Utagoe, Ltd. (Head Office:
Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director : Tomonari Sonoda; “Utagoe™) to actively advance
grid computing technology, which is gaining attention as a next-generation information service infrastructure
deployed by linking computers over networks, in the field of video and sound distribution. The first-ever
demonstration of this technology and its application to the multi-channel IP video distribution service will be
publicly unveiled at the Grid World Expo 2005 to be held in Tokyo on the 11 and 12* of this month (Venue:
Tokyo International Forum; Organized by: IDG Japan, Inc.; Sponsored by: Grid Consortium Japan).

Grid computing 1s a technology that virtually integrates data and computers over networks as required. This
technology 1s expected to have broad-ranging applications. For example, it will make it possible to network a
number of computers together to produce a super computer.

SKY Perfect and Utagoe have proposed a tailoring of this technology to suit sophisticated IP distribution
technology in the area of video and sound distribution. The two companies will work together to
commercialize this “Casting Grid” technology and in doing so, are secking to further the potential of gird
computing.

The demonstration to be staged at Grid World Expo 2005 will involve showing visitors images that SKY
Perfect 1s actually simultaneously broadcasting on multiple channels on a computer screen to showcase the
highly effective “Casting Grid” video distribution technology.

In the Company’s Mid-Term Vision released in March this year, SKY Perfect set out our plans to expand our
multi-platform strategy that will make SKY Perfect an integral part of all aspects of people’s lives, and also
clarified our plans to further expand network-based video distribution. From August this year, empirical tests
will be carried out on the grid technology-based multi-channel video distribution service, to be showcased for
the first time at the Grid World Expo 2005 event, by linking 1t up with authentication and billing systems, as
we continiue to examine the viability of offering this as a commercial service.




(Reference)

Casting Grid — Conceptual Diagram
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['Grid World Expo 2005 |

Organized by:
Sponsored by:

Dates
Time:

Venue:
Inquiries:

About Utagoe

IDC Japan, Inc.

Gnid Consortium Japan

Wednesday May 11, 2005 — Thursday May 12, 2005
11:00 am - 6:00 pm

Tokyo International Forum HALL B

Gnid World General Secretariat  (03-5800-4831)

* Utagoe was commissioned by the National Institute of Advanced Science and Technology (President: Dr.
Hiroyuki Yoshikawa) and the Grid Technology Research Center (Director: Satoshi Sekiguchi) to provide an
interactive dialogue system to enable communication between remote users for the Aichi World Expo 2005.
Utagoe is also working together with Waseda University Vice-President Yoichi Muraoka’s research group to
develop video and sound distribution technology based on gnd computing technology.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Hajime Shigemura

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
(TSE lst Section Code No. 4795)

For any inquiries please call

Hiroyasu Oyama

General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-5400)

Outcome of acquiring Treasury Shares

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. announces on the outcome of acquiring treasury shares based on the
provisions of Item 2, Paragraph 1 of Article 211-3 of the Commercial Code. Details are as follows.

The Company hereby also provides notice that the acquisition of treasury stock based on a resolution made
at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 9, 2005 was concluded.

Details

1. Period for acquisition: From May 11, 2005 to May 24, 2005
2. Total number of acquired shares: 12,068 shares
3. Total value of acquired shares: 1,009,505,000 yen
4. Method of acquisition: Market transactions at Tokyo Stock Exchange
[Reference]
1. Resolutions of a meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 9, 2005

Type of shares to be acquired: Common stock of the Company

Total number of shares to be acquired: 15,000 shares (maximum)

Total value of shares to be acquired: 1,200 million yen (maximum)

2. Current treasury shares holding as of May 25, 2005
Total number of 1ssued shares: 2,268,540 shares
Number of treasury shares: 117,440 shares (5.18% of total outstanding shares)

End

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Notice of Informal Decision on Board Member Change

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura) announces that the meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 25, 2005 has
made an informal decision on a board member change. The details of the decision are as follows.

The appointment of directors will be officially decided with the approval at the 11th ordinary shareholder’s
meeting to be held on June 24, 2005. Thereafter directors will be appointed or will retire. Representative
directors and the titles of directors will be officially decided at the meeting of the Board of Directors to be

held on the same day.

< Candidates for director >

Details

Reappointment or

Name new appointment as Post
director

Yasushi Hosoda Reappointed C}?alrman and Representative
Director

Hajime Shigemura Reappointed Pr.eSIdent and Representative
Director

Hiroyuki Shinoki Reappointed Executive Vice President

Masao Nito Reappointed Managing Director

Ryoji Hirabayashi Newly appointed | Managing Director

Tatsuro Saito

Newly appointed

Non-Executive Director

Kikujiro Shikano Reappointed Non-Executive Director
Tatsuya Tamura Reappointed Non-Executive Director
Kageo Nakano Reappointed Non-Executive Director
Nozomu Yoshida Reappointed Non-Executive Director
Toshichika Ishihara Reappointed Non-Executive Director
Kenji Kamimura Reappointed Non-Executive Director

Masakatsu Mon

Newly appointed

Non-Executive Director

1/2



* Messrs. Kikujiro Shikano, Tatsuya Tamure, Kageo Nakano, Nozomu Yoshida, Toshuchika
Ishihara, Kenji Kamimura and Masakatsu Mori meet the requirement for external directors,
as provided in [tem 7-2, Paragraph 2 of Article 188 of the Commercial Code.

< Darectors to retire >

Name Current title
Kunioki Ishibashi Managing Director

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX;: 03-5468-9399
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Privacy Mark Granted

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura, “SKY Perfect”) has been certified as a company that meets the
Requirements for Compliance Program on Personal Information Protection (JISQ15001). On May 18,
2005, SKY Perfect was granted Privacy Mark (Certification No. A810004 [01]) by Japan Information
Processing Development Corporation (JIPDEC), the body that registers privacy marks.

Under the privacy mark system, JIPDEC has the power to certify a private enterprise and grant a privacy
protection mark when that enterpnise has a proper system in place to protect personal information. It
aims to allow individuals as subjects of information to readily determine which private enterprise
properly deals with personal information by looking at the Privacy Mark.

Since the introduction of the Personal Information Protection Act in April 2005, maintenance and
establishment of high security measures and a management system for personal information protection
have become factors that are even more important in the operations of SKY Perfect, a provider of
services through such operations as a platform business in the broadcasting and communications fields
to approximately 3.85 million customers. Data Network Center Corporation (Head Office: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Tatsuro Saito, “DNCC?”), a subsidiary of SKY Perfect that
maintains and manages the personal data of 3.85 million customers as well as charges and receives fees,
has been part of the Compliance Program on Personal Information Protection since it was granted a
privacy mark in July 2003. The granting of the privacy mark denotes that SKY Perfect has achieved a
standard of personal information management that can be relied on by broadcasting companies as well
as by customeres. Information about SKY Perfect’s initiatives for personal information protection is
available on SKY Perfect’s website at:

http://www.skyperfectv.co.jp/privacvpolicy/)

SKY Perfect 1s more committed than ever before to bolstering security and stepping up measures to
protect personal information. We remain dedicated to continuing to provide a feeling of security and
trust, together with DNCC, which 1s charge of our customer center operations.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

A Capital Tie-Up with Index Corporation

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura, "SKY Perfect") announces that it has made a decision to form a capital tie-up
with Index Corporation (JASDAQ Code 4835, Head Office: Setagaya-ku, Tokyo; President: Yoshimi Ogawa;
"Index"). The details are as follows.

1. Background of the tie-up

SKY Perfect has primarily been operating the satellite broadcasting platform business that links subscribers
with licensed broadcasters and licensed satellite operator. It has hitherto amassed over 3.85 million
subscribers (total number of registrations). Announced on January 26, 2005, its Mid-Term Vision for FY 2005
to FY 2010 set the target of developing SKY Perfect and its group companies into Japan's largest
conglomerate in the pay broadcasting (content distribution) industry to provide consumers with wide-ranging
and diverse content services.

Index leads its corporate group that offers varied content and services for mobile and many other different
media. It runs a content business, commerce business and publishing business and has close relations with the
toy industry as well as with the broadcasting industry.

With this capital tie-up with Index, SKY Perfect will be further accelerating its multi-platform strategy,
including the mobile platform, and continuing to strengthen its content procurement capabilities with the use
of the expertise, members and the network owned by Index and its group to press on with establishing a pay

broadcasting business conglomerate in the era of integration between broadcasting and communications.

2. Details of the tie-up

SKY Perfect will accept 44,052 shares, which account for 4.69 % of all outstanding shares, among the news



shares allocated to third pames for capital participation. The number of shares acquired, the acquisition cost
and the shareholding status before and after the acquisition are as follows:

(1)  No share owned (with no voting rights and 0% ownership) before the capital tie-up

(2) 44,052 shares (with 44,052 voting rights) to be acquired at an acquisition cost of 9,999 804,000 yen

(3) 44,052 shares to be owned (with 44,052 voting rights and 4.69 % ownership) after the capital tie-up

The comprehensive partnership between SKY Perfect and Index with respect to the content businesses and
mutual services for each other's subscribers, centered on satellite broadcasting and mobile media, will lead to
mutual use of each company’s content, subscriber base, management resources and service expertise to expand
the services for viewers and users and to enhance cross-media services for subscribers. Both companies will
establish a project team for actualize the partnership to start continuous deliberations between them. SKY
Perfect will assign a non-executive director to Index.

SKY Perfect will be setting up a new company that operates a new business based on mobile phones to
strengthen the mobile segment on June 1, 2005. It believes that this partnership with Index will further
accelerate the multi-platform strategy for expansion to mobile communications. In non-mobile sectors, both
companies expect to offer synergy to each other by each covering high-affinity business segments in the
media-related business and by forming partnership relations. One example is Index’s acquisition of the right to
achieve online distribution of video clips associated with the 2006 FIFA World Cup™ to PCs and mobile
terminals in Japan, as announced today by Index. Combining complete coverage of all matches by SKY
Perfect and mobile terminals by Index, this project will be able to offer customers a video distribution service

that integrates broadcasting and communications.

3. Corporate profile of Index Corporation
(1)  Company name: Index Corporation
(2)  President: Yoshimi Ogawa
(3)  Head Office: Carrot Tower, 4-1-1 Taishido, Setagaya-ku, Tokyo
(4)  Founded: September 1995
(5)  Line of business: Planning, production and distribution of content for mobile phones and
development and sale of video technologies and video software
(6)  Accounts closed: August

(7)  Number of employees: 153 (on a con-consolidated basis)

(8) Capital: 10,732 million yen (as of the end of April 2005)

(9)  Total issued stocks: 849,819 stocks (as of the end of April 2005)
(10)  Major shareholders and their shareholding ratios

Masami Ochiai 199,240 2381 %
Mitsubisht Corporation 60,376 722 %
Yoshimi Ogawa 53,524 640 %
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Account in trust) 47373 5.66 %
The Mitsubishi Trust and Banking Corporation 30,602 3.66%
{Account in trust) .

Fuji Television Network, Inc. 16,320 1.95 %




Kazutosh1 Watanabe 15,824 1.8%9 %
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Account in 15,279 1.83 %
trust)

TV Asahi Corporation 12,960 1.55 %
Japan Secunities Finance Co., Ltd. 12,026 144 %

(11)  Trends in consolidated results in recent fiscal years

(As of the end of February 2005)

396,131 million yen

Sales 20,487 million yen

Operating profit 2,299 million yen 3,577 million ven
Ordinary profit 2,442 million yen 3,580 million yen
Net profit 1,289 million yen 11,175 million yen

Total assets

12,819 mullion yen

51,422 million yen

Shareholders' equity

9,185 million yen

7,918 million yen|

4. Timetable

May 30, 2005: Decision on the capital tie-up and new stock issuance from Index

June 15, 2005: Payment and stock acquisition (expected)

5. Future outlook

Thus capital tie-up is part of the tangible progress in our Mid-Term Vision. At this stage, there is no revision

to this Vision. We will be announcing updated information regarding the impact of this tie-up on our

consolidated results for the March 2006 term on a later date after studying the specific plan for the partnership.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399

End
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Hirovasu Oyama

General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonar Niimoto

General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of May 2005

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and
Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura) announced the number of Total Registrations and
Individual Subscribers as of the end of May 2005.

New Subscribers
Chumn
Churn Rate*3
May Net Increase 25, 992 20, 741
Cumulative Total 3, 880, 417 3, 353, 650

*The total column shows the summed-up figure of “SKY PerfecTV/”, “SKY PerfecTV/ 110” and “Multi-channel
broadcasting service through HIKART PerfecTV/”

New Subscnibers 40, 027 37,172
Churn 23, 301 21,728
Churn Rate*3 7. 7% 8. 2%
May Net Increase 16, 726 15, 444

C

lative Total

New Subscribers

Churn
Churn Rate*3
May Net Increase 9, 099 5,135
Cumulative Total 220, 668 171, 696

New Subscribers 176 171
Churmn 9 9
Churn Rate*3 8. 0% 8. 8%
May Net Increase 167 162
Cumulative Total 1,514 1,391




*]  Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay-
subscription agreement (provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), institutional
subscribers including retailers exhibition and registrations for technical development in
addition to individual subscribers.

*¥2  Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have
been actually paying subscription fee.

*3  Monthly Churn Rate : The churn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number

of churns into vearly basis.
Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month
/Total Subscribers at the end of the previous month
x 12 months

The breakdown of properties that have approved HIKARI PerfecTV! and properties currently
recetving the service. (as of the end of May 2005)

Number of properties 475 139
Number of households*6 29,112 10, 235

b

*4  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each
month, have concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multi-channel broadcasting
service) provision agreement. This figure also includes some properties for which service
provision will commence in the following month or later, depending on when construction
will be completed.

*5  Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month,
broadcasting services (retransmission or multi-channel broadcasting service) are being
provided and which are being charged for such.

*6 The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Acquisition of SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC Shares

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) has acquired all shares in SPACE SHOWER NETWORKS INC
(JASDAQ:4838; Head Office: Minato-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Takeshi Nakai;
“Space Shower™) held by CHANNEL[VINETHERLANDS Nol B.V. (Standing proxy: News Broadcasting
Japan Co., Ltd.), which equates to 2,666 shares or 10.0% of the total number of shares already issued by the
company, through a negotiation transaction for a sum of 1,013,080,000 yen (380,000 yen per share).

Space Shower uses SKY Perfect to broadcast its music channels “Space Shower TV and “Video Music
Ch.,)” as well as its weather information channel “‘e-Tenki.net,” and taking into account distribution to cable
television stations as well, is Japan’s largest music video content broadcaster and distnibutor with an aundience
nationwide of some 6.066 mullion households (as of March 31, 2005). With business activities centering on its
“Space Shower TV” brand, Space Shower is now actively expanding its mobile business, which includes the
distribution of music content such as melodic ring tones for mobile phones, as well as its advertising business

which involves tie-ups with music events.

This acquisition of shares will be made as part of concrete measures by SKY Perfect to strengthen the
company’s vertical expansion or DTH business expansion, in line with the Mid-Term Vision (FY2005-2010)
announced on January 26, 2005. Through this acquisition, SKY Perfect is not only aiming to strengthen our
partnership with Space Shower, who has know-how and expernence in the operation of music channels and
music content production, and to effectively market music, so-called “killer content,” through CS digital
broadcasting, but to also actively expand the provision of content for the Internet and other networks as well

as for mobile handsets, thereby further stepping up SKY Perfect’s multi-platform strategy.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL : 03-5468-9400 FAX : 03-5468-939%
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Announcement of Executive Reshuffle

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (headquarters: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and Representative

Director: Hajime Shigemura) has approved and formally decided on the appointment of new Directors at the

11th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 24, 2005, as was announced on May 25, 2003,

SKY Perfect also elected Representative Directors, Managing Directors and Executive Officers at the Board

Meeting held after the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders. Representative Directors of subsidiaries

have been made as an informal decision and will be officially decided shortly after following the necessary

procedures at each company. The details of the decision are as follows.

@ Directors/Auditors (As of June 24, 2005)

Chairman and Representative Director

Yasushi Hosoda

President and Representative Director

Hajime Shigemura

Executive Vice President

Hiroyuki Shinoki

Managing Director

Masao Nito

Managing Director (Newly appointed)

Ryoj Hirabayashi

Non-Executive Director (Newly appointed)

Tatsuro Saitoh

Non-Executive Director Kikujiro Shikano
Non-Executive Director Tatsuya Tamura
Non-Executive Director Kageo Nakano
Non-Executive Director Nozomu Yoshida
Non-Executive Director Toshichika Ishihara
Non-Executive Director Kenji Kamimura
Non-Executive Director (Newly appointed) Masakatsu Mori




@ Exccutive Officers (as of June 24, 2005)

First Senior Executive Officer (Promoted) Junichi Watanabe
Senior Executive Officer (Promoted) Toshikuni Shimizu
Sentor Executive Officer (Promoted) Masafumi Kawanishi
Senior Executive Officer (Newly appointed) Akira Tanaka
Executive Officer Uju Yamazaki
Executive Officer Shuhei Yamaura

@ Subsidiaries

Company Ratio of Representative Directors
shareholding | (informal)

OptiCast Inc. 100% Tatsuro Saitoch (Newly appointed)

Pay Per View Japan, Inc. 65.0% Junichi Watanabe (Newly appointed)

Data Network Center Corporation 51.0% Hisam: Katacka (Newly appointed)

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Establishment of Information Disclosure Committee

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce the new establishment and start of
operations of the Information Disclosure Committee, established as an advisory body to the President and
Representative Director, to further bolster the Company’s internal systems for the timely and appropriate

disclosure of company information.

When disclosing company information, SKY Perfect has long endeavored to execute appropriate and
timely disclosures in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Law, the Tokyo Stock Exchange’s (“TSE™)
regulations relating to timely disclosure, and other relevant legislation and regulations. The Company
submitted a Declaration on Timely Disclosure, signed by the President and Representative Director, to the
TSE on February 28 this year, thereby expressing our intention to take a serious approach to information
disclosure. The formation of the Information Disclosure Committee is part of measures we are taking to
promote better information disclosure. The Committee is designed not only to facilitate the timely and
appropriate disclosure of information by SKY Perfect as a listed company, but also to facilitate the speedy
and fair disclosure of information to our subscribers and other relevant parties, and the speedy and fair

~ disclosure of information in general as a company that has a strong presence in the community.

The Committee will be headed up by the President and Representative Director and shall be made up of, in
addition to the President and Representative Director, the Director and Executive Officer that oversee
information disclosure, and other Executive Directors and Executive Officers that manage the information to
be discussed on disclosure. Standing auditors shall also participate in Committee investigations as observers,
and the General Managers of the Public Relations and Investor Relations Departments shall perform
secretariat functions. Through regular committee to be held during the Management Committee meetings that
are usually convened weekly and special committee meetings called as required, the Committee will look at

the necessity and details of information disclosure.

Information subject to investigation by the Committee can be classified into three categories, D




information disclosed in accordance with the TSE’s timely disclosure regulations; @ mformation that is
broader in scope than (D and that is disclosed in light of its importance to the Company’s expansion of
business activities; and @ information not required to be disclosed under TSE regulations, but that 1s
disclosed 1n light of 1its social importance or public nature. Particularly throﬁgh the disclosure of information
that comes under @ above, such as information on personnel or organizational changes, damages caused by
disasters, or the commencement of new business activities and the like, the Company is aiming to further
actively expand on disclosures made under D above. Moreover, through the disclosure of information that
comes under @ above, such as information on personal information leaks and broadcasting interruptions,

SKY Perfect will endeavor to enhance its information disclosure in keeping with the public nature of our

corporate activities.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL : 03-5468-9400 FAX : 03-5468-9399
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OptiCast to Provide CS Multi-Channel Broadcasts
to Cable Television Station

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Hiroyuki Shinoki;
“OptiCast™), a 100% owned subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; President and Representative Director; Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect™), has filed an application
for the commencement of business under the Cable Television Broadcast Law to the Ministry of Internal
Affairs and Communications, for the deployment of HIKARI PerfecTV/ Multichannel Pay TV Services using
part of the fiber-optic network bandwidth owned by Cable City Yokohama (Head Office: Nishi-ku,
Yokohama; President: Hideaki Nagaoka; “CCY™), who are engaged in cable television business, primarily in
the Minato Mirai 21 district.

This partnership will enable CCY to retransmit all types of broadcasts ranging from terrestrial analog and
digital and BS analog and digital broadcasts to AM, FM and SW radio broadcasts, through their newly
upgraded fiber-optic network, while on the other hand, it will enable OptiCast to provide HIKARI PerfecTV!
Multichannel Pay TV Services by using the available bandwidth on the same fiber-optic network. Subject to
approval of their recent application to the Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications, OptiCast will
ready itself for the provision of services covering their major broadcasts to the central part of the Minato
Mirai 21 district over the fiber-optic network from August 1, 2005. The pricing scheme will be the same as
that for existing HIKARI PerfecTV/ Multichannel Pay TV Services, with the new subscription fee set at
2,940 yen, basic monthly charges at 410 yen, set-top box rental charge at 315 yen (including consumption
tax), and monthly fees for optional channel selections and package sets charged on top of these fees. The
service is due to be made available to one condominium complex and around 300 households in the area to

start with, with service then to be progressively expanded to accommodate some 4,500 houscholds in the
future.

Established in 1993, CCY’s primary aim has been to address reception problems in the Minato Mirai 21
district, an area characterized by its modern high-rise buildings, and surrounding areas, and to date has been
providing retransmission services over analog, copper-cable networks. Now, the availability of a digital
fiber-optic network will dramatically increase CCY’s transmission capabilities, enabling them to realize
cutting-edge multichannel broadcasting services by also making use of OptiCast’s video distribution
know-how.

To date, OptiCast has been using the fiber-optic networks of telecommunications companies to deploy their
services in Tokyo and Osaka under the Law Concerning Broadcast via Telecommunications Carriers’
Facilities, but this is the first time that OptiCast has worked together with an existing cable television



provider in the distribution of video content.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept /Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL : 03-5468-9400 FAX : 03-5468-9399
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Launch of HIKARI PerfecTV! Service in the Kawasaki and
Yokohama Areas

OptiCast Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:Tatsuro Saitoh;
“OptiCast™), a 100% owned subsidiary of SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo; President and Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”), will launch the HIKARI
PerfecTV/ service in the Kawasaki and Yokohama areas today.

OptiCast has already deployed the service to the 23 wards of Tokyo, Osaka-shi, Toyonaka-shi, Suita-shi,
and almost all areas in Moriguchi-shi, and some areas in Kadoma-shi, Higashi Osaka-shi, and Settsu-shi.
Having finalized registration of changes relating to service areas for cable television broadcasting operations
in the Kawasaki and Yokohama areas under the Law Concerning Broadcast via Telecommunications Carriers’
Facilities with the Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications, OptiCast will now launch the HIKARI
PerfecTV/ service across Kawasaki-shi, almost all areas in Yokohama-shi’s Tsurumi-ku, Kanagawa-ku,
Nishi-ku, Naka-ku, Minami-ku, Kouhoku-ku, Aoba-ku, and Tsudzuki-ku, as well as some areas in
Yokohama-shi’s Hodogaya-ku, Totsuka-ku, Kounan-ku, and Midoni-ku.

Subject to approval of its application for the commencement of business to the Minustry of Internal Affairs
and Communications in accordance with the Cable Television Broadcast Law, OptiCast plans to launch its
HIKARI PerfecTV! Multichannel Pay TV Services in Yokohama’s Minato Mirai 21 distnct from August 1,
2005. These services will be provided using available bandwidth on the fiber-optic network owned by Cable
City Yokohama (CCY). Meanwhile, in the Mid-Term Vision, SKY Perfect announced that the service area
will be progressively expanded to cover the seven major metropohitan areas by the end of FY2006 to provide
some 13.5 million households nationwide with access to this service. SKY Perfect is also aiming to introduce

the HIKARI PerfecTV/! service to around 50,000 households in condominiums throughout FY2005.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX; 03-5468-9399




 Overview of service options

Channe] details

HIKARI PerfecTV/ Basic Channel Services

* Terrestrial analog broadcasting

* Terrestrial digital broadcasting Available to
+BS analog broadcasting all
*BS digital broadcasting households

*FM radio broadcasting

_ J

HIKARI PerfecTV/ Multichannel Pay TV
Services

*Each SKY Perfect channel
*Each SKY Perfect packaged set

(Ref)

Monthly service charges (Tax included)

Y

(DVideo cable charge: 18,900 yen/network (building)

(@Distribution equipment usage charge:
410 yen/household

—  Payment collected in a lnump-sum out of

Voluntary  \

X Some regular SKY PerfecTV/ channels are not available for
viewing at present.

JNHK reception charges and paid broadcasting service viewing fees
will be charged separately.

subscript_iown/

K condominium management fees j

@I—HKARI PerfecTV/ Multichannel Pay TV
Basic fee: 410 yen/subscription

@HIK ARI PerfecTV/ Multichanne] Pay TV
Set-top box rental charge: 315 yen/subscription

(®HIK ARI PerfecTV/ Multichannel Pay TV
Subscription fee: Subscribed Ch+PPV, etc.

¥ Aregistration fee of 2,940 yen is charged
separately at the time of subscription.

— HIKARI PerfecTV/ Multichannel Pay TV

Services

Collected individually from subscribers.

/
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Notice Regarding Management Organization Changes

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) is pleased to announce the following organizational changes as
of July 1,2005.

Details

1. Organizational changes

SKY Perfect will abolish its traditional group (“bumon”)-based organizational structure (Finance &
Control Group, Program Acquisition & Development Group, Platform Business Group, and Technology &
Development Group) in favor of a group (“honbu™) -based structure. '

Accordingly, the Finance & Control Group, the Programming & Coordination Group, the Broadcasting
Business Group, the Sales Group, th¢ Business Development Group, and the Technology & Development
Group will be newly established.

-Finance & Control Group

Finance & Control Group will oversee the Legal Department, Human Resources and General Affairs
Department, Finance & Accounting Department, Public Relations Department, and Investor Relations
Department.

- Programming & Coordination Group
Programming & Coordination Group will oversee the Broadcasting Operation Department,

Programming & Coordination Department, and Market Analysis Department.

- Broadcasting Business Group
The Program Information Center will be newly established.
Broadcasting Business Group will oversee the Customer Satisfaction Promotion Department,

Broadcasting Business Department, and the Program Information Center.

- Sales Group



Sales Group will oversee the Advertising & Promotion Department, Sales Planning & Control

Department, and Sales Department.

- Business Development Group

Business Development Group will aversee the Business Development & Promotion Department and the

Business Investment Department.

- Technology & Development Group

Technology & Development Group will oversee the Broadcasting & Production Technology Department,

Platform Systems
Department.

Department,

Information - Technology

Department,

2. Duties Delegated to Executive Directors and Executive Officers

Position Name Delegated Duties and Role
Cplialrman anq . Yasushi Hosoda Internal Audit Dept.
epresentative Director
President and Hajime
Representative Director | Shigemura

Executive Vice President

Hiroyuki Shinoki

Privacy Compliance Dept.,, Platform Strategy
Planning Dept., Programming & Coordination
Group, Broadcasting Business Group, Sales Group,
Business Development Group

Managing Director

Masao Nito

Corporate Planning Dept., Affiliates Administration
Dept., Technology & Development Group

Managing Director

Ryoji Hirabayashi

Finance & Control Group

First Senior Executive
Officer

Junichi Watanabe

President and Representative Director of subsidiary
companies (SKY Perfect Well Think Co.,Ltd.,
Samural TV. Inc., Pay Per View Japan Inc.)

Senior Executive Officer To_shl_kum Finance & Control Group General Manager
Shimizu
Senior Executive Officer Mas - Sales Group General Manager
Kawanishi
Programming & Coordination Group General
Senior Executive Officer | Akira Tanaka Manager, Broadcasting Business Group General
Manager
Executive Officer Uju Yamazaki Business Development Group General Manager

Executive Officer

Shuhei Yamaura

1 Technology & Development Group

General Manager

* For any inquinies on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-3468-9399

and Platform Technology




Board of Auditors

Auditors

Compensation Advisory Committee
Candidate Advisory Committee

Governance Advisory Committee

Internal Audit Department

r
L

Shareholders’

Meeting

:

Information Disclosure Committee

iAﬁ')iiaLes Administration Dept. J

Corporate Planning Dept. "

Committee for the Management of Personal

Information

Privacy Compliance Dept.

Platform Strategy Planning Dept

Platform Technology Dept.

- Organizational Chart (As of July 1, 2005)

Board of Directors

Chairman

President

Management

Committee

2 2
> .
gp g o Information Technology Dept.
<58
235
30
= Platform Systems Dept.
Broadcasting & Production Technology
Dept.
o
w5
v
g E 5‘ Business Investment Dept
R
= °>’ &
=B
A Busi Devel & Promotion
Dept.
Sales Dept,
=
=
£
O Sales Planning & Contro] Dept. J
4
I
w2
Advertising & Promotion Dept.
Program Information Center
o
2y
n g B
=
g = Broadeasting Business Dept.
T n M
g 2 ]
¢E [sa]
Cust rs Satisfaction Promotion Dept.
Market Analysis Dept.
o3
o g
g -.g o
EEE _g § Programming & Coordination Dept.
=20
)
5 O
Broadeasting Operation Dept,
Investor Relations Dept.
= Public Relations Dept.
5
=
1}
O =
=
3 2 Finance & Accounting Dept.
g©
53
o
[
=
e Human R & General Affairs
) Dept.
Legal Dept.




' FILE No.
82—5113
To whom it may concern:

July 4, 2003

il AN Hajime Shigemura

.’? T e f;: f 4 E D President and Representative Director

s 0T SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

: 24 P~ (TSE 1st Section Code No. 4795)
IFEICE oF e ~ U For any inquiries please call

COrPpR A‘f}iéi "«;r;if;%j Bar Hiroyasu Oyama

ANCE General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonari Numoto
General Manager
Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-95400)

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of June 2005

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and
Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura) announced the number of Total Registrations and
Individual Subscribers as of the end of June 2005.

New Subscribers
Churn 30, 079 22,290
Churn Rate*3 9. 3% 8. 0%
June Net Increase 17, 355 14, 145
Cumulative Total 3,897,772 3, 367, 795

*The total column shows the summed-up figure of “SKY PerfecTV/”, “SKY PerfecTV/ 110” and “Multichannel
broadcasting service through HIKARI PerfecTV/”

New Subscribers 32, 725 30,969

Churn 23,394 20,976

Chum Rate*3 7. 7% 7. 9%

June Net Increase 9, 331 g, 993
Cumulative Total 3, 667, b66

3, 190, 556

fe :
New Subscribers 5,330
Churn 6,879 1,308
Churn Rate*3 36. 3% 9. 1%
June Net Increase 7,902 4,022
Cumulative Total 228,570 175, 718

New Subscribers 128 136
Churn 6 6
Chumn Rate*3 4, 8% 5. 2%
June Net Increase 122 130
Cumulative Total 1, 636 1, 521




*1  Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay-
subscription agreement (provistonal subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), institutional
subscribers including retailers exhibition and registrations for technical development in
addition to individual subscribers.

*2  Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have
been actually paying subscription fee,

*3  Monthly Churm Rate : The churn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number

of churns into yearly basis.
Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month
/Total Subscribers at the end of the previous month
x 12 months

The breakdown of properties that have approved HIKARI PerfecTV/ and properties currently
receiving the service. (as of the end of June 2005)

Number of properties 499 151

Number of households*6 31, 602 10, 810

*4  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each
month, have concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multi-channel broadcasting
service) provision agreement. This figure also includes some properties for which service
provision will commence in the following month or later, depending on when construction
will be completed.

*5  Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month,
broadcasting services (retransmission or multi-channel broadcasting service) are being
provided and which are being charged for such.

*6  The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-95400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Change-Over to a New System Accompanying Transmission Equipment Upgrades

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative Director:
Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) has continued to provide service using the platform transmission
equipment of predecessor companies PerfecTV/ (using the JCSAT-3 communications satellite at 128 degrees
longitude east) and JskyB (using the JCSAT-4A communications satellite at 124 degrees longitude east) even
after the merging of these two compantes in 1998. Now, however, SKY Perfect has built a new system that
incorporates cutting-edge digital technology at our Meguro Media Center (Shuinagawa-ku, Tokyo) and has
integrated the two systems into one to make operations more efficient.

The change-over to the new system 1is expected to be complete with the change-over of channels that
formerly belonged to JskyB to the new system for start of operations from 6 am today, and the change-over of
the remaining channels that formerly belonged to PerfecTV! is due to take place in September this year.

The upgraded transmission equipment forms the central system for our platform business in that it digitally
compresses the program content sent from about 100 broadcasters on each channel over optical fiber and
multiplexes electroric program guides (EPG) and other data for transmission to the sending stations (uplink
sites). As this was the first time that SKY Perfect, which was the first company to commence digital
broadcasting in Japan in October 1996, was to upgrade our transmission equipment, these current operations
are the result of very careful and ongoing investigations and development efforts over the last three years.
Please note that the antennas and set-top boxes currently 1n use by subscribers can continue to be used as they
are after the change-over to the new system.

The total cost of introducing this new system is expected to come in at around 10 billion yen, and
budgetary steps have already been taken since FY2003. Moving forward, SKY Perfect will continue to
explore the possibilities associated with CS digital multichannel broadcasting and continue to provide
cutting-edge digital broadcasting services.

End.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL - 03-5468-9400 FAX : 03-5468-9399
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)Acquisition of Exclusive Broadcasting Rights in Japan

for the FIBA World Championship 2006 for Basketball

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) has obtained the exclusive broadcasting rights (including the
rights for satellite, terrestrial, and cable television broadcasting) in Japan for all 80 games to be played duning
the FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP 2006 that will be held in Japan from August 19, 2006 to September 3,
2006.

The FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP is the leading world championship for basketball that decides the
world’s best in men’s basketball out of the 212 countries and regions around the world that are affiliated with
FIBA (the International Basketball Federation). The first FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP was held in
Buenos Aires, Argentina in 1950, and since then, has been held once every four years in the intervening years
between Olympics. The 2006 WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP will be the 15th championship, and marks the first
time the event has been staged in Asia in 28 years since the 8th WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP was held 1n
Manila in the Philippines in 1978. For the 2006 FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP there has been a dramatic
increase in the number of participating countries (regions), up from 16 teams to 24 teams. For this reason,
group team rounds will be held in four cities: Sapporo City in Hokkaido, Sendai City in Miyagi Prefecture,
Hamamatsu City in Shizuoka Prefecture, and Hiroshima City in Hiroshima Prefecture. In addition to this, the

final round is due to be played in Saitama City in Saitama Prefecture. SKY Perfect plans to use the features of



its multichannel! services to provide coverage for all §0 games including live broadcasts. SKY Perfect is also
currently coordinating sub-licensees for multichannel and terrestrial broadcasting rights, and will announce

the details of such arrangements once they are decided upon.

At the same time that vwe won the broadcasting rights for the FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP 2006, SKY
Perfect also obtained the nghts to broadcast all eight games of the KIRIN INTERNATIONAL
BASKETBALL 2005 (to be held from August 20, 2005 to August 24, 2005) organized by the Japan
Basketball Association (JABBA). SKY Perfect plans to provide coverage of all eight games through live
broadcasts over our Perfect Choice (182 ch) and SKY Channel! 110 (802 ch) channels. KIRIN
INTERNATIONAL BASKETBALL 2005 1s set to be a pre-championship competition involving a play-off
between the teams of four countries — Korea (ranked 20" on the FIBA rankings), Lithuania (ranked 6™ on the

FIBA rankings), Turkey (ranked 18" on the FIBA rankings), and Japan (ranked 23™ on the FIBA rankings).

Through the broadcasting of these two events, as well as the 2005-06 NBA (Perfect Choice), WNBA

(Sports-1 ESPN) , JBL Super League 2005-2006 (sky-A), and the 7th W League (sky- A), SKY Perfect will
showcase the appeal of both Japanese and international basketball content to many viewers, and at the same
time, will continue to endeavor to enhance and expand our range of varied and appealing sports content

moving forward.

[Notice of Live SKY Perfect Basketball Broadcasts]
Outline of KIRIN INTERNATIONAL BASKETBALL 2005 broadcasting

SKY Perfect will provide a non-scrambled (free of charge) broadcast of all eight games of the KIRIN
INTERNATIONAL BASKETBALL 20035, to be held as pre-championship competition in the lead up to the
FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP 2006 (August 19, 2006 to September 3, 2006).

Starting with the broadcast of this event, SKY Perfect then plans to expand our coverage of the Japanese team
and of basketball content in the lead up to the FIBA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP 2006, and further plans to
strengthen basketball content so that it may become a mainstay of sport’s channel coverage alongside

baseball, soccer, and martial-arts.

(Broadcast title) KIRIN INTERNATIONAL BASKETBALL 2005
(Broadcast channels) SKY PerfecTV/ Ch.182 Perfect Choice



SKY PerfecTV/ 110 (*1)  Ch.802 SKY Channel! 110
(Broadcast date/time) Aug. 20 (Sat) 16:15-22:00 (Live from the Saitama Super Arena)
(16:30 Lithuania vs. Turkey /19:00 Japan vs. Korea)
Aug. 21 (Sun) 12:15-18:00 (Live from the Saitama Super Arena)
(12:30 Korea vs. Lithuania/15:00 Turkey vs. Japan)
Aug. 22 (Mon) 16:15-22:00 (Live from the Hamamatsu Arena)
(16:30 Turkey vs. Korea/19:00 Japan vs. Lithuania)
Aug. 24 (Wed) 16:15-22:00 (Live from the Hiroshima Green Arena)
(16:30~ 3-4 place final)
3 Regardless of who wins the 3-4 place final, the Japan game will
start from 19:00
(*1) About SKY PerfecTV/110
SKY PerfecTV/110 is a CS digital satellite broadcasting service operated by SKY Perfect Communications Inc. using a
communications satellite positioned in orbit at 110-degrees longitude east. The service name is SKY PerfecTV/ 110. A CS 110
set-top box and antenna or BS digital / CS 110 common set-top box 1s required to receive broadcasts through this service. There
are currently a total of 74 channels, including both television and data broadcasting channels, being broadcast over the SKY
PerfecTV! 110 service. On offer through this service are entertainment-related channels that include some of SKY Perfect’s

channels covering sports, movies, music and so on.

{Company Profile] (As of June 1, 2005)

Company name: SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

Service name: SKY PerfecTV/

Head office: Shibuya Cross Tower 2-15-1 Shibuya, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo T 150-8326
Capital: 50,014 million yen

President and Representative Director; Hajime Shigemura

End.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Financial / Business Results (Consolidated) for - -:,\i{ PoR HIERMA Y100,
the First Quarter of the Year Ending March 2006 TR FIN AR

Company Name: SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Code No. 4795 Tokyo Stock Exchange 1st Section
(URL http://www.skyperfectv.co.ip)

Representative: Hajime Shigemura, President and Representative Director

For any inquiries please call: Katsunori Suzuki, General Manager of Finance & Accounting
Dept.
TEL: (03)5468-7800

1. Matters Relating to the Preparation, etc. of the Quarterly Business Results

@ Difference between Accounting Treatment and Recognition Methods for the Recent
Consolidated Fiscal Year: None

@ Changes in Application of Consolidation and Equity Method:
Consolidated (new) 1 Equity Method (new) 0
(excluded) 0 (excluded) 0

2. Business Results for the First Quarter of the Year Ending March 2006 (from April 1, 2005
through June 30. 2005)

(1) Progress of Business Results (Consolidated)

(Note) The figures are rounded down to the nearest one million yen.

Net Income for the
Operating Revenue Operating Income Ordinary Income Current Quarter
(Current Period)

(Million yen) (%) | (Million yen) (%) | (Million yen) (%) | (Million yen) (%)
First quarter of the

year ending March 20,354 8.4 -420 - -208 - -103 -
2006

First quarter of the

year ended March 18,777 5.3 1,699 -24.6 1,908 -29.1 1,722 -254
2005

(Reference) ¥ ear 74016 2.1 2,826 -31.9| 3,681 -24.1 3,709 -15.4

ended March 2005




Net Income per Net Irslﬁgige per
Share (fully diluted)

(yen) (yen)
First quarter of the
year ending March -48.13 -
2006
First quarter of the
year ended March 759.55 758.76
2005
(Reference) Year
ended March 2005 1,630.78 1,629.52

(Note) Percentages appearing under Operating Revenue, Operating Income, Ordinary Income and Net Income
for the Current Quarter represent the ratio of increase/decrease compared to the same quarter of the

prior year.

Net Income per Share (fully diluted) for the First quarter of the year ending March 2006 has not been

included since net loss has been posted for the relevant quarter.

(Million yen)

Classification of Business

Previous Fiscal Year (Consolidated)

First Quarter
of the Current

Services, etc. First Second Third Fourth Full Fiscal YVear
Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter Year (Consolidated)
Customer management
business and promotion 12,158 12,203 12,023 12,222 | 48,608 12,536
of digital broadcasting
Business relating to
broadcasting of 2,465 2,481 2,407 2,414 9,768 2,282
programs
Other platform-related 4153 3,683| 4011] 3,790 15640 5,535
businesses
Total 18,777 | 18,369 | 18,442 | 18,427 | 74,016 20,354
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July 27, 2005

Hajime Shigemura
President and Representative Director
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
(TSE 1st Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries please call
Hiroyasu Oyama
General Manager
Public Relations Dept.
Tomonari Niimoto
General Manager
Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-3468-9400)

Summary of Business Results of 1Q/FY2005 (Supplement)

1. Subscriber Addition and Churn

(Thousands of people)

Total Sub.Net Addition 35 74 39 112.9%
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (13) 26) (13) (93.6%)
(HIKARI PerfecTV/) (—) ) o) )
Total Sub. at Period End 3,681 3,898 216 5.9%
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (137) (229) 92) (67.2%)
(HIKARI PerfecTV/) ) @) @) (=)
New Individual Sub. 105 127 22 21.0%
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (12) (19) ) (62.0%)
(HIKARI PerfecTVY) =) M (1) (=)
Number of Individual Churn 78 69 —10 —12.2%
(SKY PerfecTV/110) 3) @) ©) (11.7%)
(HIKARI PerfecTV/) ) ©) ©) -)
Individual Sub. Net Addition 26 58 32 120.5%
(SKY PerfecTV/110) ) (15) 7) (81.8%)
(HIKARI PerfecTV/) (—) ) o) ()
Individual Sub. at Period End 3,208 3,368 159 5.0%
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (123) (176) (52) (42.4%)
(HIKARI PerfecTV/) ) @) ) (=)
Individual Churn Rate (%) 9.8% 8.3% ~15 -
(SKY PerfecTV/110) (10.9%) (8.6%) (—2.3) (=)
(HIKARI PerfecTV/) (-) | (7.5%) =) =)




@ Through the effective use of aggressive marketing mainly for SKY PerfecTV/ services, such as the
zero-yen antenna installation promotion, the number of new individual subscribers for Q1 of the period
ending March 2006 increased by 22 thousand compared to the same time last year to 127 thousand
subscribers. This equates to a net increase of 32 thousand subscribers over last year’s figure, taking this
year’s net increase up to 58 thousand subscribers. These figures suggest a move away from the sluggish

increase in subscriber numbers of recent years.

@ The chum rate for Q1 came in at 8.3%, representing a dramatic improvement of 1.5 points over the same
period last year. This improvement is largely the result of the stepping up of churn prevention measures by
our customer center and the renewal of the program information magazine Club SKY Perfect since

February 2005.

® As a result, the cumulative number of individual subscribers as of the end of the first quarter for the March

2006 term was 3,368 thousand, up 159 thousand compared to the same time last year.



2. Business Results

Financial Summary (April 1, 2005 - June 30, 2005)

ions of Yen)

Revenues 18,777 20,354 1,576 8.4%
Operating Profit/Loss 1,699 —420 ~-2,120 -
Profit/Loss before 1,908 —108 2116 _
Income Taxes

Net Profit/Loss- 1,722 —103 —1,826 -
EBITDA 2,491 772 —1,718 —69.0%
Total Assets 123,988 127,072 3,084 2.5%
Total Shareholder’s 95,713 90,167 5,545 —5.8%
Equity

Net Cash from na oo
Operating Activities 699 3,009 2,309 329.}9/0
Net Cash from

Investing Activities 10,539 4,240 6,299

Net Cash from

Financing Activities 1,266 2,347 1,081

Net Cash and Cash

Equivalents at the End 34,834 28,661 —6,173 —17.7%
of Period

Revenues 18,253 18,471 218 1.2%
Operating Profit/Loss 1,821 151 —1,669 —91.7%
ProfitLoss before 2,067 428 —1,638 —79.3%
Income Taxes ’

Net Profit/Loss 1,844 526 —1,318 —71.5%
EBITDA 2,507 1,181 —1,326 —52.9%
Total Assets 119,081 119,363 282 0.2%
Total Sharcholder’s 96,997 92,783 —4213 —43%
Equity

@ Thanks to the increase in the cumulative number of individual subscribers and the contribution to revenues
made by Pay Per View Japan Inc. and Cable television Adachi Corp., both of which have become

‘consolidated subsidiaries of the Company, revenues were up 1,576 million yen

period last year to 20,354 million yen.

(8.4%) over the same




@ In terms of profit and loss, although profit results have become fairly stable with the number of individual
subscribers having already topped the three-million subscriber break-even point for our core SKY
PerfecTV/ service, based on the Company’s intention to re-boost increases in new subscribers numbers,
which have been lagging recently, as set out in the Mid-Term Vision formulated and announced in January
2005, the Company is engaging in aggressive marketing campaigns including the zero-yen antenna
installation promotion and the launch of a set-top box rental service by SKYPerfect Marketing Co., Ltd. in
June. The associated increase in operating expenses from these initiatives has resulted in the Company
posting a consolidated loss before income taxes of 208 million yen. This combined with the gain from the
sale of investment securities of 465 million yen and an impairment loss of 326 million yen, resulted in
consolidated net profit in Q1 falling to 103 million yen.

@ With regard to consolidated cash flows, despite the posting of a net loss this quarter, thanks to a smaller
reduction in accounts payable, cash flow from operating activities came in at 3,009 million yen. Meanwhile,
the less frequent use of surplus funds for purposes other than short-term investments and the sale and
redemption of marketable securities resulted in a cash flow from investing activities of minus 4,240 million
yen, with the acquisition of treasury stock generating a cash flow from financing activities of minus 2,347
million yen. As a result, the balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the term was down 6,173
million yen compared to the same time last year to 28,661 million yen.



3. Forecast of Fiscal Year Ending March 2006 (from April 1. 2005 to March 31. 2006)

(Reference)

(Thousands of People, Millions of Yen)

13.1%

74,016 85,000 10,983 14.8%
3,599 500 A3,099 N86.1%
3,681 500 A3,181 N86.4%
3,411 500 N2,911 H853%

AT3.0%

36,068

37,500

4.0%

71,881 75,500 3,618 5.0%

3,959 1,200 2,759 N69.7%

4,677 3,500 A1,177 N25.2%

3,632 1,200 A 24321 A 66.9%

4,532 3,500 1,032 N22.8%
750yen/share 750yen/share — -

*Forecast of fiscal year ending march 2006, announced on May 9, 2005 at the announcement of business

results of fiscal year ending March 2005




@ In terms of our results forecasts, although subscriber numbers and the chum rate for Q1 of the March 2006
term are progressing better than anticipated, there are still some fluctnating factors such as ARPU, and
therefore, we believe that revenues will be pretty much in line with our forecasts.

@ In terms of profit and loss, while in comparison to past years operating expenses are higher due to the
concentrated investment in marketing expenses from Q1, if we take into consideration that some of these
expenses, such as the advertising and promotion expenses associated with the launch of the rental set-top
box service in June, are accelerated costs that will yield effects from Q2 onwards, and that marketing cost
effectiveness will improve with the increase of rental set-top boxes, just as cost effectiveness will also
improve with the deployment of HIKARI PerfecTV! service, at this point in time, the initial interim and
full-year forecasts will be left unchanged.

(Note) Forward looking statements including plan, strategy or belief contained in this material are not past facts but are
forecasts based on the assumption or belief of our management judging from information available currently. Final decisions
related to investment are on the judgment of users themselves. Such forward-looking statements are not guaranteed of future
performance and involve nisks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ from those in the looking-forward statements as
a result of various factors, including, (1) the economic environment surrounding our areas of business, in particular consumer
trends, (2) changes in legisiation such as broadcasting laws and communications laws, particularly in the case of restriction of
our business or proposals to this effect or incase of, for example, new business entry by rival companies, and (3) our ability to
develop and continue to provide programs and services acceptable to customers in a fiercely competitive market characterized
by features such as remarkably rapid technical innovation in the digital technology field in particular and remarkably
subjective and changeable customer preferences in broadcasting business, However, factors that could influence our business

results are not limited to the above.

- * For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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To whom it may concern:

Hajime Shigemura

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(TSE 1st Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries please call

Hiroyasu Oyama

General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-5400) -

Notice on the Allotment of Stock Option (Stock Acquisition Rights)

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (the “Company”) hereby inform that the details of the terms and
conditions of the stock acquisition rights to be issued as stock options in accordance with provisions of
Articles 280-20 and 280-21 of the Commercial Code of Japan pursuant to the resolution of the 11th ordinary
general meeting of shareholders of the Company have been resolved in a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Company held on July 27, 2005. The terms and conditions have been determined as follows.

The amount to be paid upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights and other undecided points are to be
determined on August 1, 2005,

Note

1. Issue date of the stock acquisition rights
August 1, 2005

2. Aggregate number of stock acquisition rights
2,599

3. Issue price of the stock acquisition nghts
No consideration shall be paid.

4. Type and number of shares subject to the stock acquisition rights
Common stock of the Company 2,599 shares

5. Amount to be paid upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights
To be determined later

6. Aggregate amount of shares to be issued through the exercise of the stock acquisitions rights
To be determined later

7. Peniod 1n which the stock acqusition rights may be exercised
From August 1, 2007 to July 31, 2011



8. Amount that will be capitalized by the issuance of new shares through the exercise of the stock
acquisition nights
To be determined later

S.  Persons subject to the allotment of the stock acquisition rights and the number thereof
Directors and employees of the Company: 107 persons

(Reference)

(1) The day of resolution at the meeting of the Board of Directors to propose the issnance of stock
acquisition rights at an ordinary general meeting of shareholders May 9, 2005

(2) The day of resolution at the ordinary general meeting of shareholders June 24, 2005

* For any inguiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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To whom 1t may concern:

Hajime Shigemura

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(TSE 1st Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries please call

Hiroyasu Oyama

General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonar Niimoto

General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Regarding Telecommunications Council Second Interim Report

The Telecommunications Council, which is looking into specific policies for expanding terrestnal
digital broadcasting nationwide, today presented its second interim report concerning the appropriate
usage of terrestrial digital broadcasting in the future and the role of administration in its penetration to
the Ministry of Internal Affairs and Communications.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect””) made the following statement in relation to this report.

o (Comment by Managing Director Masao Nitou
“The second interim report indicates that the Council has deemed to necessary to conduct verification
testing of the retransmission of terrestrial digital broadcasts that utilizes satellite broadcasting systems as
a matter of urgency. SKY Perfect, on our public position as the leading provider of digital broadcasting,
has proposed our CS broadcast service system as a system to resolve difficulties of viewing terrestnal
digital broadcast. This report reflects a strong understanding of this idea. Preparations will now be
promptly undertaken with a view to carrying out verification testing as soon as possible, and we will

announce the details once they are decided.”

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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August 1, 2003

Hajime Shigemura

President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc,

(TSE l1st Section Code No. 4795)
For any inquiries please call

Hiroyasu Oyama

General Manager

Public Relations Dept.

Tomonari Niimoto

General Manager

Investor Relations Dept.

(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Notice on the details of Issuance of Stock Option (Stock Acquisition Rights)

Please be informed that the details of issuance of stock acquisition rights in accordance with provisions
of Article 280-20 and 280-21 of Commercial Law resolved at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company held on July 27, 2005, have been determined today as follows.

1. Issue date of the stock acquisition rights

August 1, 2005

2. Amount to be paid upon exercise of the stock acquisition rights

85,953 yen per share

3. Aggregate amount of shares to be 1ssued through the exercise of the stock acquisition rights

223,391,847 yen

4. Amount that will be capitalized by the 1ssuance of new shares through the exercise of the ‘stock

acquisition rights
42977 yen per share

(Reference)

(1) The day of resolution at the meeting of the Board of Directors to propose the issuance of stock

acquisition nghts at an ordinary general meeting of sharcholders

May 9, 2005

(2) The day of resolution at the ordinary general meeting of shareholders June 24, 2005
(3) The day of resolution at the meeting of the Board of Directors to discuss the allotment of stock

acquisition rights, etc.

July 27, 2005

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept. / Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Tomonan Numoto
General Manager
Investor Relations Dept.
(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of July 2005

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and
Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura) announced the number of Total Registrations and
Individual Subscribers as of the end of July 2005.

[OTAL: ' Total Subscribers*l’ ' | Individual Subscribe
New Subscribers 52, 098 42,578
Churn 30, 438 23, 489
Churn Rate*3 9. 4% 8. 4%
July Net Increase 21, 660 19, 089
Cumulative Total 3,919, 432 3, 386, 884

*The total column shows the summed-up figure of “SKY PerfecTV/”, “SKY PerfecTV/ 110 and “Multichannel
broadcasting service through HIKARI PerfecTV/”

New Subscribers 38, 983 36, 230

Churn 23,945 22,116
Churn Rate*3 7. 8% 8. 3%
July Net Increase 15, 038 14,114

Cumulative Total 3, 682, 604 3, 204, 670

New Subscribers 12,943

Churn 6, 482
Churn Rate*3 34, 0%
July Net Increase 6, 461

Cumulative Total 235, 031

New Subscribers 172 149
Churn 11 11
Churn Rate*3 8. 1% 8. 7%
July Net Increase 161 138
Cumulative Total 1,797 1, 659




*1  Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay-
subscription agreement (provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), mstitutional
subscribers including retailers exhibition and registrations for technical development in

addition to individual subscribers.

*2  Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have

been actually paying subscription fee,

*3  Monthly Churn Rate : The churn rate 1s the figure obtained by converting the monthly number

of churns into yearly basis.

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month

/Total Subscribers at the end of the previous month

x 12 months

The breakdown of properties that have approved HIKARI PerfecTV/ and properties currently

receiving the service. (as of the end of July 2005)

Number of properties 530

160

Number of households*6 34, 641

11, 544

*4  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each

month, have concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting

service) provision agreement. This figure also includes some properties for which service

provision will commence in the following month or later, depending on when construction

will be completed.

*5  Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month,

broadcasting services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being

provided and which are being charged for such.

*6 The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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BEOESSEE Satellite Operator

ISATHH . TEIBEMIISH  JSAT Corporation, Space Communications Corporation
JCSAT-3 I BB 1288 JCSAT-3: 128°F

JCSAT-4A | RiR124E JCSAT-4A: 124°F

N-SAT-110 : BRER110E N-SAT-110: 110°E

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (the “Company”) is not a broadcast station,
but & communications satellite ("CS") platform provider that supports
global top-level multichannel pay TV service. A sweeping wave of industry
deregulation in Japan opened the doors for broadcasters who supply pro-
grams to link with satellite operators who deliver programs through com-
munications satellites. Through our platform business, we are a bridge

) UDliﬁK between broadcasters and subscribers, concentrating our efforts on the
\\L management of subscribers, to provide appealing video and audio con-
\é tent. In addition to satellite service, we also began offering service via Fiber

O To The Home (“FTTH") from February 2004. The Company will continue to
be the leading platform where subscribers can find the content most suited
to their tastes, for viewing programs that they want to see when and

o = s where they want.
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Through our platform operator business, we are leading Japan's
multichannel broadcasting culture. In only nine years since we first
began broadcasts, we have grown into a company that provides
over 3.92 million subscribers with enjoyable content. On top of
running program broadcasting operations, we provide thorough
subscriber management and work for the proliferation of digital
satellite broadcasting. In order to raise the overall value of our ser-
vice, we implement promotional campaigns and offer Pay Per View
service, and deliver own contents through the direct operation of

MMEL BROADCASTING CULTURE

pass)

DOZEFE Four Operations
N> EEEIRER >

Subscription Management Services
o EWVED TR INAMIEERS
Respanding to inquiries about subscriptions and processing subscriptions
o ICH— RRITPES. BHEEZNEESOUNIRES
Issuing proprietary IC cards and
processing requests for changes in subscription channels
o REBKIEZDERES - NN
Billing and collection
o MUIXERERSOEHRME
Providing subscribers with programming and platform information
and responding to enquiries by subscribers
“ANN—FBEEESLVNBRMBBE () TRy hD—0 V5 —IC
BELTLFT,

*SKY PerfecTV/ outsources customer management and fee ccllection operations
to Data Network Center Corporation.

N> FUS BRI RS ER
Promotion of Digital Satellite Broadcasting
o LESLER
Promotion and marketing
o RIBIEMDIBEE - MISHETS
Establishment and maintenance of
a subscription sales agency network
o F 1 — T —FRBOER - BIEER
Design and management of set-top box specifications

M RAEER LSRR >
Digitizing and Uplinking Services
e KIEBBD T VS IVESTIRER
Digital compression and encryption of
broadcasters’ programming
e BUERBED T v T 5
Uplinking of channels

ﬁ>

our own channels,

We are also focusing efforts on developing new services and
products to enable a greater number of subscribers to enjoy a
personalized SKY PerfecTV! experience, as the dramatic advance of
digital technology makes for greater integration of broadcasting and

content distribution.

4 SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

>

) ZOMTS Y T — LELEER
Other Platform-related Services
o T VISR
Broadcasting our own content through
Pay Per View Japan, Inc.
o MHEDD TS T AEHS i
Sublicensing and other services related
to broadcasting rights, etc.




it

tinl
LA
NI

A\ nié

=)

=

(C2)]

(rrl

@ W

(D]
e

DDO)'U' t7\ Five Services

> 124/128ECSTIF JURGE D (R i—)
C5 124/128-degree digital broadcasting
(SKY PerfecTv!)

J;> 110ECSF Y% LK% > (2H/%-110)
B (S 110-degree digital broadcasting
(SKY PerfecTV/ 110}

N—> FTTHRGE S EH-1)
Content distribution through FTTH
(HIKARI PerfecTV!)

N——> BBOVTVVEE > (2#/3~1BB)
Broadband content distribution
(SKY Perfect BB)

Content distribution to mobile phones
{SKY Perfect Mobile)
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Subscribers: 3.92 million
(As of July 31, 2005)
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! BRBMESDTSYNI+—LTHREHIT,
| ASSURING THE VALUE OF OUR PLATFQORM IN THE FUTURE

SKY PerfecTV! is striving to be an ever-appealing platform to both broadcasters and
subscribers. Toward that end, we are pushing ahead with aur two foundational
“content aggregator” and “multi-platform” strategies. As a content aggregator, we are
stepping up our investment in productions to enhance the value of content-related
rights. As a multi-platform operator, we don't adhere to just one form of link such as
wired, wireless, satellite, terrestrial or mobile, but constantly endeavor to offer ever
more convenient services at ever affordable prices to customers through the trans-
mission paths of their individual choices.

As a platform operator, taking advanced security measures related to subscribers'
personal information is a matter of vital importance. With the enactment of the
Personal Information Protection Law in April 2005, SKY PerfecTV/ obtained Privacy
Mark certification in May 2005, following Privacy Mark certification at Data Network
Center Corporation, our subsidiary company that carries out customer management
activities, in July 2003. In addition to reassuring subscribers of the safe management
of their personal information, this certification also establishes a level of trustworthiness
recognized by broadcasters.

Through these sorts of efforts, we will steadfastly continue to deliver products
and services that meet the expectations of individual users. While pursuing high
profitability, we will continue to expand our value to society as a company that gives
individuals dreams for the future.
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Subscribers
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Content held by
broadcasters
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: : =EiE >
s ¢ Digitization fees
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S SKY Perfe¢t Communications Inc.
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Satellite Operators
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Group revenues
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BECAUSE WE ARE SKY PerfecTv/ ‘ :
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The Company has worked to offer popular programming content including FIFA
World Cup™, Major League Baseball, PRIDE martial arts, and Korean programs in
accordance with their booming popularity. We currently offer 360 channels, placing
us among the world's leading digital multichannel broadcasting corporations
and making us the unrivalled industry leader in the Japan market.

As people encounter video and audio content in increasingly diverse ways,
we are aware that we must provide even more appealing content to be able to
deliver enjoyment to a multitude of people. For this reason, we established SKY
Perfect Well Think Co,, Ltd. in July 2004 as a company to develop and invest in
content. We would like to utilize this company to nurture individuals in an envi-
ronment where outstanding entertainment can be created, and continue to sup-
ply enjoyment “because we are SKY PerfecTV!"
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A NEW WAY TO INTERACT WITH TELEVISION
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We have made significant contributions to the development of Japan's multi-
channel pay TV market through our core SKY PerfecTV/ CS digital broadcasting
services, which utilize two communications satellites at 124 degrees and 128
degrees longitude east. So that more people might experience the allure of SKY
PerfecTV/, we launched a set-top box rental service from June 2005 to comple-
ment their conventional outright sale.

Another platform holding tremendous growth potential uses a communica-
tions satellite launched to the same 110-degree longitude east position as
broadcasting satellites ("BS"). Many digital televisions that have sold well over
the last several years are already equipped with tuners for CS 110-degree
broadcasts, or SKY PerfecTV/110. We are aiming to capitalize on this chance to
draw the interest of untapped consumer segments by developing a variety of
services and packages, including High Definition Television broadcasts.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. 9
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With the digitization of broadcasts and the increasing dispersion

of broadband networks, the Company is aiming to enable freer
viewing styles. One example of our efforts include the realization
of so-called “triple-play service," which bundles digital multi-
channel broadcasting via FTTH with Intemet and IP telephone
service into one package.

Moreaver, with attention focused on the potential of service
to mobile phones, we established SKY Perfect Maobile, Inc. in
June 2005. We have also conducted a video-clip streaming trial
in conjunction with NTT DoCoMo, and distributed content tailored
to KDDI's au EZ Channel. Based upon the know-how gained
through these activities, we aim to deliver our attractive content
to increasingly sophisticated mobile phones, the ultimate on-
the-go tools, and to wireless LAN devices. In addition, we are
exploring possibilities related to accessing content recorded on
home devices from anywhere.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. 11
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B (3%if280)

The Company delivers consistently high-quality video and audio programs
through the Meguro Media Center, where we conduct the relay of programs
from satellites, and develop and maintain transmission equipment. SKY
PerfectTV/, the pioneer in Japan's digital broadcasting industry, constructed a
new system with upgraded transmitting equipment in July 2005, integrating
equipment that previously utilized two systems into one and contributing to
more efficient operation. The upgraded transmission facilities carry out digital
compression of programn material sent via optical fiber network and other
media from nearly 100 Broadcasters. This core system also conducts multi-
plexing of our electronic program guide (“EPG") and other data and sends
that data to uplink sites. This marks the first case of digital broadcasting facilities
being upgraded since the Company launched Japan’s first digital broadcasts
in October 1996. No matter how advanced the content or new the infor-
mation, it cannot be appreciated unless delivered to subscribers. Given our
commitment in these endeavors, we will continue to use cutting-edge
digital technology to support high-quality broadcasting.
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making the SKY PerfecTV! experience an enjoyable one.
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B Nov. 1994
DMC Planning Inc. established
(name changed to PerfecTV Corporation
in 1995)

M lune 1996
Japan's first digital broadcasting starts

W June 1996
The News Corporation Limited announces
its “JSkyB Plan.”
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STAYING HALF A STEP AHEAD OF THE TiMES
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May 1998
PerfecTV Corporation and Japan Sky
Broadcasting Co,, Ltd. merge on equal terms,
renaming their service “SKY PerfecTv!"
m July 1999
Obtains exclusive broadcasting rights in
Japan for the Serie A Italian Professional
Soccer League
W Dec. 1999
SN Planning is established as a planning
corporation to engage in customer
management for broadcasting service
(changes its name to Data Network Center
Corporation upon the start of operations
in August 2000)
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W Mar.
Announces the intention to cooperate in
migration of DIRECTV Japan subscribers to
SKY PerfecTV/ after the termination of
DIRECTV Japan's services

B June
The Company changes its name to SKY
Perfect Communications Inc.

W Aug.
Obtains CS exclusive broadcasting rights in
Japan for all the 64 games of the 2002
FIFA World Cup Korea/lapan™

W Oct.
Lists its shares on the MOTHERS market of
the Tokyo Stock Exchange (Code No.4795)
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u July
Obtains exclusive broadcasting rights in
Japan for English Premiership League and
French League soccer

B Oct,
Acquires shares of Samurai TV Inc., a
special channel for professional wrestling
and martial arts (80.25% shareholding)

M Dec. 1996 175 ee°°
Japan Sky Broadcasting Co., Ltd. established 00 O° °?
W Jan. 1997 as90°°
ao?®
PerfecTV! starts offering pay broadcasting Leso®°’ ° 1999
B May 1997 97 IRSTLA
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§ feb.
Starts joint experiment with NTT on content
distribution through FTTH.

| May
Carries live and free broadcasts for all games
of the 2002 FIFA World Cup Korea/Japan™
over 10 channels.

o July
Starts CS 110-degree digital broadcasting
service "SKY PerfecTv! 110"

N Aug
Starts broadband content distribution service
"SKY Perfect BB"
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. M Apr.

Obtains three-season exclusive broadcasting

rights in Japan for UEFA Champions League
W June

OptiCast Inc. is established as a new entity

for content distribution through optical

fiber networks

704

2003

BRI 740(8H
Revenues ¥74.0 billion
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m Mar.
Listed on the First Section of the Tokyo
Stock Exchange (Code No0.4795)
B Mar.
Merges the CS 110-degree digital broad-
casting business with Plat One.
W July
SKY Perfect Well Think Co., Ltd. established
& Sep.
HDTV Broadcasting by Star Channel launched

L )z
HAN=ZL T =2y T~ DBREIE
(10.00% &)

m6H
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[ E:E]

[AHN—ERT T~ 22005] %BRE

B Feb.
SKY Perfect Marketing, Co., Ltd. established
o May
Exclusive CS broadcasting rights in Japan
of the 2006 FIFA World Cup Germany™
obtained
B May
Conducts capital tie-up with Index
Corporation {4.69% shareholding)
B June
Begins rental service of set-top boxes for
SKY PerfecTv!
B June
Acquires shares in SPACE SHOWER
NETWORKS INC (10.00% shareholding)
& June
SKY Perfect Mobile, Inc. established
W Aug.
Opens SKY PerfecTV! Tokyo-Plage 2005.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. 15




B2EELDALN BoEFREEREZ., BoLBOEWMERE.
BOEEDLWVWNIEE, ZLT, Bo&EEKULWWERZE,

TNFAF T OBRHARIBEL. FURNERREEEIILEMS
MRAE—RTHADBRGEFEREEATEEL A 1282 -2y,
EHEEEERLELAENMILOBRIL HEHLE->TESP . BEOE
EETDIATRPTILOBERDPEREL >TOET[BEERED
BE b1 ISRMOETE EET-LPRABECAETETVE
TP ULZD—AT. TAEBROELII DV TV EWFT R
WFRALRNZELDG AL EBIBR TETVET, BICEEB OB R
FEBLWESEESTH. 22 @BAERCBEROBRIRAZLT LY
SIEMMERNZDOTLLOM,

[Fo2Ef R BIOES LT BHLOORBEDFH,S[RAI4E] &0 D
BEERRAEHATVIETLLED LPALZDEN ABOFEIZEST,
EHP ABMOBREEECERELROATOEELTETCEAVNER
WET,

[ | OEHRTREAITHEHES. LALIX]2RIELLOET D
DR A THRZEEFESHRIETIE]ETABMS | E2F3E0)
BRELBESNBMAIIRLEILRNILET,

ZO#LVEECH T, CERFIRTERL HEORBICI A5
REEDIBHEBEONTOET, AA/NN—NI[BEOA & 4% TR
CT.AEOBEAEZATVEREOREET —vELTB JCSHE
BF v RNTIUR T —LEE|EXF~PEET EIPLEVRR
EREIEICEY HA—HEIGERICEDEEHII3NRFEBADZH42Y
SEMETETBECAET. BPTSETHRETEIEN HEEL L,

LALJERBEEZE [FUSABF v 2B OEBELLT,
LEULATFI 2RO | OELTZHEB#L - L TORKOTHH
BESEIDHNFEEIHZINED S—EINETO RINMEEELT HO
Dy hLT HRCKESREBT 20 SE1A. RHEYas £ 5T,
SEBIE VEDIAIN—IDA A =D EREE AT BIL{ELWE
ICEABIEEITBHLELA,

2005FFICIE D TREFAHBEMZEL 725, /5= TEK
NGB D EF - WIEE | THOTILWEBE-TVWE T, H 3B
BANCHAEICEFLT. ZOMREZED ERL A5 YOV MNTH

16 SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

LOERICE? D ZNEFLWEEDT FrL VT 3AEETH-
THELVWEBS>TWET,

IO EREEEEBRT IO TR GRLTGEREIE DVTET
NMECA HEPBEIELTREF ZOLHEEBERHFLTNS. %
LTESSZDEREENV, COLI LRI H-THH T 7VIA
T RERPERZOTT, TOEFEHEOROLE|[BADF
DBSC]ERDIN—ITIRREED I HEDLUBAELTVWET,

ECDIPDICRRBEE R, NEORKICEEET . TAL DR T,
HEOEBIERT 2. AHEEPOEDREZIZATINDGODEER
FREEHTWIIEEATVET,

IMPSHXF T OFECHLEILT BREDOFEENFEIIAITN
ERUTE A EETHIEN P S LEDBIRRATT,

LA L FEVELHABERBE BEEES X AN -4 —THUKITS
BIECHENHNET, TSN,

At —

RERFRTE EF —

Hajime Shigemura
B President and Representative Director




Higher quality works to bring more beneficial information
to more people for a more diverse culture. And, more
enjoyable creations...

Our everyday lifestyles are undergoing great transformations with the full-
fledged dawn of the multimedia age and the digital revolution proceeding
at breakneck speed. The connected world's primary tools, namely the
Internet and mobile phones, have become indispensable commodities
for the daily lives of today's young people. In terms of infrastructure
technology, the goal of integrating broadcasting and communications is
almast in sight. On the other hand, the number of people wha cannat
keep pace with the rapid change is also increasing, leading to the so-
called "digital divide.” This raises the issue: as we continue to make
remarkable headway in the sophistication of transmission paths and
device technologies, can we really boast that the created content and the
quality of the information passing through them has improved?

With the further advance of digital technologies, the word “impossible”
may be blotted out of dictionaries. However, we also cannot deny the
dangers that our advances pose to the future of societies, even going as
far as the shipwreck of civilization or the collapse of humanity.

In the world of technology anything can be done, but | believe we
have come to an age when, in order to protect culture and society, it is
sometimes necessary for those who create culture to refrain from making
some things that they have the potential to produce.

In such a complex scenario, corporations pursue profit and are com-
missioned with the task of producing goods that meet the needs and
desires of society. As we began business as a CS multichannel platform
provider, we promoted “Staying half a step ahead of the times” as one of
our most important management themes. Thanks to your support, our
business has ridden upon the track of success, and grown into a corpo-
ration listed on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, while
handling in excess of 3.92 million subscribers.

As a pioneer in the pay TV and digital multichanne! broadcasting
business, we have thoroughly contemplated the downsides of digital
technology that | mentioned above, giving careful thought to what shape
the next generation pay content business should take. We are currently

reviewing our successes over the past years and resetting the Company
to zero. We formulated a Mid-Term Vision in January 2005 to guide our
efforts to make a new leap forward. Three years from now, the image of
SKY PerfecTV/ will be dramatically changed into @ more sturdy and
rugged figure.

In Spring 2005, for the first ime we employed new college graduates.
My desire is that people who work at SKY PerfecTV/ be “playful revolutionaries,”
who focus intensely on their work for a time, master that world, and then
reset to zero and maove on toward new worlds. People who don't say
"that’s too hard,” but who are willing to take up the challenge.

If someone pursues a policy of producing goods only to make a profit,
consumers will certainly not follow. “Society, the times and the future are
waiting for this kind of product, and | want to use it t0o.” Possessing this
sort of mentality is the starting point for being able to make a creative
product. We place priority on instilling that mindset within our employees.
Our team understands our role as a corporation within society, and values
the spirit of play within individuals.

A playful spirit fosters more space within the heart, and gives birth to
dreams for the future of humankind. We believe that this is exactly the
kind of corporation that can contribute to the makeover of society, and
while it may seem presumptuous, this is how we plan to develop our
business for the future.

Media companies will have to continue to run in an environment
changing at warp speed. This is a world where conditions change
dramatically within half a year.

However, we are without mistake the leader in the pay TV and conr-
tent business, and we have both the confidence and the resolution to
continue to lead. Expect us to do so.

/4 SH

Hajime Shigemura
President and Representative Director

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. 17



Ty

W EDREHBHEE) A SBREFEANRET I,

BEDESEEE
ZAHANR=T 2 ITVIOREY ~EADHE JSATEHI N B EDE
BEHLE FEMEERLEN BEFELEEL. AEELEEY
SRR RBEENEE FENEEZSEZOEBEDOS B
HROEBBEBEADT v TS 7EBEN DV TR SHAEEH,

BFxaTy
TIIARTLIT) =T R EFVRANEF v R ILEEDEHHE
PEZEHILTOVOREEFSHBE S REBL. FEHTHD
(A NRA IN— B2 — DN IR ERRT DL EDIC ESE
FEIHTIV TS AD[FEEHT->TV 3,

ZH/—IBB
IPR7HEA—RNAL RO T VEEY —E X, 2002588 & V) F1&
F~EXBFTL. B, SDOT I INTRE, 27y 7On
1Z—poRHsh-HH BEHOREIL 7V E SEEHH
WCEF TR RARTAMN -3V TERELTV S,

EREFNRREE

BEFBECBEY -—EXEREY—EAFBT 2RO LE

B 2002F1 BIHEIT, RBILEDE. — N ESH&HE-L L B
ERBERERBMEEEEL L TERIN . GEZHBEET
BREEEEE N SERBAEABORBESU T -ERETT

ST ENTREE 5T

BxE

I*'E‘JZ‘I'“‘JQ"
HEIEHINIERPRB W LONSKZ T TS
NTLBWMBEEHERIEL. %n&t%mawi&rc:‘*m&%

BORERE
BHORE. MREETIERE WRACL) RIBEL 5 REF
DREERITEETAIEEET L. ERBERBFLAALTRERE
TOMEBEEN B BT L2 RHLTOIMESEEE
HEHETI00HIEE. RBENOEROEERBEIHENEER
BEENTI, £ BBEER BT Iy T4 - LEEEET,

Uplink
An uplink is a transmission from ground transmission facilities to
communications satellites.

Satellite Operator
JSAT is the principal Satellite Operator for the SKY PerfecTV/ broadcasting
service. The Satellite Operator awns communication satellites and transmits
programs received from Broadcasters to subscribers. Part of its operations,
concerning the uplink center (uplink to satellites), is contracted out to
our Company.

Own Content
The Company independently acquires broadcasting rights for top-quality
content that highlights the advantages of digital multichannel broadcasting
services, such as Serie A ltalian Professional Soccer League and English
~Premier League matches. We broadcast own content through Pay Per View
Japan, Inc., our subsidiary, as well as sublicensing it to other broadcasters.

SKY Perfect BB
SKY Perfect BB is our broadband content distribution service by using
Internet Protocol (“IP"), which has been offered on a full scale since
August 2002. 1t is available nationwide and prevides on-demand streaming
distribution of free and pay content supplied from content providers to
registered members.

Law Concerning Broadcast via Telecommunications Carriers’ Facilities
Enacted in January 2002, this law permits telecommunications facilities
and services to be used for broadcasting services. Under this law, Broad-
casters of telecommunications services can occasionally be registered as
such if they meet certain requirements, and can use telecommunications
services provided by telecommunications carriers to provide their services.

Transponder
A transponder is a radio relay installed on a satellite that receives weak
radio signals sent from ground parabolic antennae, amplifies them and
sends them back to the earth.

Broadcasters
Broadcasters engage in the procurement of content, programming, and
so forth. Under the Broadcast Law, Broadcasters are divided into
“Licensed Broadcasters,” licensed by the Ministry of internal Affairs and
Communications; and “Broadcasters” under the Law Concerning
Broadcast via Telecommunications Carriers’ Facilities. An approximate
total of 100 Broadcasters provide their services on our platforms.
Transmission of programs to subscribers is undertaken by the Satellite
Operator. The Company is under contract with each Broadcaster to per-
form the platform service.

18 SKY Perfect Communications inc.
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Broadcast Law

The Broadcast Law aims at regulating broadcasting for the public welfare

and striving to achieve sound development. It has been successively
revised to keep pace with the trend towards multimedia, including the
introduction of a system of “licensed broadcasters and licensed satellite
operators” that separated broadcasting facility operators from content
providers in 1989. It prescribes the duties of licensed broadcasters and
licensed satellite operators, and sets content regulations.

BS Digital
BS Digital is a digital broadcasting service that utilizes geostationary
broadcasting satellites. Although these digital broadcasts began in
December 2000, the number of direct subscribers and subscribers via
digital CATV remains below forecasts at the time that services were
launched.

CS (Communications Satellite)
CS is an artificial satellite equipped with transponders designed for
communications services. Communications satellites have also been
used for broadcasting purposes as broadcasting satellites since 1992.
Our Company's services currently use three communications satellites:
JCSAT-3 (128 degrees longitude east), JCSAT-4A (124 degrees longi-
tude east) and N-SAT-110 (110 degrees longitude east).

DTH (Direct To Home)
DTH is the direct distribution of content to househalds via satellite or
other media.

FTTH (Fiber To The Home)

FTTH is network in which an optical fiber runs from the telephone switch

directly to the home. It enables multichannel content distribution using
WDM that offers up to 500 channels in addition to high-speed, large-

capacity broadband communications at a maximum speed of 100 Mbps

at home.

HDTV (High Definition Television)
HDTV is a broadcasting format providing substantially improved audio
and visual quality with mare horizontal lines of resolution than the con-

ventional analog television standard, along with a widescreen image and

digitized audio.
PPV (Pay Per View)
PPV is a viewing system that charges viewers for individual content

purchased. It allows them to purchase a single movie, sporting event,
concert or other content via remote control operation.
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Corporate Name: SKY Perfect Cormmunications Inc.

Main Service Name: SKY PerfecTV!

Head Office Address: 2-15-1 Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-8326 Japan

Date Established: November 10, 1994
Capital: 50,037 million yen
Number of Employees: 379 (caonsolidated)
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Major Shareholders  Sony Broadcast Media Co., Ltd.
(As of March 31, 2005) Fuji Television Network, Inc.
ltochu Corporation
JSAT Corporation
Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc.

Nippon Television Network Corporation

State Street Bank and Trust Company

Sumitomo Corporation

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, _td.

DENTSU INC.
* As of March 31, 2005, the Company held 105,372 treasury shares,

12.48%
12.48%
12.48%
6.91%
5.69%
5.24%
4.26%
3.06%
2.79%
1.79%

* The above-mentioned shares feld by tochu Corporation irensferred as trust assets to the retirement pension trust. (The names
in the shareholders’ register are Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. retirernent trust account for tachu Corporation.)

* The above-mentioned shates held by Sumitomo Corporation transferred as trust assets to the retirement pension trust. (The
names in the shareholders’ register are Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd, retisement trust account for Sumitomno Corporation.)
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Board of Directors Chairman and Representative Director

Yasushi Hosoda

(As of lune 24, 2005) President and Representative Director

Hajime Shigemura

Executive Vice President

Hiroyuki Shinoki

Managing Director

Masao Nito

Managing Director

Ryoji Hirabayashi

Non-Executive Director

Tatsura Saitoh

Non-Executive Director

Kikujiro Shikano

Non-Executive Director

Tatsuya Tamura

Non-Executive Director

Kageo Nakano

Non-Executive Director

Nozomu Yoshida

Non-Executive Director

Toshichika Ishihara

Non-Executive Director

Kenji Kamimura

Non-Executive Director

Masakatsu Mori

Corporate Auditor (standing)

Yoshiki Hirowatari

Corporate Auditor (standing)

Ryosuke Tsuruma

Corporate Auditor

Tamotsu lba

Corporate Auditor

Masao Sakai

Corporate Auditor

Nobuyuki Kaneko
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Company Name Capital Shareholding Service Substance As of July 31,2005
Subsidiaries Data Network Center Corporation ¥100 million 51.00% Involved in customer management for multichannel broadcasting service
(Customer Center)
Multi Channel Entertainment Inc. ¥10 million 90.00% A licensed broadcaster of CS 110-degree digital broadcasting service
Samurai TV Inc. ¥12 million 80.25%  Satellite broadcasting of professional wrestling and martial arts programming and
transmission of CATY programs
OptiCast Inc. ¥2.480 million 100.00% Entity for content distribution through FTTH
SKY Perfect Well Think Co. Ltd. ¥480 million 100.00%  Content development and investment
Pay Per View Japan, Inc. ¥2,500 million 65.00% A provider of pay per view service offering Hollywood movies and
Sport events, eic.
SKYPerfect Marketing, Co,, Ltd. ¥480 million 51.00%  Rental service of set-top boxes for SKY PerfectTv/
Cable Television Adachi Corporation ¥2,063 million 77.29% CATV business
Information Network Koriyama Inc. ¥170 million 66.67%  CATV business (planning company)
SKY Perfect Mobile, Inc. ¥480 million 51.00%  Content distribution service to mobile phones
Affiliates System Create Inc. ¥19 million 32.26%  System development (CD-ROM distribution)
MAERDER (TA
Number of Subscribers (thousands)
4,000
3,000
1,790
2000 2,220
1009 1,488
1,000 598
233 800 O %EHMHE Total subscribers
. 167 463 O BAZHEH Individual subscribers
3/1897 3/1998 3/1999 3/2000 3/2001 3/2002 3/2003 3/2004 3/2005
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Business Report for the Fiscal Year Ended March 20052 p o, ‘
April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2005

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Major SKY Perfect! News
Major news concerning the Company from April 2004 to May 2005 is mentioned.
Business Frame
The outline of the Company's business frame and basic profit structure is mentioned.

Summary of Financial Data

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ending
March, 2005 March, 2006 (forecast)
Operating revenues 74,016 85,000
Ordinary Income 3,681 500
Net income 3,709 1,000
(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year ended
March, 2005
Total assets 121,132
Capital stock 89,408

Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ending

March, 2005 March, 2006
(forecast)
Cumulative total of registrants and
annual percentage of individual cancellation
Cumulative total of registrants (thousands) 3,823 4,055
Cumulative total of individual registrants (thousands) 3,310 3,542
Percentage of individual cancellation (%) 9.4 9.0
ARPU:
Average service fee revenue per customer per month (ven) 1,413
Average pay-per-view revenue per customer per month (yen) 3,544
SAC: '
Advertising fees (ven) 12,756
Sales promotion fees (yen) , 5,116
Sales incentives (yen) 16,808
Total (yen) 34,680
EBITDA:
EBITDA (million yen) ' 6,698

EBITDA margin (%) 9.1




To Our Shareholders

Compliments of Hajime Shigemura, the President and Representative Director of the
Company, are mentioned.

Questions and Answers regarding Business Strategy

Questions regarding the Company's business strategy and answers thereto are
mentioned.

Consolidated Summary Financial Statements
(See below)

Non-consolidated Summary Financial Statements
(See below)

Stock Information (as of March 31, 2005)

Information Concerning Shares

Total number of shares authorized to be issued: 3,200,000 shares
Total number of issued shares: 2,268,509 shares
(Note) Issued shares have increased 901 shares due to the exercise of subscription rights during this

fiscal year.
Number of shareholders: 42,312



Principal Shareholders

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares ~ Shareholding Ratio

Owned (shares) (%)
Sony Broadcast Media Co., Ltd. 283,058 12.48
Fuji Television Network, Inc. 283,058 12.48
Itochu Corporation 283,058 12.48
JSAT Corporation 156,780 6.91
Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc. 129,000 5.69
Nippon Television Network Corporation 118,910 5.24
State Street Bank and Trust Company 96,544 4.26
Sumitomo Corporation 69,320 3.06
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. 63,309 2.79
Dentsu Inc. 40,594 1.79

(Note 1) The shareholding ratio is calculated against a total of 2,268,509 shares issued.

(Note 2) The Company owns 105,372 shares of treasury stock.

(Note 3) As of March 31, 2005, non-Japanese shareholders accounted for 11.58% of the total number of
voting rights with respect to the Company's shares {(according to the calculation method set by the
Ministry of Public Management, Home Affairs, Posts and Telecommunications of Japan).

(Note 4) The above-mentioned shares held by Itochu Corporation include 147,000 shares transferred as trust
assets to the retirement pension trust. (Although these shares are registered in the name of Mizuho
Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. retirement trust account for Itochu Corporation in the shareholders'
register, due to the retirement trust agreement, Itochu Corporation has been entitled to issue
instructions concerning voting rights.)

(Note 5) The above-mentioned shares held by Sumitomo Corporation include 65,100 shares transferred as
trust assets to the retirement pension trust. (Although these shares are registered in the name of
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. - subtrusted by The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Company,
Limited, retirement trust account for Sumitomo Corporation in the shareholders' register, due to the
retirement trust agreement, Sumitomo Corporation has been entitled to issue instructions
concerning voting rights.)

Changes in Stock Price

Changes in stock price of the Company from April 2004 through May 2005 are
mentioned by a bar graph and a line graph.

Status of Shareholders (by Category)

(Number of Shareholders)
Financial institutions: 41 (0.10%)
Securities houses: 21 (0.05%)
Other corporate shareholders: 606 (1.43%)
Non-Japanese corporate shareholders, etc.: 134 (0.32%)
Individual and other shareholders: 41,509 (98.10%)
Treasury stock: 1 (0.00%)
(Total) 42312



Status of Shareholders (bv Number of Shares per Shareholder)

, (Number of Shares)
Financial institutions: 393,287 (17.34%)
Securities houses: 11,474 (0.51%)
Other corporate shareholders: 1,252,655 (55.22%)
Non-Japanese corporate shareholders, etc.: 250,464 (11.04%)
Individual and other shareholders: 255,257 (11.25%)
Treasury stock: 105,372 (4.64%)
(Total) 2,268,509

(Note) The above-mentioned shares classified as held by other corporate shareholders includes 5,660
shares held by Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc.

Corporate Data (as of March 31, 2005)

Outline
Date of establishment: November 10, 1994
Company name: SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
Service name: SKY PerfecTV!
Address of the head office: 15-1, Shibuya 2-chome, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-8326
Capital stock: 50,037 million yen
Number of employees: 379 (Consolidated)

Principal Office

Meguro Media Center located at Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo
Aomi Broadcasting Center located at Koto-ku, Tokyo

Data Network Center Corporation (customer center) located at Yokohama-shi,
Kanagawa-ken

Opticast Inc. located at Shibuya-ku, Tokyo

Board Members (at June 24, 2005)

Names of 13 Directors (including 2 representative directors) and 5 Corporate Auditors
are included.



Status of Subsidiaries

Company's
Shareholding
Company Name Capital Stock Ratio Principal Business

Data Network Center 100 million yen 51.0% Customer management
Corporation
Muld Chamnel 10 millionyen  90.0% Broadcasting
SamuraiTV Corporation 12 million yen 80.2% Broadcasting
Opticast Inc. 480 million yen 100.0% Broadcasting for service use
SKY Perfect Well Think 480 million yen 100.0% Contents development,
Co. Ltd. investment
Pay Per View Japan, Inc. 2,500 million yen 65.0% Broadcasting
SKYPerfect Marketing, Co., . Rental service of set-top
Ltd. 10 million yen >0.0% boxes for SKY PerfectTV!
Cable Television Adachi 5 063 millionyen . 77.3% Cable television

orporation
Information Network 170 million yen 66.7% Cable television (planning

Koriyama Inc.

Shareholders' Memo

company)

Closing account date, timing of general meeting of shareholders, record date, name of
transfer agent, contact place for the transfer agent, commission place for the transfer agent,
Company's URL for public notice and newspaper publishing public notice are mentioned.




Summary Financial Statements (Consolidated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 2005
As of March 31, As of March 31,
2004 2005
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and deposits 40,935 21,234
Accounts receivables 6,994 7,609
Securities 26,028 31,017
Broadcasting rights 3,741 3,740
Accrued revenue 2,239 1,947
Other current assets 3,376 3,522
Allowance for doubtful receivables -311 -255
Total current assets 83,004 68,815
Fixed Assets:
Tangible fixed assets:
Building 1,809 1,930
Machinery and equipment 3,335 4,806
Nominal account for construction 1,544 5,999
Other tangible fixed assets 664 2,885
Total tangible fixed assets 7,353 15,621
Intangible fixed assets:
Consolidation adjustments account - 1,574
Software 3,388 2,619
Other intangible fixed assets 38 34
Total intangible fixed assets 3,427 4,228
Investment and others:
Investment securities 31,164 28,034
Others 1,586 4,432
Total investment and others 32,751 32,467
Total fixed assets 43,532 52,317
Total Assets 126,536 121,132




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 2005
As of March 31,  As of March 31,
2004 2005
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accrued accounts 9,744 9,380
Bonds due within one year - S
Short-term borrowings - 220
Accrued expenses 1,177 1,043
Accrued income taxes 13 404
Deposits received (pay-per-view) 12,650 12,364
Allowance for employees' bonuses 220 252
Subscription right 2 1
Other current liabilities 1,763 1,667
Total current liabilities 25,573 25,340
Fixed Liabilities:
Bonds 5 -
Long-term accrued accounts 1,200 785
Long-term borrowings - 1,129
Allowance for retirement benefit 525 653
Allowance for directors' retirement benefit 17 18
Other fixed liabilities 749 801
Total fixed liabilities 2,496 3,388
Total Liabilities 28,069 28,728
Minority Interests:
Minority Interests 2,208 2,995
Shareholders' Equity:
Common stock 50,014 50,037
Capital surplus 43,923 43,947
Retained earnings 3,334 5,909
Other unrealized gains on securities -1,014 - -1,213
Treasury stock - -9,272
Total Shareholders' Equity 96,258 89,408
Total Liabilities, Minority Interests
and Shareholders' Equity 126,536 121,132




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year ended Fiscal year ended
March, 2004 March, 2005
From April 1, From April 1,
2003 2004
To March 31, To March 31,
2004 2005
Operating Revenues:
Platform business revenues 72,475 74,016
Total operating revenues 72,475 74,016
Operating Expenses:
Platform business expenses 49,758 49,977
Selling, general and administrative expenses 18,563 21,212
Total operating expenses 68,322 71,189
Operating Income 4,152 2,826
Non-operating Revenues:
Interest and dividend income 547 971
Gains on sales of securities 199 137
Other non-operating revenues 114 106
Total non-operating revenues 861 1,214
Non-operating Expenses:
Interest expenses 43 38
Loss on sales of securities - 182
Equity in net loss of affiliated company 91 75
Loss on valuation of options 21 5
Expenses related to the acquisition of treasury stock - 45
Other non-operating expenses 4 12
Total non-operating expenses 160 359
Ordinary Income 4,853 3,681
Extraordinary Profit
Gains on sales of investment securities - 217
Contract cancellation settlement fee received - 120
Compensation for damages received 28 -
System service charge cancellation fee received 20 -
Total extraordinary profit 48 338



Extraordinary Loss:
Loss from removal of fixed assets
Loss from sale of fixed assets
Loss on valuation of investment securities
Difference from retirement benefit calculations
Loss from installment cancellation
Total extraordinary loss

Net income before adjustment of tax

Income taxes, inhabitants tax and business tax
Minority loss

Net income

100 64

2 0
259 307
161 -
47 -
571 372
4,330 3,646
12 12
66 74
4,384 3,700




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SURPLUS

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year ended  Fiscal year ended

March, 2004 March, 2005

From April 1, From April 1,

2003 2004
To March 31, To March 31,
2004 2005
Capital Surplus
Capital surplus at beginning of year 74,006 43,923
Increase in capital surplus 31,423 23
Profit from merger 4,200 -
Profit from capital reduction 27,208 -
Exercise of share subscription rights 14 23
Decrease in capital surplus 61,506 -
Reversal of capital reserve 61,506 -
Capital surplus at end of year 43,923 43,947
Retained Earnings

Retained earnings at beginning of year -124,808 3,334
Increase in retained earnings 128,143 3,709
Net income 4,384 3,709
Capital reduction - 62,252 -
Reversal of capital reserve 61,506 -
Decrease in retained earnings - 1,133
Dividends - 1,133
Retained earnings at end of year 3,334 5,909

-10-



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 2005
From April 1, From April 1,
2003 2004
To March 31, To March 31,
2004 2005
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income before adjustment of tax 4,330 3,646
Depreciation 3,111 3,013
Loss on valuation of investment securities 259 307
Decrease in allowance for doubtful receivables ’ -70 -61
Interest receivable and dividend income -547 -971
Interest expense 43 38
Decrease in sales receivable 1,351 153
Decrease (increase) in inventory assets -1,492 60
Increase (decrease) in accrued accounts 1,805 -1,021
Decrease in accrued expenses -1,471 -136
Increase (decrease) in deposits received (pay-per-view) 223 -285
Other cash flows from operating activities 463 -1,297
Sub-total 8,007 3,445
Amount of interest and dividend income 370 908
Payment for interest -43 -38
Payment for income taxes, etc. -12 -13
Total cash flows from operating activities 8,322 4,302
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Payments for fixed deposits ‘ - -4,000
Proceeds from fixed deposits 5,020 3,000
Payments for purchase of securities -14,886 -14,461
Proceeds from sale and redemption of securities 23,035 29,324
Payments for purchase of investments in securities -13,318 -17,658
Proceeds from sales/redemption of investments in securities 3,199 6,404
Payments for purchases of fixed assets -2,337 -7,783
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 320 75
Payments for purchase of software =767 -368
Proceeds from currency swap assets 1,029 1,074
Payments for acquisition of shares of subsidiaries
involving change in the scope of consolidation - -2,788
Other cash flows from investing activities 1 95
Total cash flows from investing activities 1,296 -7,087
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stock 28 46
Payments for installment liability -2,110 -515
Payment for dividends - -1,133
Acquisition of treasury stock - -9,318
Proceeds from minority shareholders 5

Total cash flows from financing activities ~2,081 -10,916

211 -



Effect of exchange rate changes on

cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents received from merger
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

212 -

-0 0
7,535 -13,701
38,102 45,941
302 -
45,941 32,239




Summary Financial Statements (Non-consolidated)

BALANCE SHEETS
(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 2005
As of March 31, As of March 31,
2004 2005
Assets
Current Assets: 75,952 59,628
Fixed Assets:
Tangible fixed assets: 7,082 12,759
Intangible fixed assets: 2,007 1,368
Investment and others: 36,479 39,817
Total fixed assets 45,569 53,944
Total Assets 121,522 113,573
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BALANCE SHEETS

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 - 2005
As of March As of March 31,
31, 2004 2005
Liabilities
Current Liabilities: 22,563 20,599
Fixed Liabilities 1,538 1,580
Total Liabilities 24,102 22,180
Shareholders' Equity
Common stock 50,014 50,037
Capital surplus 43,923 43,947
Retained earnings 4,495 7,893
Other unrealized gains on securities -1,014 -1,213
Total Shareholders' Equity 97.419 91,393
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 121,522 113,573
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 2005
From April 1, From April 1,
2003 2004
To March 31, To March 31,
2004 2005
Operating Revenues: 70,028 71,881
Operating Expenses: 65,776 68,130
Operating Income 4,251 3,751
Non-operating Revenues: 858 1,179
Non-operating Expenses: 36 253
Ordinary Income 5,073 4,677
Extraordinary Income - 217
Extraordinary Loss: 571 356
Net income before tax 4,502 4,538
Income taxes, inhabitants tax and business tax 6 6
Net income 4,495 4,532
Loss (Income) brought forward -62,252 3,361
Coverage amount of loss brought forward from capital
reduction 62,252 -
Unappropriated net income 4,495 7,893
STATEMENTS OF APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
(Millions of yen)
Fiscal year Fiscal year
ended March, ended March,
2004 2005
the date approved in shareholders' meeting June 25, 2004 June 24, 2005
Unappropriated income 4,495 7,893
Amount of appropriation of profit
Shareholder dividend 1,133 1,622
Directors' bonuses - 14
Income brought forward to the next period 3,361 6,257

-15-
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BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL SECURITIES REPORT

The Annual Securities Report for the 11th fiscal year (April 1, 2004 through March 31, 2005)
prepared in accordance with Articles 24 of the Securities and Exchange Law has been
submitted to the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau on June 27, 2005 through
EDINET (Electronic Disclosure for Investors' Network).
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(TEL: 03-5468-9400)

Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers
as of the end of August 2005

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and
Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura) announced the number of Total Registrations and
Individual Subscribers as of the end of August 2005.

\ TOTAL | Total Subscribers*1 - - | Individual Subscribers*2

New Subscribers 46, 989 37, 357
Churn 29, 483 22, 850

Churn Rate*3 9. 0% 8. 1%
August Net Increase 17, 506 14, 507
Cumulative Total 3,936, 938 3, 401, 391

*The total column shows the summed-up figure of “SKY PerfecTV!”, “SKY PerfecTV! 110” and “Multichannel
broadcasting service through HIKARI PerfecTV/”

New Subscribers 33, 450 31, 235
Churn 23, 837 21, 291

Chum Rate*3 7. 8% 8. 0%
August Net Increase 9,613 ' 9,944

Cumulative Total 3,692, 217 3, 214, 614

New Subsenbers 13, 304 5,878

Chumn 5,636 1, 550

Chum Rate*3 28. 8% 10. 3%
Aungust Net Increase 7, 668 4,328
Cumulative Total 242, 699 184, 883

New Subscribers 235 244
Churn 10 9

Churn Rate*3 6. 7% 6. 5%
August Net Increase 225 235
Cumulative Total ' 2,022 1, 894




*1  Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay-
subscription agreement (provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), institutional
subscribers including retailers exhibition and registrations for techmical development in

addition to individual subscribers.

*2  Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have

been actually paying subscription fee.

*3  Monthly Chumn Rate : The chumn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number

of churns 1nto vearly basis.

Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month

/Total Subscribers at the end of the previous month

% 12 months

The breakdown of properties that have approved HIKARI PerfecTV! and properties currently

receiving the service. (as of the end of August 2005)

Number of properties 569

178

Number of households*6 39, 407

12, 391

*4  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each

month, have concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting

service) provision agreement. This figure also includes some properties for which service

provision will commence in the following month or later, depending on when construction

will be completed.

*5  Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month,

broadcasting services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being

provided and which are being charged for such.

*6 The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Acquisition of J SPORTS Broadcasting Corporation Shares

SKY Perfect Communications Inc. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Hajime Shigemura; “SKY Perfect”) has today decided to acquire a number of shares already issued
by J SPORTS Broadcasting Corporation (Head Office: Koutou-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Masayoshi Takaba; “J SPORTS™), which will be the continuing company after the merger between J
SPORTS and SPORTS-i NETWORK INC. (Head Office: Shibuya-ku, Tokyo; President and Representative
Director: Yoshitada Sonoda; “SPORTS-1”), through a negotiation transaction on November 1, 2005. This
acquisition will give SKY Perfect 15.0% ownership of the total number of shares already issued in the newly

comsolidated company.

J SPORTS uses SKY Perfect platform to broadcast its exclusive sports channels ] SPORTS 1, J SPORTS 2,
and J SPORTS 3, and taking into account distribution to cable television stations as well, is Japan’s largest
sports video content broadcaster and distributor covering an audience nationwide of some 4.655 million
households (as of August 31, 2005). Meanwhile, SPORTS-i also uses SKY Perfect platform to broadcast its
exclusive sports channel Sport-i ESPN, and taking into account distribution to cable television stations again,
1s one of Japan’s leading sports video content broadcasters and distributors covering an audience nationwide of
some 4.038 million households (as of August 31, 2005). The merger of these two companies will result in a

new company that will, in both name and reality, be operating Japan’s top sports channels.

This acquisition of shares will be made as part of concrete measures by SKY Perfect to strengthen the
company’s DTH business expansion, in line with its Mid-Term Vision (FY2005-2010) announced on January
26, 2005. The investment in this new company that will be dealing in so-called “killer content” through the
operation of Japan’s leading sports channels, will enable SKY Perfect, which serves as a gateway to audiences,
to flexibly and efficiently acquire content and to promote multichannel programming, product establishment

and marketing that are more directly tailored for the convenience and requirements of viewers.

In terms of the effect of this matter on SKY Perfect’s consolidated resuits, the increase in operating
expenses generated by the application of the equity method on a substantial basis and the commencement of

goodwill amortization is expected to have a negative impact on pre-tax profit for this term by 260 million yen



for the year. SKY Perfect plans to provide notification of information on overall consolidated garmings

forecasts for the year ending March 2006 based interim results performance at it comes to hand.

s New company profile (Tentative)

Company name: J SPORTS Broadcasting Corporation

Date of merger: November 1, 2005

Address: Koutou-ku, Tokyo (Current ] SPORTS address)
Capital; 3.8 billion yen

Major shareholders: Juptter Sports, Inc., ITOCHU Corporation, SKY Perfect Communications Inc.,
SOFTBANK Broadmedia Corporation, Sony Broadcast Media Co., Ltd., Fuji
Television Network, Inc., ESPN Inc., Tokyo Broadcasting System, Inc.
President and Representative Director:
- Masatoshi Takaba
(Current President and Representarive Director of J SPORTS)
Vice-President and Representative Director:
Yoshitada Sonoda
(Current President and Representative Director of SPORTS-1)
Channels: J SPORTS 1, J SPORTS 2, ] SPORTS 3, SPORTS-i ESPN

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.
TEL: 03-5468-9400FAX: 03-5468-9399
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Total Registrations and Individual Subscribers

SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

(Head Office:

as of the end of September 2005

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, President and

Representative Director: Hajime Shigemura) announced the number of Total Registrations and
Individual Subscribers as of the end of September 2005.

Total Subscribers*1

" Individual Subscribers*2

New Subscribers 48, 954 40, 139
Churn 28, 481 24, 303
Churn Rate*3 8. 7% 8. 6%
Net Increase 20,473 15, 836
Cumulative Total 3,967, 411 3, 417, 227

*The total column shows the summed-up figure of “SKY PerfecTV/”, “SKY PerfecTV/ 110” and “Multichannel
broadcasting service through HIKARI PerfecTV/”

New Subscribers 35, 296 33, 549
Churn 23,121 22, 305
Churn Rate*3 7. 5% 8. 3%
Net Increase 12, 175 11, 244
Cumulative Total 3,704, 392 3, 225, 858

New Subscribers

13, 350 6, 293

Chumn 5, 346 1,985
Churn Rate*3 26. 4% 12. 9%
Net Increase 8, 004 4, 308

Cumulative Total 250, 703 189, 191

New Subscribers 308 297
Chum. 14 13
Churn Rate*3 8. 3% 8. 2%
Net Increase 294 284
Cumulative Total 2,316 2,178




*1  Total Subscribers: The total numbers of provisional subscribers before executing pay-
subscription agreement (provisional subscribers for SKY PerfecTV/ only), institutional
subscribers including retailers exhibition and registrations for techmical development in
addition to individual subscribers.

*2  Individual Subscribers: Subscribers who agreed with pay-subscription agreement and have
been actually paying subscription fee.

*3  Monthly Churn Rate : The churn rate is the figure obtained by converting the monthly number

of churns into yearly basis.
Monthly Churn Rate = Churns during the current month
{Total Subscribers at the end of the previous month
x 12 months

The breakdown of properties that have approved HIKARI PerfecTV/ and properties currently
receiving the service. (as of the end of September 2005)

Number of properties 596 206

Number of households*6 42,912 14, 199

*4  Properties that have approved service provision: Those properties that, as of the end of each
month, have concluded a broadcasting service (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting
service) provision agreement. This figure also includes some properties for which service
provision will commence in the following month or later, depending on when construction
will be completed.

*5  Properties currently receiving service: Those properties to which, as of the end of each month,
broadcasting services (retransmission or multichannel broadcasting service) are being
provided and which are being charged for such.

*6  The number of households also includes as-yet-unoccupied households in new condominiums.

* For any inquiries on this matter please call
Public Relations Dept./Investor Relations Dept.
SKY Perfect Communications Inc.

TEL: 03-5468-9400 FAX: 03-5468-9399




